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Financial Summary

Al ¥5 1022

BE12ANBLILEE
For the Year Ended December 31
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
AR®TRT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Revenue A 297,907 263,820 241,659 120,897 95,088
Gross profit e 101,188 89,905 83,552 43,157 34,669
Gross profit margin EES 34.0% 34.1% 34.6% 35.7% 36.5%
Profit before tax R3S AT 7 51,917 32,856 43,820 29,228 24,214
Profit attributable to equity UNGIL-ZaY X iy
shareholders of the )
Company 44,822 28,016 35,055 24,981 20,730
Listing expenses X 4,005 12,447 9,937 — —
»2A318
As at December 31
20195 20184 20174 20164 20154
AR®TR AR®ETT AR®TRT ARETT ARETR
Total assets BEMBER 522,552 338,993 311,920 306,788 249,359
Total liabilities BfERE 291,833 223,546 275,336 134,016 101,568
Total equity e B RE 230,719 115,447 36,584 172,772 147,791
Notes: Pi%E -
The summary of the consolidated results and financial position of the ~ ANEBEZ2015%F + 2016F K2017F12A31H L FE

Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 are
extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2018

(the “Prospectus”).

MR EBELY BB B EEAA QR A R2018

F12ANBHBRER((BRER]) -
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Chairman’s Statement

FRFES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year”).

Despite lower macroeconomic growth rate caused by global
economic volatility and international trade frictions, the gross
domestic product (GDP) still recorded a growth of 6.1%
in 2019. During the Year, affected by factors such as less
preferential vehicle purchase tax policies, the automotive
industry faced greater pressure. The sales of vehicles in the
PRC were approximately 25.77 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 8.2%; of which, the sales of passenger
vehicles were 21.44 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 9.6%.

However, due to factors such as stricter compliance
requirements on vehicles, increase in new purchased vehicles,
launch of new infrastructure projects one after another,
upgrading of domestic consumption, and the vigorous
development of the logistics industry, the domestic heavy truck
market continued to maintain a slight growth trend and the
total market demand remained at high level. According to the
statistics of the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
the whole industry sold approximately 1,174,300 heavy trucks,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.3%, and the sales
reached a new high.

By leveraging on this market opportunity, the Group deployed,
formulated and implemented the “2+2” two-wheel driven
strategy of “two commercial vehicle users + two passenger
vehicle users” in advance, continued to strengthen our
leading position in the largest heavy truck market in North
West China, and selectively entered the passenger vehicle
market, becoming an interior decorative components and parts
manufacturer that provides technical solutions.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB297.9
million in 2019, which represents a year-on-year increase of
12.9% (2018: RMB263.8 million). The profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company recorded a year-on-year
increase of 60.0% to approximately RMB44.8 million (2018:
approximately RMB28.0 million). The Company proposed the
payment of 2019 Final Dividend to the shareholders of HK$0.6
cents per ordinary Share. Looking back on 2019, we have
achieved good results in various tasks. On behalf of the Group,
| sincerely express my gratitude to our team, the customers
who have always given us full trust, and the supplier friends
who have always given us strong support.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

HEHMHBUER
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([A&EM®])BIE2019F 12 A31H IEFE ([ A F
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2019%F » BEX R BEREBEIERE FERY
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In 2020, the momentum of the global economic recovery
will slow down. The foreign trade of China is facing a more
complicated and severe situation, and the domestic economy
will continue to suffer downward pressure. In the future, despite
of many uncertainties and market pressure, the year of 2020 is
the closing year of building a moderately prosperous society in
an all-round way and the 13th Five-Year Plan of China, and the
year of 2021 is also the 100th anniversary of the founding of
the Chinese Communist Party. The commercial vehicle industry
will benefit from the macroeconomic control policies, and it is
expected that the commercial vehicle market will maintain high
volatility and increase steadily in the next two years.

Looking forward, the year of 2020 will witness an overall growth
and be the first year for Tianrui to embrace reform, and the
Group is confident of the stable development of all businesses.
The Group enjoys a complementary advantage between the
commercial vehicle business closely related to macroeconomic
investments and the passenger vehicles business closely
related to individual consumption. In October 2019, the Group
completed the on-site review of the supplier list for 9 assembly
products under BYD, which was conducive to the prudent
expansion of the businesses in the passenger vehicle market.
It is expected that the Group will maintain the business growth
and profitability in the coming 3 to 5 years.

In addition, the Group formally adopted the Tianrui Excellent
Management System Project (“TES”) in 2019, for the purpose
of enhancing the management level in terms of leadership,
research and development, production, relationship with
customers and suppliers and employee incentives. Meanwhile,
the Group further improved its technologies through
introduction of slush-molding lines, cold knife reduction
and closed foam lines, equipment automation upgrading
and establishment of CNAS laboratories, forging a unique
competitive edge in terms of products, technologies, quality,
brands, costs, delivery schedule and services.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our honorable shareholders.
The Group will take priority in promoting sustainable
development and constantly improving business management
by grasping market opportunities, bringing into full play of its
advantages and firmly adhering to the philosophy of “Pursuit of
Excellence through Cooperation and Reform”. By implementing
the TES and further increasing its competiveness, the Group is
committed to promoting its long-term and sound development,
transformation and reform, so as to create greater value to
reward the support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

27 March 2020

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and

SRR PR

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Automotive ownership in the PRC increased rapidly amid
China’s rapid economic growth, continuing urbanization and
increasing levels of household consumption. The growth of
the heavy trucks and passenger vehicles’ interior decorative
product markets in the PRC are mainly driven by the following
growth drivers: (i) increase in popularity of passenger vehicles
and wide application of heavy trucks; (ii) increase in demand
from logistics industry and construction industry; (iii) higher
requirements for comfort; and (iv) regulatory control and policy
support. The Board expects that automotive interior products
market in the PRC is expected to maintain growth as China’s
automotive ownership to grow.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are the largest heavy trucks’ interior decorative components
and parts manufacturer in North West China with a market-
leading position. Our products primarily comprise a wide
array of automotive interior decorative components and parts
and to a lesser extent exterior decorative components and
parts, which are designed to be installed on heavy trucks
or passenger vehicles. We offer design and development
solutions tailored to meet our customers’ specific requirements
of automotive interior decorative products including functional
specifications and appearance.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR PR

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of automotive interior and exterior decorative components
and parts. Set forth below is the breakdown of our revenue by
product category for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018:

AEBFERERERINEHTIMHFRIERIHE -
TE&HFHN2019 E£R2018EFE12 A31H I EFiLE
mIBRIEI D Z B PIRUA

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥T T % ARBTT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative BRI REEMHT I
components and parts 254,732 85.5 238,896 90.6
Passenger vehicles’ decorative  SEFAEEH AT P14
components and parts 43,175 145 24,924 9.4
Total #ET 297,907 100.0 263,820 100.0
Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative BERFEEMGTHHHEEEZRA
components and parts
Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative HEZBARERMEHHFELENWAREZE2018

components and parts increased from approximately
RMB238.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RMB254.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of approximately
6.6%, mainly due to the increasing customers demand of our
Group’s heavy trucks’ decorative components and parts, which
was principally attributable to the increase in construction and
industrial activities. Since heavy trucks were widely applied in
infrastructure construction and logistics industries while the
construction and logistics industries were stimulated by the
policies such as “One Belt, One Road” and “Yangtze River
Economic Zone”, there has been a constant increase in the
demand for heavy trucks.

F12A31B EFENHARKIIBIEETLIEEH
FE2019F12A31AEFEMPHARKE2547EE
T IR B6.6% 0 EEMRMNBRERT ¥IEEE
IMEEEPEH RSB SR REEMT IR KL
ﬂuﬁﬁéﬁz AREZEMRTEZ & —KIR &

TEEETS JEHORRIS - ERRBEEERREE

ﬁx&%uwTT%qﬂ EZER  EhER-RENEKRE
BN o
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Management Discussion and

SRR PR

Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts increased from
approximately RMB24.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB43.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 73.2%. Such increase was mainly due to our
expanded customer base and new relationships with first-tier
and/or multi-tier suppliers that supply automotive decorative
products to passenger vehicle manufacturers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue increased from approximately RMB263.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB297.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of approximately 12.9%. The increase
was primarily due to growth in sales of our heavy trucks’
decorative components and parts and passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit increased from approximately RMB89.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB101.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of approximately 12.5%. Such
increase was generally in line with the increase in revenue for
the same period. Our overall gross profit margin decreased
slightly from approximately 34.1% in 2018 to approximately
34.0% in 2019. Such decrease was mainly due to the increase
in proportion of our Group’s sales for passenger vehicle
decorative components and parts to first-tier and/or multi-tier
suppliers.

Other income/(loss)

We recorded other income of approximately RMB6.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 compared to other
loss of approximately RMBO0.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. Such change was primarily due to (i) net
foreign exchange losses of approximately RMB2.8 million
resulting from consideration payable for acquiring Xian Tianrui
Automotive Interiors Co., Ltd. (the “Xian Tianrui”) in 2018; and
(ii) increase in government grants of approximately RMB2.2
million, mainly due to listing subsidies which were recognised
as other income in 2019.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR PR

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased from approximately RMB7.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB9.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of approximately 27.3%. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in transportation costs
from approximately RMB2.8 million in 2018 to approximately
RMB4.6 million in 2019, primarily attributable to the increase in
our sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RMB40.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing a decrease of approximately
3.0%. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) decrease in listing
expenses in 2019 of approximately RMB8.4 million; which was
partially offset by (ii) increase in research and development
expenses in 2019 of approximately RMB4.7 million; and (iii)
increase in impairment losses on trade receivable in 2019 of
approximately RMB2.9 million.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased from approximately RMB7.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB5.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 24.5%, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in our weighted average
balance of bank and other loans during 2019.

HEMX

HERT N E2018FE12A31AIFEENHAR
K7 SE BT EEE2019F 12 A31 A ILEE ML
ARMBOIEETL  EIEXHE27.3% ° ZENEE
R IR 2 IEBUEH K A H2018F Y
MARE2 SHEB T E2019FHHOARKLIEHE
TURTEL

THREX

TR HEZE2018F12A31B IFFENHOAR
A1 6 BT EEE2019F 12 A31B L FEEH
PWAREL0.3FET BiIEAR3.0% ZRDEE
MR () 2019F L MEARASY RO HOARBE4EE
TG WA T S IEI IS ¢ (i) 2019F 2 F 2 18
MOARBEATEETT » R (i) R2019F 8 FEK
FEREBEREERIEMOARB2IHE T -

B AR

B TSR AN B E 201812 A31 B IFEFEEHIAR
7 6EBITREHZE2019F 12 A31B ILEENLY
ARBSTEEIT  BIRLR245% - ZBLEE
EAR2019F R MARIT R EME F NS 5%
R ADFTER ©
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Management Discussion and

SRR PR

Income tax

Our income tax expense increased from approximately
RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing an increase of approximately 46.6%.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in profit before
tax for the period. The effective tax rates decreased from
approximately 14.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately 13.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019,
mainly due to the combined effect of (i) increase of qualified
research and development costs allowed for bonus deduction
and (ii) foreign exchange loss for acquisition of Xian Tianrui in
2018, which is non-deductible for tax purpose.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year increased
from approximately RMB28.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB44.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 60.0%.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group’s business operations are primarily financed by cash
generated from operating activities, net proceeds received from
the global offering of the Company completed in January 2019
and bank and other loans. As of 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB30.2 million and RMB13.4 million, respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balance on a
regular basis and seeks to maintain optimal level of liquidity
that can meet the working capital needs while supporting a
healthy level of business and its various growth strategies.

Bank and Other Loans

Our bank and other loans increased from approximately
RMB52.8 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB78.1 million as at 31 December 2019. Bank and other
loans in the amounts of approximately RMB78.1 million (2018:
approximately RMB 52.8 million) were secured by trade and
bills receivables, property, plant and equipment of the Group.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR PR

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 were at
45.7% and 33.8% , respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as at
the end of the respective year. Total debts include all interest-
bearing bank and other loans.

Inventories

Our inventories increased from approximately RMB27.3
million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB60.8
million as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase
of approximately 123.2%. Such increase was mainly due to
an increase of production activities and scale in response to
our business growth and the raw materials accumulated for
processing certain sales orders to be delivered after the Lunar
New Year in 2020.

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment

Our prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment increased from approximately RMB9.3 million as at
31 December 2018 to approximately RMB23.0 million as at 31
December 2019, representing an increase of approximately
146.3%. Such increase was mainly due to our expansion in
production facility to cope with our business growth.

Secured Assets
Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by the
following assets of the Group:

EXREEHER
R2018FE K 2019E 12 A31H » BB ELE5H 5
545.7% 5% 33.8% °

ERNBELFHEEREFRNEHABER U EDE
B BERERERMBBERITRAEMER -

EE

FEM2018F12A31BHMHN AR 27 3EETIE
F2019F12A31HMH ARK60.8BE T - iR
#E123.2% - ZIWMEBRANBEHEELER
3G A EEBAEARER - REERMEA T
R2020F BB F RN E TIHERTEME -

BEWE  BERRBZANTE

BEME  WEREMH 2B FIAEN2018F 128
STHMHARKIIFEE LIEE2019F 128318
HARBE23.0EETT » BIBHIA146.3% © :ZIE N
FE AN ARIPIET A a8 LA E X S5 R AR 18
DRFTEL o

BIEREE
A BB TR R E R A A T AR
VBT -

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 76,615 57,060
Lease prepayments MEENFKIEAE — 9,486
Trade and bills receivables B ZEWGRIE R EWEE 46,718 41,241
123,333 107,787
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Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2019, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB31.3 million (2018: approximately RMB34.1
million). The capital expenditure incurred for the year ended
31 December 2019 primarily related to the construction of new
plants and the purchase of new machinery and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments in respect
of property, plant and equipment contracted for approximately
RMB39.1 million (2018: approximately RMB34.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2018: RMBNIil).

FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank borrowings
are denominated and accounted for in RMB. Therefore, the
Group does not have significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation.

The Board does not expect the fluctuation of RMB exchange
rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations will have material
impact on the business operations or financial results of the
Group. The Group will closely monitor the foreign exchange
market and take appropriate and effective measures from time
to time to reduce any negative impact from exchange-rate risk
to the furthest extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB10,825,000),
representing HK$0.6 cents per ordinary Share, for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The proposed final dividend is
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annuall
general meeting.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

Analysis
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 540 full time
employees (2018: 425). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group incurred total staff costs of approximately RMB40.7
million (2018: approximately RMB29.8 million), representing an
increase of approximately 36.7% as compared with those in
2018.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications, competence displayed and market comparable.
Remuneration package typically comprises salaries and other
benefits, discretionary bonuses, retirement benefits scheme
contributions.

In order to retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and
quality of our employees, the Group places a strong emphasis
on training our employees. In addition, the Group offers a
competitive remuneration package to retain elite employees,
and reviews the package annually according to industry
benchmark and financial results as well as the individual
performance of employees.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
15 January 2019 (the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds from
the Company'’s issue of new shares in the global offering, after
deducting the underwriting commission and other related listing
expenses payable by the Company in relation to the global
offering, amounted to approximately HK$82.1 million, which are
intended to be applied in compliance with the intended use of
proceeds set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” contained in the Prospectus.

B8 & FHMBUER

HZE2019F 128310 - AEEHKBF5402 2 HiE
B (20184 : 425%) « HE2019F 124310 L4
[ AEEEENE TRAZREN A ARKE4L40.7
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20184 1E h1%J36.7% ©
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g AEEBETIEREET © MI  NEEEH
EBRFONFHEEARBESREES - WRETE
ELE K B 15 548 DA K (B B R0 (B 51|21 3R S Hr BN B
TTHEEERM -

FR8RIE AR

ARRFP2019F1 158 ([ LM B8 D EFEHA
RPAERRR([BR) LT » RRR2IREE
BITHRDEHREHME AR R REERE
FEE A ARRE £ SR MY PSSR F B K 3821
BEBT  AREERRBEHRRERS RS R
PRISFARE | — B TSl B BEPT 1S SRR B ER &
EE e

ANNUAL REPORT 43 2019 15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR PR

During the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 December
2019, the Group has applied the net proceeds as follows:

B T AHREZE2019F 12831 A ILHIR - AEF

ERMBRIEFRARN TR

Proposed use of Actual
net proceeds as set usage up to Balance as at
out in the Prospectus 31 December 2019 31 December 2019
RRERFIIFE #ZE2019% 20196
NEFHEEERE 12A%10BRAR 12A31 At
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER BEET BEER
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
(#4) (#4) (##)
Improving the production capabiliies and capacity ReELEHRNRES 34.7 17.7 17.0
Partial repayment of bank loans BEBHRITER 14.4 14.4 —
Enhancing the research and development capabilities ~ $2=H24E 7 11.9 6.3 5.6
Improving and widening the product offerings W& REREMGRE 8.9 8.9 —
Establishing new offices and warehouses including BRUMNERREE - BIE
the hiring of new salespersons and optimising and ERFNHEASUR
upgrading the information systems BIERFARERRS 39 35 04
General working capital —fReEES 8.3 83 —
Total @5t 82.1 59.1 23.0

The unused balance of the proceeds was placed as deposits
with banks.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company does not
anticipate any change to its plan on the use of proceeds as
stated in the Prospectus.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note
28 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the future, due to the development
campaign of western regions (FAZf AR %) adopted in this
area which would spur the development of infrastructure,
such as transportation, energy, telecommunications, etc.;
and considering that Shaanxi Government will raise a special
industrial fund of RMB4.0 billion to expedite the automotive
industry, the Group will capitalize on this opportunity and
continue to strengthen new product development with existing
customers, actively expand new passenger vehicle customers,
continuously diversify product mix and enhance core
competitiveness.

We have passed the evaluation of a passenger vehicles
manufacturer and have been qualified as one of the approved
suppliers for certain passenger vehicle decorative products.
To this end, we will continue to devote additional resources
into our research and development activities, optimize the
management system and increase operating efficiency
to complete transformation and change, and make new
achievements. At the same time, we were selected into the
list of the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia prevention and
control companies announced by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology and will enjoy relevant preferential
policies such as financial discounts. We will capture the
emerging opportunities to carry out the production of medical
goggles projects and will use the opportunities to actively
identify partners for joint development and achieve sustainable
and long-term business growth.

AREE

RERR - BRI E B e bR
ERIBESR - 2R - EEFERER  RERIIK
AEBNKNEEEXTEE S ARKIETRE
FEERERFIR  ARESELMESEE IR
Eﬁifﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁuuﬁaﬂ?‘ ERARFAENTP -
TEHLEERMES  WEZLEFH -

BAELmE - FRBERERENA a8 ER
RRERD RAERHERBANHERZ— 5
It HAIRFEMAHEERRA - BLEEER
MAELEME - SEREIEES - BRIEE - [
B E P AR T2 A5 BL AR 2B b & 3 e il A4
RIEMZEERRECEREY F X MM S FHE
BEBGR - B B eRRERER R
HAEBER - WHMAEZBERYESIERH - A
ERREER - BREBOHAFERPEER -
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli ({RZF)), aged 56, is one of the founders of our
Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the
chief executive officer and the general manager of our Group.
Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall management,
operations, strategic development and business planning of
our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group in May 2009 and has
been acting as executive director and general manager of Xian
Tianrui since then. He was appointed as our Director on 27
April 2017 and was redesignated as our Executive Director on
9 May 2018. Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January 2000,
Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop deputy
director, branch manager, chief engineer and head of the
composite packaging materials research institute of PrFg4
S8 MR (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery Factory*).
Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal representative
and director of B ™ X B E AR A 7 (Baoji Tianxiang
Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*) .

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (BX7g
T £2Bz) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology (&
FAIE T KE)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in industrial
electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen, who is our Controlling
Shareholder, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group.

Ms. Chen Bierui (B 5I#i), aged 58, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group. Ms. Chen is mainly responsible for
administrative management and business operation of our
Group. Ms. Chen joined our Group in May 2009, she was
appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017 and redesignated
as our Executive Director on 9 May 2018. Ms. Chen is also a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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Ms. Chen possesses over 10 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to May 1996,
Ms. Chen served as a general staff in BRPE & 4 88 # W R
(Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery Factory*). Ms. Chen
also possesses over 20 years of experience in the information
technology industry. From June 1996 to December 2016, Ms.
Chen served as director of information engineering department
and deputy director of municipal agricultural information
centre of B M RILE BT (Baoji City Scientific and
Technological Information Research Institute™).

Ms. Chen graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (B
FHT EBx) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology (B
FAE I KE)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in industrial
electronic automation in July 1985.

Ms. Chen is the spouse of Mr. Hou, who is our Controlling
Shareholder, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board,
the chief executive officer and the general manager of our
Group.

Mr. Zhao Shijie (- £¢), aged 37, is our Executive Director,
the chief financial officer of our Group, the secretary of
our Board and one of the joint company secretaries of our
Company. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for the accounting
and financial management of our Group and assisting our
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Zhao joined our
Group in June 2016. He was appointed as our Director on 27
April 2017 and redesignated as our Executive Director on 9
May 2018.

Mr. Zhao has over 13 years of experience in accounting. From
July 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Zhao served as project assistant
and project manager at the Chongqging branch of Pan-China
Certified Public Accountants LLP (K25 E 7). From
August 2011 to May 2016, Mr. Zhao served as deputy general
manager and chief financial officer of 4t 5 Z 37 IF 12 B& R 25
f&1nBBR 2] (Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co.,
Ltd*), the shares of which were listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 1858).

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Chongaing University (B A2 ) in the PRC in June 2006.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Hongqiang (% #L5& ), aged 50, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Company and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Zhu has over 18 years of experience in legal
practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi Yongjia Law Firm (PXZg
KIERENEEFT) in October 2001 as a lawyer and the deputy
director and is currently a partner of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (it BUAERR ) (now known as
Northwest University of Political Science and Law ( A1t BUA
KE)) through self-study higher education examination (/&
EHEBEZEH) in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Zhu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law from Evening College of Xi'an
Technological Institute (FAZ T %267 ) (now known as Xi'an
Technological University (FZ T K&)) in the PRC in July
2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC lawyer by the Shaanxi
Provincial Department of Justice (k754 5);%5E2) in October
2001.

Mr. Zhou Genshu (AR #), aged 55, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December 2018 and
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Zhou has over 24
years of experience in the education industry. Since November
1995, he worked in the School of Materials Science and
Engineering of Xi'an Jiaotong University ( 8% 22 8 K24 BLHE
B T 2207 ) successively as associate professor, professor
and doctorial supervisor and is mainly responsible for lecturing
and material science research. During such period, he has
hosted several important scientific research projects and
published academic papers on reputable scientific journals.
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Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in foundry engineering
and a master’s degree in foundry engineering from Tsinghua
University (J/BZEXZ) in July 1986 and August 1989
respectively. He obtained a doctoral degree in foundry
engineering from Northwestern Poly-technical University (78
1t T2 KE) in October 1993. He obtained a post-doctoral
certificate in material science and engineering from National
Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (2B A EIRLZE <€)
in December 1995. He serves as the committee member and
secretary of the Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology
Committee of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society
(FEAEESeHRATHHEERMTEZESF) since October
2006, the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society ( H B# %
TRESHEIRHE) since July 2015 and the chairman of the
Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the Shaanxi Provincial
Mechanical Engineering Society (PRFa& #iH TIZE2 2tk &
E RIS € ) since March 2016. He has been granted several
awards including the third prize of Shaanxi Province Science
and Technology Award, the second prize of Xi'an City Science
and Technology Award, the second prize of Chinese University
Science and Technology Award and the Technology Innovation
Award of Heat Treatment Society.

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (%% ), aged 51, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December 2018
and is also a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Shin possesses
over 29 years experience in finance and investment banking.

Mr. Shin is currently an independent non-executive director of
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited(stock code:
3363), China Automobile New Retail (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 526) and Newton Resources Limited (stock code: 1231),
a non-executive director of Pak Tak International Limited (stock
code: 2668), those companies being listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, a non-executive director
of BIO-key International, Inc. (NASDAQ: BKYI), a company
whose shares are traded at the Nasdaq stock market of the
United States, and an independent director of Olympic Circuit
Technology Co.,Ltd (stock code: 603920), a company being
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He was a senior
consultant of a China-based securities company from June
2018 to January 2019, the chief executive officer of a private
corporate financial company from July 2015 to May 2018 and
the deputy chief executive officer of CMB International Capital
Corporation Limited from February 2010 to July 2015. Prior
to joining CMB International Capital Corporation Limited, he
worked in several investment banks in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Shin was an independent non-executive director of
Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 3638) from
30 September 2016 to 2 October 2018 and an independent
non-executive director of China Shun Ke Long Holdings Limited
(stock code: 974) from 19 August 2015 to 31 October 2018.

Mr. Shin graduated from the University of Birmingham in
England with a bachelor’s degree in commerce in July 1990.
After graduation, he worked in the audit department of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. He had also worked in a listed company in
Hong Kong as group financial controller. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli ({RZF)), aged 56, is one of the founders of our
Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the
chief executive officer and the general manager of our Group.
For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors” in this section above.

Ms. Chen Bierui (B 5I#i), aged 58, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section above.

Mr. Zhao Shijie (#tt£%), aged 37, is our Executive Director,
the chief financial officer of our Group, secretary of our Board
and joint company secretary of our Company. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above.
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Mr. Xu Yunhua (&%), aged 42, is our sales director. He is
mainly responsible for sales management of Xian Tianrui. He
joined our Group in September 2010 and had successively
worked as sales supervisor and the head of the sales
department of Xian Tianrui. He was then promoted to the sales
director of Xian Tianrui in February 2019. Mr. Xu is also the
director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Xu has over 16 years of experience in the sales industry.
From August 2003 to September 2010, he worked successively
as a salesman, the assistant section head of the sales
department and the head of the plastic production factory of &
#HMEAE X AR A7 (Baoji Wanhe Enterprise Co., Ltd*).

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School (&
#2248 )(now known as Baiji Vocational and Technical
College (EZ B3 BT )) in July 1997.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Shijie (#tt#), aged 37, was appointed as one of
our joint company secretaries of our Company on 9 May 2018.
He is also our Executive Director, the chief financial officer of
our Group and the secretary of our Board. For his qualifications
and experience, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors” in this section.
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Mr. Ip Pui Sum (Z51#), aged 60, was appointed as one of
our joint company secretaries of our Company on 9 May 2018.
Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified
Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope of services
include the provision of financial statement audit, accounting
and company secretary services. Mr. Ip has been appointed
as the company secretary of various companies listed on the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange including Tingyi
(Cayman Islands) Holding Group (stock code: 322), Luoyang
Glass Company Limited (stock code: 1108), Orient Victory
Travel Group Company Limited (stock code: 0265), Beijing
Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd. (stock code:
1858), Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 1121) and Asiaray Media Group Limited
(stock code: 1993) since January 1996, August 2008, October
2014, March 2015, April 2017 and June 2017 respectively and
one of the joint company secretaries of ZACD Group Ltd. (stock
code: 8313) since July 2017.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNMENT CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet business
needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our Company has
adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of our Company’s corporate
governance practices. The Corporate Governance Code has
been applicable to our Company with effect from the Listing
Date, save for the following deviation:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the role of chairman and the chief executive should
be segregated and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli currently performs the roles
as the chairman and general manager. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and general manager in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within our Group and enables more efficient overall strategic
planning for our Group. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority will not be impaired by the present
arrangement and this structure will enable our Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. After
taking into account the overall circumstances of our Group, the
Board will continue to review and consider whether the duties
of the chairman and general manager should be separated.

Save as disclosed above, our Company will comply with
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance policies and compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code each financial year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board has established
three Board committees, being the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of the
Company’s affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Bierui

Mr. Zhao Shijie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 18 to 24 in the annual report. A list of the Directors
identifying their role and function and whether they are
independent non-executive Directors are available on the
Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing from 15 January 2019
for an initial term of three years unless terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing to the
other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 15 January 2019 unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.

The relationship of the chairman and general manager Mr. Hou
Jianli and Executive Director Ms. Chen Bierui is husband and
wife. Other than that, there is no financial, business or other
material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans for
profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing plans for
the increase or decrease in registered capital, and exercising
other power, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles
of Association. Each of our Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Company, and
the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management. The Board also reviews
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with reasonable
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Company. Every newly appointed Director receives an
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is
fully aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under
applicable rules and requirements.

The Company has been encouraging the Directors to enrol in a
wide range of professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
or act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills. In addition,
briefings and updates on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
are provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive director has submitted annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of
such confirmations, the Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has
its defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are respectively available on the
Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources

to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the audit committee on 18 December
2018 with its written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors; review the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting; and
oversee internal control procedures of our Company.

Our audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Zhou Genshu, Mr. Shin Yick Fabian and Mr. Zhu Honggiang.
Mr. Zhou Genshu is the chairman of our audit committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and the year ended 31 December 2019,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Company, report prepared by the external auditors covering
major findings in the course of the audit, the risk management
and internal control systems and the overall effectiveness of
the Company’s internal audit function and the accounting and
financial reporting matters, and selection and appointment of
the external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the remuneration committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph
B.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to
all Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration.
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Our remuneration committee comprises three members, RFFMEESH=RKBHEMK - BEIKRATGR L -
namely, Mr. Zhu Honggiang , Mr. Zhou Genshu and Ms. Chen IR Se 4 KR RIS L o SRAT IR St 4 AT P HT BN
Bierui. Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of our remuneration ZE&XJF o

committee.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one &K HFHEESY
meeting. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the ZEHEBEEEZLKAR
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors and 1 °

senior management of the Company.

RIT—REH - FHZEE
A= AR E IR B AR N BUOR K2R

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EERSNEEESMH

MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent AARCHEEAEBREZERSREEBHHOH
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of R IEXN R EFBRAENRET - REIZE20195F12
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the  AS31BILFE - S EENHFIFISHE N AN ERES
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31  ##RKMIE8 o

December 2019 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements

in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed inthe SREEENERERENAGEHEENSREE
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior  EBFEE |—&1 - REZE2019F12A31HILFE &
Management” in this annual report. The remuneration of the — fZEIREBAFEAER T

senior management by band for the year ended 31 December

2019 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$) Number of individuals
4RI (B T) AE
0 — 1,000,000 1

1,000,001 — 1,500,000 —
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the nomination committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors.

Our nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hou Jianli, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. Mr.
Hou Jianli is the chairman of our nomination committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition
of the Board and assessed independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”).The Nomination Committee will assess
the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as education
background, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary.
Also, the Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the table below. The Directors did
not authorize any alternate Director to attend Board or Board
Committee meetings.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings HERER SEBRE
Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
EEng EREES FHEES REZES By REEFAE
Mr. Hou Jianli N/A N/A 11 4/4 171
Seviibitea TEA AN A
Ms. Chen Bierui N/A 11 N/A 4/4 11
BRAIEE 22+ AN A ANiE A
Mr. Zhao Shijie N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
A A T EA TEA TEHA
Mr. Zhu Honggiang 2/2 11 N/A 4/4 11
KA HE E
Mr. Zhou Genshu 2/2 11 11 4/4 11
BRI S
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian 2/2 N/A 11 4/4 11
K E NiE R
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BOARD MEETINGS

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by the
chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is unable to
attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another Director
by a written power of attorney to attend on his behalf. Such
a power of attorney shall specify the scope of authorization.
Directors attending Board meetings on behalf of other directors
shall exercise their power as directors within their scope of
authorization. If a Director fails to attend a Board meeting and
does not appoint an attorney to attend, the Director is deemed
to have waived his rights to vote at that meeting. Each Director
shall have one vote. Questions arising at any meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be determined by a majority of votes.
Where the numbers of votes cast for and against a resolution
are equal, the chairman shall have the right to cast an
additional vote.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ and employees’
securities transactions. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
and members of the senior management confirmed that they
have complied with the relevant provisions of the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the
Company appointed Mr. Zhao Shijie (Executive Director)
and Mr. Ip Pui Sum as the joint company secretaries. Mr. Ip
Pui Sum assists Mr. Zhao Shijie in performing his duties as
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhao Shijie is the
main contact person of the Company. The joint company
secretaries confirmed having received no less than 15 hours’ of
professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and the interests of Shareholders. We have
put in place a set of internal control and risk management
protocols to address various operational, financial, legal and
market risks identified in relation to our operations, including
but not limited to procurement and sales management,
inventory management, research and development
management, credit risk management, and various other
financial and operational control and monitoring procedures.
Our risk management protocols and policies set forth
procedures to identify, categorize, analyze and mitigate various
risks and the relevant reporting hierarchy of risks identified
in our operations. In respect of the year ended 31 December
2019, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company, believing that the internal control system is effective
and adequate.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services performed by
KPMG and considered that such services have no adverse
effect on the independence of the external auditor.

The Group was charged RMB1.8 million and RMB50,000 by
KPMG for auditing and non-auditing services respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The non-auditing services
mainly consist of counting services.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the year under review.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Our Company will appoint Innovax Capital as our compliance
adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant
to Rule 3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the compliance adviser will
advise our Company in the following circumstances:

(1) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(2) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction under the Listing Rules, is
contemplated by our Group, including but not limited to
share issues and share repurchases;

(8) where our Company proposes to use the proceeds of the
Global Offering in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where our business activities,
developments or results deviate from any forecast,
estimate, or other information in the Prospectus; and

(4) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of our
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of our Shares or any other matters under
Rules 13.10 of the Listing Rules.

The term of this appointment of the compliance adviser shall
commence on the Listing Date and is expected to end on the
date on which our Company complies with Rule 13.46 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the financial results for the first full
financial year commencing after the Listing Date and such
appointment may be subject to extension by mutual agreement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held
in each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM").
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or a Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company by
mail to 9/F., MW Tower, No. 111 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.trgcns.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted with
effect from the Listing Date. As at the date of this report, no
change has been made to the Articles of Association after the
Listing Date.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and the Company’s
management will provide information and explanation to
the Board to enable it to make informed assessments of the
financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual
report.
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SUMMARY

This report is the second Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) annual report issued by the Group. This
report covers the work in the financial year from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

PREPARATION BASIS

The Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. The ESG report is intended to provide environmental
performance and social performance of the Group during the
Reporting Period, mainly including the environmental and social
issues related to the sustainable development of the Group
which the stakeholders concern, so that key stakeholders
can better understand the Group’s sustainable development
concepts, measures and related performance, etc.

SCOPE AND EXTENT OF REPORT
Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data in
this report basically cover the Company and its subsidiaries.

DATA SOURCE AND RELIABILITY ASSURANCE

The data and cases of this report are mainly derived from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. There is
no false record or misleading statement in this report and we
shall be liable for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness
of the report.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Group expects to respond to concerns of different
stakeholders on our performance of environmental and social
responsibilities through the ESG report, and incorporate the
opinions of various stakeholders into the management of
corporate sustainability. If the stakeholders have any comments
on the contents of the Group’s ESG report, please feel free to
send a letter to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong
to contact the company secretary of the Company: 9/F., MW
Tower, No. 111 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

As confirmed by the management, this report was approved by

the board of directors on 27 March 2020.

1.

Key Achievements of the Performance of ESG in 2019

e » & » 9

Environment

9
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Employees Products
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Social responsibilities

RE

Investment of over
RMB 1.2 million for
environmental
improvement
BABBARE1208
TRARBESE

Waste water discharge
intensity | 0.02%

BOKHEREE | 0.02%

Greenhouse gas emission
intensity | 2.58%
BERBHREE
12.58%

Solid Waste discharge
intensity } 8.76%
EEENHNEE
18.76%

8T
Accumulated  Training
Hours 13,400 hours
D 1E|£2651213,400
N
Proportion of trainees
over 98%
SHIABUELLHE98%

OFatal accident at work

0 ETEEGLEM

ESG Concept of the Group
The Group formulated the concept of ESG development
by building the "2+2" two-wheel driven strategy of
‘commercial vehicles + passenger vehicles supply
chain", based on the Group’s core values of “Integrity,

Concentration,

Innovation and Win-win”

Efm

Development of 207
new products (parts)
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10 New projects under
development

10 {E37EE F%

4 Technical innovations

4 BRER

0 Product recall
0 RERBE

On-site review of
the supplier list for 9
assembly products
under BYD
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“Military Components
Supply Award”granted
by Shaanxi Automobile
Holding
ERARRERRER
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. Under the

guidance of the ESG concept implemented by the Group
through applying the six modules of the Tianrui Excellent
Management System Project (“TES”), tasks are well
done in such aspects as the “top priority to research

and development”,
environment protection”,
development with employees”,

» oo«

quality-oriented”,
quality services
giving back to society”

supremacy of
", “sharing

and “performance of social responsibilities”.
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Charitable donations of
HK$ 1 million

HEERFEE100 BT

Won the“Community
Excellence Award”
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3.1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

To better promote the normalized management of ESG,
implement the ESG strategies and enhance the ESG
related risk control, the Group adopts the three-level
governance structure: the board of directors, the general
manager and ESG working group. The board of directors
is responsible for implementing the ESG management
in a top-down way, the general manager for directly
managing and supervising, and ESG working group for
specific execution of the same.

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness, Quality-
oriented

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity, and attaches importance to its own integrity
establishment. We promote the stable development of an
enterprise featured by ecologically sustainable growth
and strongly objects to monopoly, illegal competition,
destroying of market environment, violation of competition
rules and other unfair competition methods.

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistle-blowing Policy that explicitly requires all of our
employees and other external interested persons to
abide by the anti-corruption laws and regulations of
each jurisdiction, and encourages report the potential
illegal acts of employees, customers, suppliers and other
interested parties. As for the whistle-blowing process,
we have set up a whistle-blowing system and channels
to protect the whistle-blowers from unfair dismissals,
persecution and unnecessary disciplinary actions.

Through induction training for new employees, learning
of employee handbook, irregular training and knowledge
competition, we regulate the behavior of employees,
maintain an atmosphere of integrity and dedication, and
prevent the occurrence of intentional fabrication and
disclosure of trade secrets, corruption, misappropriation,
embezzlement and other acts that damage the interests
of the Group. During the Reporting Period, we were not
involved in any unfair competition or corruption related
lawsuits.
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Integrity: Quality-oriented

3.2.1 Quality concept

The Group has always been committed to strengthening
the enterprise quality awareness education, firmly
establishing the philosophy of “Quality is the foundation
of an enterprise”, and taking providing quality products
as an important part of the construction of enterprise
integrity and as significant obligation of the performance
of social responsibilities. The Group vigorously promotes
the quality management and carries out QC working
group activities, thus improving the effectiveness and
adequacy of the quality management system.

We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as the
Product Quality Law, the Standardization Law, the
Metrology Law, the Law on the Protection of Rights and
Interests of Consumers. We carry out business operations
in accordance with laws, abide by contracts, ensure
quality and firmly object to the selling of sub-quality
products.

During the Reporting Period, the Group introduced the
TES project and integrated the original system mode with
the standard TES, thus creating a unique TES system of
the Group, which is currently in implementation and trial
operation.
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3.2.2 Control of incoming material quality

We conducted incoming sampling and quality check
on raw purchased materials, out-sourced parts and
other products in accordance with the GB2828.1-2012
Standard, Regulations on Purchase Control Management
(GEEEHEIERTEY) and Guide Book for Testing of
Incoming Materials. We determined whether the products
are qualified or not on the principle of zero-defect,
i.e. only the products without defect are accepted. In
exceptional circumstances, some of the defects without
effect on product quality are accepted after the review
and approval of the responsible persons and leaders
of the relevant departments. Meanwhile, close attention
of the SQE and inspectors are called to the product
passing rates involving the materials with concessionary
acceptance. For incoming material with defects, the
SQE will give feedbacks to the suppler and require it
provide an 8D rectification report in respect thereof. We
carry out regular review and performance assessment
on our suppliers for the control of the quality of incoming
materials. The statistics of incoming material inspection
are submitted to the relevant departments as the basis for
the incoming material quality control and management.
We participate in the process of optimization of logistics
control link and put forward suggestions and opinions on
the process of optimization of logistic control and material
inspection.

3.2.3 Process quality control

In the production process, we identify the conformity and
consistency of product quality through initial inspection,
self-inspection, mutual inspection, special inspection
and tests. Any non-conforming products identified shall
be handled in accordance with the “Nonconforming
Product Control Procedure”, and the QRQC up-going
process shall be implemented to immediately suspend
the production of non-conforming products and take
response measures to resume production as soon as
possible, thus reducing the downtime of the production
lines. All products are delivered to customers only after
passing the inspection and the outer cartons are posted
with identification cards and the identification cards are
stamped with qualification seals.
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In quality control process, we imbue the QA staff with
8D ideas, namely description of questions, provisional
measures, analysis of fundamental causes, long-
term rectification measures, evaluation of rectification
measures, measures for prevention of recurrence. We
intensify the process inspection and strictly perform
the requirements for process, SOP and SIP; adhere to
civilized production and balance production; analyze
the quality process capacity by applying statistical
techniques such as SPC and CPK, and the monitoring
and measurement systems applying MSA to get the
dynamic quality; analyze the potential failure mode
of FMEA and the consequence thereof at the project
design and process design stages, and take measures
as necessarily regarding the risk priority number and
the failure mode with higher risks, so as to eliminate or
reduce the probability of the occurrence of failure mode;
make identification or product labeling and traceability
process, strengthen management and verify control of
status, should the process outputs can’t be verified by
subsequent monitoring and measurement, i.e. in case of
special process; establish and improve process quality
control points by applying quality control methods;
identify, verify, protect and maintain customers’ properties
used by us, or constituting part of the products, and
stipulate and implement product protection; and analyze
the statistics regarding the quality cost in the production
process.

During the Reporting Period, we implemented the 4M (i.e.
the staff, equipment, materials, and operating methods)
management of change, management of quality warning
cards, improved a number of evaluation modules
regarding quality, and refined and updated the inspection
instructions, which significantly improved the client
quality.

3.2.4 Quick response to quality issues

To safeguard the health and safety of customers and
prevent and eliminate the risk of potential product defects
in the use of the products, we clearly formulated the
detailed procedures for product recall in accordance with
the Product Recall Management System of the Group.
If there is any product defect in our products, we will
carry out investigations within 24 hours. If any product is
required to be recalled, we will develop and implement
the recall plan in accordance with the management
system and plan.
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The Group developed the proactive reporting system for
quality-related safety accidents and strictly implemented
the quality and safety accountability system, thereby
preventing the unexpected use or delivery of non-
performing products. The department concerned will
arrange emergency recall in a timely manner upon receipt
of information for the products issues, while the quality
department will analyze the causes for the product recall,
take measures to prevent reoccurrence of the issues, and
finally make proper disposal of the products concerned.
After the products are recalled, we will repair them. The
products repaired by us will be downgraded for use if
they are qualified, otherwise they will be scrapped.

During the Reporting Period, we had no material product
recall due to product quality problems.

3.2.5 Continuous improvement in quality

We have constantly strengthened the quality
management culture and system, improved the technical
quality of production equipment, integrated resources
and increased investment. In accordance with the
requirements of CNAS, we have improved the laboratory
environment, guaranteed the objective product evaluation
and performed real-time monitoring of the laboratory
environment to ensure the product quality.

Pursuant to the requirements
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recognized by CNAS, we
improved the laboratory lighting
to greatly increase the accuracy
of testing results and enhance
the cleanness our laboratory.
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We replaced the original
temperature and humidity
display instruments with digital
ones, thereby improving the
environmental monitoring
methods adopted by testers,
and reducing their workload,
providing an audio-visual
monitoring.
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Upgrading of inspection equipment and minimizing risks from use of products

WRREA AR - REERERARR

As the hardware for product quality inspection, the inspection equipment serves as a necessary means
for product quality control and precondition for ensuring product quality. During the Reporting Period,
we added 14 machines to our laboratory facilities (including ozone aging chamber, tensile testing
machine, automotive interiors combustion tester, water-cooled xenon lamp aging chamber, ect.), with a
total of 25 machines, thus improving the ex-factory quality and minimizing risks from use of products.

WARBIESEREERANEN  RERESRHNLETE  LEEMEERENARIGMT - ®EH
w - RPN ERREER 148 (10 i%%1t‘ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%‘fﬁ%ﬁ%~E%EWﬁﬁ%k%kﬁW%ﬁ{% KM

BZHABMESE) - RBUZTI25H - ItRR

Ozone aging chamber: stimulate the aging process of
products under the effect of ozone which is
accelerated by environmental factors to test the aging
resistance of products.

REZHARM  BERRENFRMEERKRSA
i - ARERMEE -

Automotive interiors combustion tester: judge the
combustion ability of the test samplesfrom the state,
flame color and odour in flammability testing.
MERHRERRE  BBRESRONRE - G
- RRFEIRAIEA AR S -

EmbMATNEE @ [HEERERRR

Tensile testing machine: perform quality control on
raw materials to test their curvature, tensile strength,
adhesive strength, etc.

WARBE - SHERMENEEES - HEHE
H IR KRS

Water-cooled xenon lamp aging chamber: stimulate
the full sunlight spectrum to reproduce destructive light
waves under different conditions, thereby providing
acceleration tests for the development and quality
control of products.

mEE RS - RR2EEAEBRIRRE 7
BRI IR - REMAENE BEHIRMERES
Iz -
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Z=EAD
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notarization capability of a laboratory.

calibrationand testing market.

g Hbj]ajnu
EREERENMFETIZNRTN

Proposed construction of a CNAS laboratory

REZCNASERE

CNAS (China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment) represents the technical capacity in making
calibrationand testing in accordance with relevant international standards, and the recognition of the testing and

The Group intends to initiate the construction of a CNAS laboratory in 2020, thereby improving the management level of
laboratory, enhancing the quality inspection standards, and increasing the competitiveness of our laboratory in

CNASRT] - AHEAERTEERRAZ 8 (China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment -
CNAS)## X iﬁ'ﬁ TR AERTEAARRABREREETRERHANRNEE S  TREERENAFENTR

$‘§IT§§BA2020¢E%11 BRRCNASERE @ Lt ARH - ARULRSERENEIRKT - RALSERRELE  HiRS

3.2.6 Quality achievements

We continuously monitor and control the quality of our
products throughout the entire product development
and production process to ensure that our products are
of superior quality and that our customers can install
them smoothly. We have been awarded the IATF16949
Automotive Industry Quality Management System
Certification and CCC certification. During the Reporting
Period, Baoji Qinrui Automotive Interiors Co., Ltd (B % &
S E N ERR A F) (“Baoji Qinrui”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has successfully passed the
IATF16949 System Certification.

I K 540 %

samnime, Tyedy, s g

3.2.6 EERH

BEREEERMAEREEBRERFERLDR
FEHERLEE  BREQEHEELLEES
HPREMIEFLHE o HIE MR IATF16949
RETELGEEREARRENCCCRE - 3
LHIR  ARBIZ2ENBRARIBHRR S
BHRMHEERAG([E#FIE]) IATF16949
S R RBEZIEN BB

= )|

Wi

T (LTSRS

ATY [Ea3- B
i ——

o

Passed the CCC Certification
CCC Ay ﬂ&*AE@iE
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Baoji Qinrui passed the IATF16949

System Certification
BEHRINEIBIATF16949
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The Group won a number of awards, including “Shaanxi
AAAAA Credit Enterprise” (BRFEA AAAAA RIZZEEN),
“Shaanxi Outstanding Enterprises of High Quality and
Reputation” (BXPi4 &L 8 SFEE L EN), “Shaanxi
Demonstration Enterprises Valuing Quality and Brand-
making” (BRAEAE EE E8ImE R ERL), and “Shaanxi
Demonstration Enterprises with Zero Complaint of
Product Quality” (BRFAE mE MR /RE A7) granted
by Shaanxi Product Quality Management Center (BX7
BEREEEEH D). In October 2019, we completed
the on-site review of the supplier list for 9 assembly
products under BYD and won the “2019 Excellent Supply:
Military Components Supply Award” granted by Shaanxi
Automobile Holding.

IRIR ~ HEKRE

AEEDESREEEREEETEP OHEE
M BR7EE AAAAARZE R - [IRRAEE

HETEBLEEN] [RALELEERR
Hﬁm%ﬁﬁuj [RAERESERFRDE
uJ—rﬁlﬁ 20194F10A » @B 589

PEKERHERNBSEANREESZ - R
TF'WJ'%Z%@E/WT B20195F B A M Em Eam
RIBEZ |58 o

a¥hds

SNSRI

Passed the BYD on-site review
BB MRS

Focus: Environmental Protection and Green Operation
We focus on environmental management and are
committed to cultivating, protecting and improving
the environment. We incorporate the concept of
green operation into the processes of production and
management, and fulfill our corporate responsibilities
through continuous innovation and improvement. We
have set up an environmental improvement team to save
resources, improve the utilization efficiency of resources
and reduce the impact on environment, so as to promote
green integration and build a better future together.

Won the “Military Components
Supply Award” granted by Shaanxi
Automobile Holding

BRRAER [EmRESR]

4,

I REELF RERKE
HPFEINRREE  REEL  BHRW
ERE - RERE  MERE - RAKHE

RER S EFRBEALEMKEHNIRET
BB TEAIF RN E - BELRAML - M
AL TRIRNE MR - BEEEHNER - R/
BERFAME  RERETE  HIHREHR
Bl HOESRARR
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The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise
Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes,
and other laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, we did not suffer any material fines or penalties
for violating any environmental laws or regulations.

Save Resources

4.1.1 Management of water resource

The Group’s production and operating activities
mainly use tap water. To improve the efficiency of the
use of water resources, we implemented a series of
improvement projects for water saving in administration
and technological improvement. During the Reporting
Period, the total water consumption of the Group was
as follows, and the water consumption per output value
decreased by 0.02% as compared with 2018.

Type il #E

Total water consumption (T)

BRKE(T) 21,480

4.1

RE B EARE T EARKMBIR G RE
E) KR EARKMBIKISEPAZE) -
FEARKMBEIRERB S RDE)  (PE
ARKMBARBRAE)  (PEAR
KB E BB YIS A RIR AR EERE
oo MEMA - AL ERERTARRE
BICERMEBUT A EATI K

HHNEIR

411 KEREE

2018

AEBMEESEZHTBERAANK B
TRAXKERNFERRE  BMETRE
BRI SCERE T T — R EKSGETR
B - REHRN - AEBBFEKENT  EE
FEKEE 20185 [ [£0.02% °

2019
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 million per RMB1 million
revenue) Total revenue)
HE(BREA FE(EEEA
R HFEE) #E REKRHEE)
814 24,250 81.4

The total water consumption increased due to increase in output
value. To disclosure the information more fairly, we adjusted the
calculation method of density from consumption/square meters
to consumption/RMB 1 million revenue and recalculated the data
for 2018. Similarly, incorrect data on total water consumption in
2018 was disclosed due to statistical caliber issues, which has
been corrected.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

EREBEEN - AFKEEM  REARMIKE
R BMBAETERENESL  dEFEE/ TR
FHRAERE/SA8AREKE - ©2018M 8%
WEIET TEHE - TR - 2018FHR RSt
AERB AR KEBERERR  REEE-
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Upgrading and transformation of irrigation system for greenbelts

BlemRRARARRE

During the Reporting Period, we transformed all flood irrigation
systems for greenbelts into lawn sprinkler irrigation systems to
save water and energy, which saved approximately 150 tonnes of
water resources during the year.

BESR - BMERMERERTIERET BHEERSR - HKE
B FEAKIKBIRAY 150 WA ©

BRKEEEFRRIRKIES

Based on the analysis of monthly water consumption data, we
identify abnormal water consumption through data differences,
and conduct on-site investigations to find leakage points caused
by aging water pipes and replace and repair the same in a
timely manner. During the Reporting Period, we replaced 23
faucets, repaired the main pipeline once, repaired the main
pipeline for heating and water supply once, and replaced 21
water supply valves in the dormitory, which saved approximately
100 tonnes of water resources during the year.
RPEREARKEENO - BAEERERAKER L E
i&%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%5K7J<§%ft%ltﬁ’1}ﬁ7wﬁ &HTE}MW} SREHA -
P IKERSE 23 (/] EEEHEE R BERIOKEEERIE—
R BHEE KB 21 I FEHIKEIRA 100 W

Replacement of main tap water pipe and repair of leakage points

4.1.2 Management of energy 412 gERERE

We actively strengthen the management of consumption
of electricity, fuel, natural gas and other resources in all
processes to improve employees’ awareness of energy
conservation and environmental protection and the
utilization efficiency of resources.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of major
energy and resources by the Group is as follows:

2018
Total
Type 5 BE
Consumption of electricity (KWH) B2 (KWH) 6,758,273
Consumption of fuel (L) FEmE (L) 97,052
Consumption of natural gas (M3) RIAR (M3) 280,000

BPEEIRAERAAEE - HE - X
ARLEMERNER - 258 THRRR
BAMERERRE -

MEHBA  AEENEZBREEMERERS
W

2019
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 million per RMB1 million
revenue) Total revenue)
EE(BREA PE(BEEA
REUEHEE) “E RBKRHEER)
25617.0 7,618,027 25571.8
367.9 97,907 328.6
1061.3 307,806 1033.2

*

Incorrect data on total electricity consumption in 2018 was
disclosed due to statistical caliber issues, which has been
corrected.

* 2018F MR MM D EHESARER
HEEHR - HERLE -
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Upgrading of electricity monitoring system

BREEERGAR

During the Reporting Period, we installed 57 remote electricity monitoring points on
site, which can monitor electricity in real time, form monthly analysis and reports, and
provide timely suggestions on improvement of electricity consumption, making the
electricity consumption manageable and controllable.

WERRN BMBRSTE ST MRREEENE JEREIEE FRADT ABER -
WRRREAESERE BESAEAE -

Mold temperature machine upgrading project
BRgARER

During the Reporting Period, we fully used modified boilers for heating, which
removed the gas emission and saved electric energy, the total electricity saved each
year reached 100,000KWH.

HEMA BP2BERBCEROMBHRE ER T ERR XSO TER  FHNL
EE 100,000KWH ¢

Boiler burner upgrading project

WEMRER A RBUERE
During the Reporting Period, we made Low nitrogen transformation for boilers,
nitrogen oxide emission reduced from 40mg/M3 before transformation to 28mg/M3 ,
the waste gas emission was significantly reduced and the environmental quality was
improved.
WEHMA - ROHREETERLE - RALAMIRERBCERH 40mg/M3 Z 2
28mg/M3 AKFEE T BERBEN RITRGEE

Oil electric forklift replacement project

HEX EERIEE
During the Reporting Period, we carried out the oil electric forklift
replacement project, and currently own 12 electric forklifts and 1 oil electric
forklift. The oil electric forklift was equipped with smoke purification device
to reduce the greenhouse gas emission.
BEPN BMFERTHEXEEHRIER BRI 12 88X 1 &AX Hhh
XMEERFCEE NEIRRERBHMNEL -

Transformation project of remote natural gas transportation

AAREEEHLREERA

During the Reporting Period, we eliminated the manual plug-in gas purchasing
device and installed the new remote gas purchasing device which displays the
real-time gas consumption and remaining amount. The natural gas consumption was
monitored and supervised in real time, which facilitates the environmental
improvement team to regularly propose optimization plan.

WEPRR BIBAATERBRESE ZENANEEBRAEE BRESERERE
REMHHEE AARAEERERELEE FRRESE METHREEEAR -

50 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD # BRI /S8 AR AR




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR - HBKREIBHRS

4.1.3 Management of packaging material

The Group previously used cartons to package products,
which has high costs and prices, severe losses, and
pollutes environment, and its protection for products
is relatively weak. During the Reporting Period, we
continued to produce plastic baskets with waste plastic
injection materials to replace cartons, and independently
developed plastic frame combination welding equipment
to meet the needs for diversified sizes and facilitate
storage management and optimize product protection.

41.3 BEMBER

2018
Total
Type Vil B
Packaging material (T) BEN(T) 490

AEBEREBREEE  KAR @ BB
BREERE  SRARE  HERHERER
55 MEMA - RAFEMANBERTL
RMHEKBERBRERE  YEERE
BIEAEARZERE  mEZHIERTHL
wEREHER  BEERH# -

2019
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 million per RMB1 million
revenue) Total revenue)
RE(BREA PE(BEEA
REWHERE) BE RBKHHEE)
1.9 407 1.4

During the Reporting Period, we used waste nozzles
of injection molding products and defective products
reasonably. The density of packaging material
consumption decreased by 26.44% and approximately
RMB400,000 of packaging material costs were saved,
which reduced waste disposal expenses and waste
of material costs, and in turn reduced environmental
pollution.

WEHA RMOAEBEFBTEENILE
@mAKAO - TRRE  BRVEREZETR
26.44% * SiHIBEMEIRAHAREI0E
TT R T ERRIER S B R ARE
PR T IR -

Replacing carton packing with recycled injection molding materials

ERERIEEMHERBERERERE
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4.2 Environmental Management

Through technological reforms and innovations, we
continuously improved the process and strive to
reduce the impact of production and operation on the
environment. We increased investment in environmental
governance, purchased environment-friendly equipment,
further reduced wastewater discharge and exhaust
gas emissions, and strengthened and optimized the
management and disposal of solid wastes. During
the Reporting Period, our expenses for environmental
governance and renovation amounted to RMB1.2 million.

4.2.1 Wastewater discharge

The Group attaches great importance to emissions and
waste management. In the production process of the
Group, water is mainly used in the cooling process. The
water used in the cooling of the injection molding machine
and the cooling of the mould water cutting is circulated
through sealed pipe network, which will be recycled for
production. Therefore, we do not produce large amounts
of industrial wastewater throughout the production
process. The wastewater discharged by the Group is
mainly employees’ daily life wastewater, including toilet
drainage and wash drainage. Such wastewater will be
discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network after
being treated by the treatment facilities such as grease
traps and septic tanks, and finally enter the sewage
treatment plant. The plants are equipped with rainwater
pipe network, through which the rainwater is collected
and flows into the municipal rainwater pipe network.

4.2.2 Exhaust gas emissions

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust and
organic waste gases from different stages of the
production process. The dust generated in the production
process is dedusted by a bag filter, and a gas collecting
hood is set to collect the organic waste gas generated
in the production process, and then collected and
treated by a special exhaust gas treatment facility by
“UV photolysis + activated carbon adsorption”. After the
treatment, dust and organic waste gas are discharged
through a dedicated exhaust pipe.

52 CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD s B KIS A1 AR A7)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of

28 ~

HE8KRESHRS

WERA - AEEPRE D EMEEREIEN

dust and organic waste gas are as follows: ™
Main emissions TEHHRY 2018 2019
Dust (kg) EE (kg) 85.4kg 77.9kg
Nitrogen oxide (kg) RELAM (ko) 96.0kg 86.0kg
Toluene (kg) FR (kg) 156.2kg 147.0kg
Xylene (kg) ~BX (kg) 160.9kg 167.1kg
Non-methane hydrocarbon (kg) R (kg) 245 8kg 259.9kg
During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas WEHA - AEEERNAEREBEER
emissions of the Group are as follows: T :
2018 2019
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 million per RMB1 million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE(BAEA RE(BEEA
Greenhouse gas category BERBER Be REWZHERES) g REKZHEER)
CO,(T) COo,(M) 50 0.19 55 0.18

We insist on continuously improving production processes
and optimizing measures for pollution prevention. The
Group installed a total of 10 environmental protection
hosts and 10 exhaust cylinders on the injection molding,
molding, foaming, gumming, powder and boiler, which
will be monitored and maintained regularly to jointly
promote environmental protection.

HAPBHTEHRALETE - #5204
Ei o AERBEETLIREG - HERE - 28
RES - 2R - HEBRENIE LK LR
RREHA0ME - HERE 1018 - WEHEA -
HE - RE - HKRHEERRTIE -

Environmental protection hosts and exhaust cylindersinstalled

ZREREHEGERE
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aHhs

4.2.3 Treatment of hazardous and nonhazardous waste

The solid waste generated in the production process of
the Group mainly includes domestic garbage, production
solid waste and Hazardous solid waste.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected in bags by
garbage bins and then recycled and disposed of by the
qualified sanitation department at the garbage station.

Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process, such as fiberglass board,
black fabric and leather. After being collected, the scrap
is temporarily stored in the temporary storage area
for general waste, and then classified, packaged and
delivered to qualified recycling units through recycling &
comprehensive utilization or regular sales.

Hazardous solid waste includes oil-water mixed waste
and oily solid waste, and mainly represent hazardous
waste, such as waste oil, waste activated carbon, used
lamp and waste titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates,
etc. Waste oils and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified
disposal suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced. To
reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated during
the production process are collected in special containers
and temporarily stored in the temporary storage for
hazardous waste, and are regularly entrusted to qualified
disposal suppliers by the government for safe disposal.

During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste generated by the Group is as
follows:

Type of solid waste E s AR R

Nonhazardous waste-Household waste (T) ~ EEREEY)- £ERIR(T)

Nonhazardous waste-Production solid BEREY-EEER(T)
waste (T)

BEEERY-RRERE(T)

Hazardous waste-Hazardous solid waste (T)
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423 BEREEBRRERE

810
2.3

AEBLEBREPELNER J%E%%I;z
‘AR - AEREENERERES

EERIR D BERE  KTRRER - ERIFERD
BURERELREmAEENREHBMN—
EIREE -

TEBREIZREEREELNEAR B

MR - RIE - ARF - BARENR
SREFN-—REVEFRA - RYDET

B Bl AFIRSE RN SR AEHE
W -

EREESHNES MMERNE - £E

REEMIE - BEER - EEREME_S
PO IR SR BEY - BEmIEE IR R
RRFANAREEBELERE AR -

UV AR & B B — L 8 BB SR AR Bl e B
% LEBETELNERENEAERR

BEBRLSBWRE  BEFEREREDERF
A ERERAEBAFANAREIERIEL
2RE °

BERR  AEEEENATERZYNES
BEEYBIELT

2018 2019
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 million per RMB1 million
revenue) Total revenue)
HE(BREA PE(BEEA
KRB HREE) #E REKEHER)
0.0152 4.5 0.0151
3.0703 834 2.7995
0.0087 25 0.0084
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Garbage sorting
EER S E

4.2.4 Noise management

4.3

The main noise sources of the Group are noise from
air compressors, fans, injection molding machines,
pulverizers, circulation pumps, cooling towers and other
facilities. The Group selects low-noise device, rationally
plans the layout of the plant area, maintains the various
types of noise equipment indoors or at the equipment
rooms, or adopts vibration reduction and noise reduction
measures for noise equipment, and also sets greenbelts
to reduce noise, thus reducing the impact on the
surrounding environment.

Environmental Achievement

During the Reporting Period, the Group obtained
the environmental approval documents and sewage
permits from the environmental protection authority for
all environmental assessment procedures of the gas-
related processes of the Group (including the three major
workshops of injection molding, molding and foaming,
and tooling spray painting process), and achieved
standardized discharging.

In order to actively respond to the new requirements for
the management of solid waste imposed by national and
local laws and regulations and regulatory authorities,
during the Reporting Period, we carried out activities
such as domestic waste sorting publicity and employee
sorting awareness training. Besides, the Group actively
responded to the call of the local government to make
emergency plans for heavily pollution weather, and
actively implemented energy-saving and emission
reduction measures to reduce pollutant emissions.

4.2.

4.3

Temporary storage area for solid waste
EREZFE

4 12EEE
AEBFERBFEAZTEE - BE - 18
M BRER  RNESRERE -
AEEEARRELE  AEEERE®K
B BEEREREREETANRER
IR Z REREURIR  HEEE - R
EFCERBEERS - AREEEBIREN

=71
TE-

RERH

BEHRN - AEEMBSRIZRITES
BE(BI2  RE -  TB-AEHEMTEE
BRITE) - HEUS T RRAPINRFFALE XM
FHETRT AR - ERPT

BTRGERBR M ITEARERNEE R
FISEREZRYERNNESR - MEHA -
BPZAFAREEEIFOBES BIHE
BREIIELRS - AR AEEBIREERN
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A 601 Y8 1L
BEER-NEENNSANEAR LR
AERE BESAEN S PR A AR AN LR
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&7
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REEM; HEENATE

LLICT T I A

Pollutant Discharge Permit
BERFA

Innovation: Technological Progress and Continuous
Improvement

Since its establishment, the Group has always been
committed to creating a strong technical support
mechanism and has established a scientific product
design, R&D and innovation system. It also values the
protection of intellectual property rights to guarantee the
innovation results of the enterprise. The Group's technicall
center currently has 53 employees, and is composed of a
project department, a design department, an engineering
department, a laboratory, and a data and standardization
division, positioning it as a technical authority and a
maker of technical standards, a transmission base for
technical and management talents, a key construction
and policy-oriented department, and an embodiment
of the competitiveness of the Group. We have been
accredited by provincial and municipal enterprise
technology centers and own a number of patents.

Emergency measures for heavy pollution weather
EFRRRESER

AR - BRATED HERE

BRIZIAR - REBIRRBNNITERE 1
BTSSR T R E MR
MEAER - R TEMBERRE - R
[BREAFKR - EERIHOREETSS
A TRIEBED - REHEF - TIEEE - BERE
REMMBEAE  EuREBERMER
BATRENSEE - KRERMMERASH
xR - SEEFERMBOERIARERPT -
SEBEFINRIRE - HALRESE T
EERMPLRE - HHEZHEEF -

207 new products (parts) developed

R&D capacity
TEERED

207 @EyER (B4 BB

10 new projects developed

10 smEB AR

4 technological innovations

4 BRAME

Product delivery
EmX

delivered a total of 222 commercial vehicles

BAE RitRf 222 HH

delivered a total of 94 types of new passenger vehicles
RAE Rt 94 B S

Mould development
AR

165 sets of moulds
HEMRRT 1656 &
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Enhancing Customer Experience through
Technological Innovation

In accordance with the planning of "focusing on
the design and development of heavy trucks and
strengthening the design and development of sedans"
under the Group’s "2+2 strategy" , the technical center
introduced internationally advanced management system
and management standards, and is currently conducting
in-depth cooperation with the leading design companies
in the industry. By adhering to the management concept
of "quality and cost are rooted in design", and the mission
of "providing customers with satisfactory interior system
solutions", we are always committed to creating long-
term value for customers. During the Reporting Period,
we developed three types of vehicle interior products,
involving the fields of interior and exterior decorative
products for heavy trucks and vehicles and ceiling
assembly of passenger vehicles, carpet assembly, trunk
assembly and fenders, etc.

X3000 overhead compartment
X3000 ®H5E

X3000 instrument panel
X3000 & &

5.1

i‘:‘ ti i -'"-_.‘7:-.

B RIFTR A& F e AR

RIRAEE 2+ 280 A ERRFAFHER/E
T BERAFEENRINKS - Kl
DEREEANTBHERTENEEBRAMERR
% - BRIEEITEBENRAATRESE
BRIMEEMKARR AR INEEES -
U BEPREMENAMARERTEIR
o AEPREHEMER - HEPARM
R FBRBERM = PREH EREE
AN KRR ERTEM AR - B AR
1T RERA IR RIR S -

X5000 headliner
X5000 TE#

HD6 sleepr box
HD6 A8

19 M3000 door panels |
195XM3000PFI 4R
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Design and Development of Lightweight Sleeper Toolbox

BEE\E T AER R

At present, the lightweight design is a main goal in the commercial vehicle field. During the Reporting Period, the
Group together with the major vehicle manufacturers completed the design of the sleeper box assembly with plastic
instead of steel, using polyamide-6 and adding appropriate glass fiber and replacing the original steel structure after
injection molding, which increased the comfort level and reduced the overall weight by approximately 30%, greatly
exceeding the expected target

ETRmABEHNEE L ARINETEAR RS EEES T BT T AB RSB AR RE - MR
HERz-6 N hniE & BRI 4 - &éﬁ*é“&ﬁ%% ﬁ EINTEEE - EREEEEN0%  AKNBBEHAE -

Upgrading of Mold Injection and Replacement System
EBBRRAGRLUE

During the Reporting Period, we transformed the mold replacement system in the injection molding workshop by changing
traditional plates to hydraulic plates and reducing the mold replacement personnel from 2 to 1, which reduced the time of
mold replacement by 70% for each set of mold and greatly increased the utilization rate of equipment. The hydraulic plates
are equipped with the lock force detection and anti-pressure relief device, which improved the safety of the mold in
operation.

MEIA - BT SRAMEZETHE - BEGNBRIERREGR - AEABN2ARPINIA - BERAMNR
R RIETAI70% - AKIEN T RIBENHEE - REBHIEMTHEN ﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁ RAEAGEABRETNR M -

Manual pressing plate

FEHITER

Easier operation
BRIFERE

Upgrading of traditional frame nailing

BETERE
During the Reporting Period, we improved the utilization rate of raw materials through the improvement of frame nailing,
shortened the distance between the scrap edges, and reduced the raw material usage area by approximately 3% for each
set of mold on average.

g%gm'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁ% BTRMBOFIRE - RETEHENESR - THEERATREIRLAMNRMEE

Reinforced frame nailing
IEFETAE

Traditional frame nailing
STETHE

Upgrading of cutting methods of blow moulded products
REERBY AR BE
During the Reporting Period, the Group has newly developed cutting jigs to effectively improve the difficulties in cutting and
increase the production efficiency by 60%, which contributed to the substantial improvement of product quality.
WESR  AEEFAZRERDAR  ARASERYARERNE  EENERE60% - ERE SO AEFERS °
- L]
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5.2 Continuous Improvement and Enhancement

The Group has established a special process
improvement team to supervise and evaluate the

proposed improvement work, including but not limited
to equipment modification, technical improvement and
raw material improvement, etc. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has carried out 165 technological
improvements, generating direct economic benefits of
approximately RMB3 million.
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5.3 Carrying Out Industry-universities-research
Cooperation Projects
The Group vigorously carries out industry-university-
research cooperation projects, introduces high-quality
resources from universities and society, and maintains the
advanced research and development capacity.

5.3

MRESMSIEER

AEBXRNFRESMAEER @ sIABR
Bt ENETER - RISTERSMNLEN -

Appointment of Dr. Chu Jianjie as the Chief Expert of Group

BEEGE Lt AEEERER

Dr. Jianjie Chu, an associate professor of the School of Mechanical Engineering of Northwestern Polytechnical University,
is mainly engaged in the research of fields including industrial product design and development, industrial design of
equipment manufacturing, and ergonomic evaluation technology. Mr. Chu has been the deputy director of the Key
Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of Northwestern
Polytechnical University since 2018 and the deputy director of the Shaanxi Industrial Design and Development Center of
Northwestern Polytechnical University. He has won various awards such as the second prize of the National Teaching
Achievement Award and the third prize of the Shaanxi Science and Technology Progress Award.

Dr. Chu Jianjie served as the chief expert of the Group during the Reporting Period, focusing on the research of fields
including digital design, product design, simulation of ergonomic design and development of new products.

TRABL AR TEAPREBR TER ANEHE  TENETRERRAFE - REEENTERIRABRTH
AHERTSEENT - DR EB2018FUREEFL TERBTRRA BAR TR TEHEHERTEEE  ALTE
RERAE TRRAERP LB - BREBEEAZBBAR SR  RECHBLTES R=SASIOR -
MERETRBERNEELAEEERER  BRRERRFRET  ERRET - ABRTHERGH I BB ERESEEN
UiE

Industry-university-research cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics of

the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University
AR IEAR T ESR G RARI NI CHEREREHRESHSE

Northwestern Polytechnical University is the only multidisciplinary and research-oriented university in China that is
simultaneously developing education and research programs in the fields of aeronautics, astronautics, and marine
technology engineering. Itis now affiliated to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology. It is one of the universities
of the “211 Project”, “985 Project” and “First-class Universities” (Class A) in China. As one of the earliest universities in
China to develop talents for modern industrial design, conduct scientific research and provide design services,
Northwestern Polytechnical University is a vicechairman of China Industrial Design Association, a vice president of
Innovation Design Alliance of China and the Industrial Design Institution of China Mechanical Engineering Society, and a
deputy chairman of the Teaching Steering Subcommitteeof Industrial Designof the Ministry of Education, and has high
status and good reputation in the domestic industrial design community.
Northwestern Polytechnical University has been devoted to the researchof fields including digital design, product design,
simulation of ergonomic design and development of new products. It has undertaken dozens of major scientific and
technological research projects such as the National 863 Program, the National Science and Technology Support Plan, the
National Natural Science Foundation, the National Manned Space Project, and the Basic Research on National Defense.
The Group carried out industry-university-research cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design and
Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University, and provided
design services and technical support for developing new products by leveraging the resources of the Key Laboratory of
Industrial Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, Shaanxi Industrial Design
Engineering Laboratory, Shaanxi Industrial Design and Development Center and other provincial platforms, focused on the
design of automotive interior parts in the field of industrial design, and conducted in-depth research on key common
technologies continuously, so as to maintain the advanced nature of research and development of key design
technologies.
FEIEIEABRHERE——FMUARKRERZ  fiK MEATEENHERRARENZRIE  HRE  RRAKRE - B
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5.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

IRIR ~ HEKRE

a¥hds

5.4 HABERRE

The Group has established a three-in-one intellectual
property system of patents, trademarks and copyrights,

and has implemented innovation-oriented and high-
quality development.

The Group has a total of 17 patents, including 2 invention
patents, 1 design patent and 14 utility model patents.
Invention patents and design patents are applied to the
major products of the Group and are the core process
technology. The utility model patents are mainly used for
the improvement of production equipment and process
methods to realize the purposes of achieving energy-
saving and emission reduction, improving production

ALK

efficiency, mitigating labor intensity, eliminating hidden
safety hazards and reducing labor costs. During the
Reporting Period, we had 4 new patents.

Number Certificate type Patent name
B HEER EHER

1 Utility Model Patent Certificate An open-loop reciprocating conveyor belt device used for contact-type plate heater

1 ERFUEREE —BRAREE TRNARNFREEERTRE

2 Utility Model Patent Certificate A high-temperature hot stamping device for foam leather

2 ERFUEREE —BERERRREDRE

3 Utility Model Patent Certificate An automotive sound-absorbing and heat-insulating integrated carpet

3 ERFREREE —ERERERARE Y

4 Utility Model Patent Certificate A plastic-absorbing molding and pre-feeding device for integrated carpet production line

4 ERTHEHEE ER B ESRER A ERER

5 Utility Model Patent Certificate A automatic demoulding and unloading conveying device after loading and molding of
flexible materials

5 ERFLEREE —BRURH LHREEG A BN EHRERRE

6 Utility Model Patent Certificate Akind of fiming headliner for heavy vehicles

6 ERFHEREE —EHEEERE

7 Utility Model Patent Certificate A safety protection device for hydraulic machines

7 ERFREREE RERZ2RERE

8 Utility Model Patent Certificate Atesting device for automotive ashtray

8 ERFREREE —BAEERIAREE

9 Utility Model Patent Certificate A large-scale molding soundproofing blanket positioning auxiliary material device

9 ERFEEREE —BAERVREEETUEHEE

10 Design Patent Certificate Heavy truck integrated carpets

10 WERHEREE BREREEE Y

11 Innovation Patent Certificate Akind of heavy vehicle filming headliner and headliner filming method

11 BRENEE —BHEEEREEREEER A

12 Innovation Patent Certificate A production method for automotive sound-absorbing and heat-insulating integrated carpet

12 BRENEE —BAERERALEARENEESE

13 Utility Model Patent Certificate An omni-directional mechanical feeding robot arm

13 ERFLEREE —BaHEHERERE

14 Utility Model Patent Certificate Athin film transportation device

14 ERFEREE ~BEREARE

15 Utility Model Patent Certificate A molding pressure modulation conveying device for automotive headliners

15 ERFREREE —BAEEMEEARERR

16 Utility Model Patent Certificate Aflexible material cutting device for automotive interiors

16 ERFLEREE —ERERBRIHEIRE

17 Utility Model Patent Certificate A hanging frame transmission device for automotive interiors flexible materials

17 ERFRENEE —EERHZIT R EREEHR

REBERETTEHN
NHERER - Hit

EAEN7IH  Hp#
A SNBREE MR
T8 o BEFEFF
MESEmR
MEMEERNEERBM TES AWK
= BREDERRY  ERAEERE B
EEHRE
FHH - MEHA - FIEHN4E -

BIE - R — 8
BIFTSIBNEEEER

A = F2

: E%%ﬁiﬂ;ﬁﬁﬂm
B BN ERARASE
RZOTEE - ERFHLE

HREZERE - SHESHAA

Issuing authority
REEf

National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARANBEROBERER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARANERR BEEER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARLANEEZOHERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARANBDROBERER

National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC

REZARLNBERNAERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
REARLNEEZR PHERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARLANEERNHERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
REARLNBERNAERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARAAERR MEEER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEZARLNDEZNHERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
REARLNBERAAERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARANEER MEEER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
RZARLNBEZNHERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
PEARANERR DEEER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
FEARKANEEFAZERER
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC
RZARLNEERAAERR
National Intellectual Property Administration of the PRC

% \RANEESRAERR
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6.1
6.1.1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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The Group mainly protects its intellectual property rights
through online tracking and rights protection litigation.
Besides, when our sales and R&D staff discover
competitive products or marketing materials that may
infringe the intellectual property rights of the Group, they
will immediately notify the legal department, which will
then follow up and conduct the investigation.

The Group has established an innovation incentive
mechanism to encourage technical R&D personnel to
boldly innovate, design and develop special equipment
with independent intellectual property rights by utilizing
the advanced process technologies and equipment in the
industry, and quickly transform it into productive forces
and put it into production, thus promoting the automotive
and intelligent production process.

Win-win: Making Progress and Building a Bright
Future Together

Win-win: Quality Customer Services

Management system for customer services

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to
strictly implement the site customer service management
systems, standards and regulations such as the Guidance
on the Management of Site Customer Emergency and
the Regulation on the Processing and Management of
Customer Information, and strived to provide customers
with quality services to meet their diversified needs.

For after-sales services, we arranged dedicated after-
sales service personnel at the customer’s office, and
conducted after-sales interview with customers through
email, WeChat, telephone and other means.
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6.1.2 Customer complaints management procedures 6.1.2 ZFEBRE
We attach great importance to customer demands and BPETERTRPFK BUT(BEEER
have established procedures under the Regulation on the BETEHAT)ME  BEFPIRFENAD
Processing and Management of Customer Information, RS E AR o Tﬁﬂ%}f'&uﬁ{é
which divides customer complaints into two categories, HPeES(EEREE)  F—FRENE

verbal complaints and written complaints. After receiving
complaints from customers, we will complete the Quality
Response Plan and send the feedback to relevant
departments by email as soon as possible. To ensure that
customer complaints are handled in a timely manner, we
have established complete procedures for processing
customer complaint information, as shown below:

STEP 01 STEP 02

Received customer complaints Communication and feedback

WREIZF BEOE
Received verbal complaints Information on complaints about
I3 SRR 0 possible suspension of production
\rcs of customus

=) FERHIRASE
\‘i\u *P = T \ 5
mfo mation on c@mp\amts
about product quality
EmmE H AL E

eRewvso written complaints P

Information on complaints
about dchvcry and service
RE - RGEHTANREER

A REEEEER - HRFEFEIZN
Rt - PR T = ENEFPR&ERR
HRRE  WRATR -

STEP 03

Handling deadline
BRIERN

The responsible department must
orcspond within 1 hour after the
customer cor np\amt is made
BESPINEERFE LR

kG ey
The responsible department

must respond within 4 hours
o after the customer complaint

During the Reporting Period, we included indicators
such as the timeliness of completion of customer
complaint and customer satisfaction in the Performance
Assessment Form, which stipulated that the feedback
and tracking of customer complaints must be evidenced
by corresponding Analysis and Rectification Report
of Problem, and reviewed the number of customer
complaints and timeliness of completion on a monthly
basis. Meanwhile, we carried out the customer
satisfaction survey on an annual basis according
to the Comprehensive Analysis Form of Customer
Satisfaction, involving 5 aspects such as quality, delivery,
service, price, and suggestions for improvement. After
the completion of the survey, we investigated and
summarized the items with low individual scores and
complaints in customers’ messages, and discussed
improvement measures, and finally formed the final
Analysis Report of Customer Satisfaction.

is made
EEEIPI Y &
B PO B 1
The responsible department
must respond within 24 hours
o after the customer complaint
nade
H HF AR R E
B Wu A’E By

WEHAN - RMBERFEAREE - BF®
EEEEMABREZET  HERFPHIE
SR EE AR M /BB MR FE R R R D TR 2R
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In addition to the management of individual complaint
cases, we also summarized and analyzed customer
complaints to identify the source of the problem,
optimized the solution from the source, and formed the
Summary of Product Quality Complaints and analysis
report, so as to analyze the causes and determine the
responsible person, as well as formulate corrective
measures and track verification results. If quality problems
with potential risk were identified, we would send a quality
alert and follow up and solve it as soon as possible.

6.1.3 Protection of customer privacy

6.2
6.2.1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

It is our responsibility and obligation to protect customer
privacy and security of business information. We strictly
comply with the laws and regulations in relation to the
Confidentiality Agreement entered into with customers,
and strictly protect the privacy information of customers.

We are also committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable parties. For the use of information, we have
restricted the level and authorization of information
available to employees, and require employees to
prudently handle customer data in accordance with the
authorization. Employees may have access to relevant
customer data only when there is a supportable reason,
and the use of customer data is limited to the purposes
as specified in our contract.

Win-win: Partnership with Suppliers

Establishing win-win partnership with suppliers

The Group introduces excellent suppliers with quality
assurance and timely service on the basis of partnership
established with suppliers under the guidance of mutual
benefit and win-win cooperation, and gives priority to
the introduction of international and domestic suppliers
and leading suppliers in the industry so as to ensure the
quality of products. For example: plastic raw materials
are purchased from domestic and foreign well-known
suppliers including “Sabic”, “KingFa”, “PRET” and
others; fiberglass board is purchased from domestic
leading suppliers including “Taizhou Golden”, “Zhejiang
Huajiang” and others; and the fabric is purchased from
domestic leading suppliers including “Hongda High-
Tech” and “Lear Group”.
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6.2.1
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had 104 major WERA - NEEXEEFEMEHMEER104
material suppliers as follows: Ko DA
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We maintain close contact with suppliers. During
the Reporting Period, we have conducted in-depth
exchanges with suppliers on new technologies and
processes for passenger vehicles and heavy trucks’
interiors, such as plastic raw materials, fabrics (VOC) and
lightweight fiberglass board, so as to provide customers
with more environment-friendly and sustainable products.
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Technology exchange of suppliers
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We review and select new suppliers through the
Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Qualification and the
Evaluation Report on Quality Assurance of Potential
Suppliers every year, and conduct comprehensive
evaluation on the daily behavior of suppliers through
procedural documents such as the Procedures for
Managing and Controlling Supplies, the Guidance on
Regular Evaluation of Suppliers of Productive Materials
and the Regulations on the Control and Management of
Issues in Relation to Suppliers of Productive Materials,
and carry out effective tracking, management and control
based on the evaluation results of suppliers’ performance.
We will provide specific guidance to suppliers with lower
ranking and eliminate those who still cannot meet the
supply requirements after such guidance.

6.2.2 Continuing to promote the suppliers’ social

responsibilities

While continuously strengthening its own management
of sustainable development, the Group takes the lead
in promoting the ecological management system for
the sustainable development of the entire supply chain.
Suppliers are evaluated from five aspects according to
the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Social Responsibilities,
namely labor rights, health and safety, environmental
protection, business ethics, and requirements of
management system. For suppliers with sound
performance, we will increase the share of purchase
from them at the same conditions and give priority to
them in respect of business cooperation opportunities;
for suppliers with poor performance, especially those
who violate relevant requirements, rectification is
required within a time limit, and we will reduce the share
of purchase from them or restrict business cooperation
opportunities until the cooperation is terminated.

Meanwhile, we include environment related clauses in the
Purchase Contract signed with suppliers, which clearly
requires that the products provided by suppliers must
comply with the laws, regulations and the implementation
rules in China, the European Union and the United States
on environmental protection and health, as well as meet
local effective requirements on environmental protection
and health. To this end, we not only support the realization
of China’s sustainable development goal, but also work
closely with customers and suppliers in the upstream and
downstream of the supply chain to build a sustainable
and better fully connected world environment.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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6.3 Win-win: Share Development Results with Employees
6.3.1 Employment overview

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights and
interests of our employees, and strictly complies with
the provisions of the Labor Contract Law of China and
other labor laws and regulations. It formulates other
employment terms on working hours, and holidays, so as
to effectively protect the legitimate and reasonable rights
and interests of our employees. We never permit the use
of any forced labor.

We have a fair and transparent staff recruitment and
employment process, conduct background investigation
for the newly recruited employees, put an end to
illegal employment of child labor and the phenomenon
of forced labor, and is committed to providing fair
employment opportunities and creating a respectful work
environment for our employees. The Group advocates
anti-discrimination and formulates relevant policies to
treat others with fairness and dignity. Our recruitment of
employees will be based on a range of diversity, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. In the case of dismissal,
the Labor Contract of employees who do not meet
the requirements of the Labor Law will be terminated
according to the Labor Law and the Company’s rules and
regulations.
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As of 31 December 2019, there were 540 employees in
our team.

Number of employees by gender

HE2019F12A31H » BHFINEKZEER
B540% °

Number of employees by age

BURBSETAY i RERESBTAY
W Male M Female [ 20-34 years old [ 35-49 years old [ More than 50
E:1:3 frg:3 i 205%-345% 355%-495% years old
i 50850 F

= Number of employees by ranking of positions
; ERABAATAY

M Senior management [ Middle management
BREERE PREEE

: [ Juniormanagement [ General staff

i NREERE —RET

The remuneration policy of our Group is based on
employees’ performance, qualifications, competence
and rewards to them with reference to comparable
market level. Remuneration package typically comprises
salaries and other benefits, discretionary bonuses and
retirement benefits scheme contributions. We have
established a scientific and reasonable salary system
with market competitiveness in accordance with the
salary management procedure and files of salary scales
and levels, and formulate salary grade strategies in
accordance with the ranking of positions and market
level based on the present condition of the company. The
Group offers fairly competitive average remuneration in
the local region, and reviews the package annually with
reference to industry benchmark, financial results, and
individual performance of employees. Meanwhile, our
human resources department will determine the salary
of newly recruited employees based on the standard
of corresponding salary grade of the Company and the
assessment of the comprehensive ability of incumbents
to ensure a fair and reasonable salary distribution.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD # BRI /S8 AR AR

Number of e

mployees by ranking of positions
BRAELETAY

[ In Shaanxi Province [l Outside Shaanxi Province
; REER REESH

AEENFHEREZERNRE  BF
B KT 5 AT LUK B 1R 1O 228D o B
FE—REEFEREMEN - BB -
BARBHET IR - RAIREBE(HFEEER
FF) R G E X - BB EBERE U RA
BWGHFNOFMER - LB E RN
MGKE - BAREIRN - RIS RK
B - AEBENFEFMNFBEEMABEE
BRHBFES  WIRIEITEREE - MHERE
AR EEMERRREFMFBETFER
B o AR - ANEREFISRIZE R RIBAIAE
e NS AR ENERENGERNER
AHEEE N ABBTHH - MILREBEBRATFE
B O EC -
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We have been committed to providing diversified and
superior benefits to employees and creating a better
working environment. In addition to statutory benefits, we
have in place a benefit system with diversity.

Activity welfare
Statutory benefits EEEER

HERBER :
¢ Women's Day
* Social insurance and housing fund =N oq:i
¢ Dragon Boat Festival

* Statutory holiday o I

EEERA o Mid-Autumn Festival
¢ High temperature leave, etc. FR RN ES

ERRE * Spring Festival

6.3.2 Staff training and development

The Group provides a variety of trainings for all
employees to improve their skills and meet their needs
of positions. Induction trainings on regulations at group
and department level, job duties, working skills, safety
production and career development program, etc.
familiarize our employees with the Group as soon as
practicable and make them fit in with their respective
positions. For on-the-job employees, the Group provides
targeted training tailored to their career development
and encourages employees to participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations, whereby
enriching our employees’ knowledge and arming them
with multiple abilities. We also engage professional
institutions and individuals to provide training to the
directors and senior management of the Group, so as to
keep them informed of the latest regulations, regulatory
policies, corporate governance and other information of
the Company.

IRIR - HBIREGHRS

BA—BEUNRBORSETRESZTHEE
B BIEE M TERE - RAEREE
TEXRERMOERZ £ BRETZHN
BRER

Other welfare

HitE7

o Free staff quarters
(air conditioner, heating, wifi)

REETES (=3 KR - wifi)
* Meal allowance

X
o Staff activities

ETEDHE

STRIIREERE
AEBERMAEETRHESEEI - UEEK
BE MR REAIFR - BT ABEN Eid
B BRESEMBIARE - MUBE - T
fEfEE - TRAEMBEERRET  &E
PR TEREBAKE - BRI - Y
REBET  REPHETEEMNE BRI
B PR E - REATASREAT
BT MR - AEBESEIEARUERE LR
ELEERROREEI - AKLHBE TR
1R 2 N5 B 51 ER A AR A 0 B R (2 AR RE B0 35
Al - BfIEBFEFEBMABR/AEEE
ENRREEABRMIEI - AEMFIRRE
RATH R BED] - BEEBOR - BEEIRERE
B o
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During the Reporting Period, we set up a series of new WEMRN - ZRMFAXTEERATEAR
courses, including general management courses and skill KA RABEAN—RIRIZE - ARE
upgrading courses, organizing 82 group-level online and B R FR T EI8218 - FRPIARIERI451E
offline trainings and 45 department-level trainings, with SLEBTE31A - BB ERHE13,400/ N\ ©
531 employees participating and a total of 13,400 hours

of training.

The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
BRI RS RTHSHIRR

Gender 451 £ Z
Trainees 2N 392 139
Headcount BAH 400 140
The participation of trainees Zilind 98% 99%
Average training duration (in hours) FHLH IR (NE) 25 25

The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
RUERELZIRSEERFHSIRR

Senior Middle Junior
Management Management Management General staff
Position B BREERE hREERE IREER —RET
Trainees e 1 16 37 467
Headcount BAH 11 16 37 476
The participation of trainees el 100% 100% 100% 98%
Average training duration (in hours) ~ F3923ER (/)\) 120 9 45 19

Training for newly recruited employees Training for all-round workshop director Management ability training for team leader
8T AR SRR B AR HERERRE D

Operation training for interns with fixed Loading and practice of trainee of

Workshop practice course ) "
ENEEREE \Cvuorklng pc:smonL ) management
ERETEREE ERERERER

70 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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6.3.3 Health and safety of the employees

The Group has always attached great importance to the
health and safety of the employees, and is committed to
providing employees with a safe working environment to
avoid occupational hazards. The Group strictly abides
by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the
Safe Production Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Fire Law of the People’s Republic of China, and other
laws and regulations.

The Group requires the newly recruited employees to
carry the entry medical examination report and pays
the social insurance and housing fund (g —%) and
commercial insurance for the employees according to the
statutory requirements. We also provide regular safety
training to the employees to ensure that they understand
the dangerous situation at work. We attach importance to
employee sports and set up table tennis, basketball and
badminton sports venues and facilities for employees to
exercise.

We have implemented infrastructure and safety policies
in order to ensure equipment safety and prevent or
minimize exposure to hazardous materials. During the
Reporting Period, we have revised more than 10 safety
management documents, including the Safe Production
Responsibility System ({24 EEE#)), the Hidden
Hazards Inspection and Rectification System (<& &4k
BEIRIEHIE )), the Regulations on the Management
of Safety Accidents ((ZZ2EMEIRIT)), the Safety
Education System ((Z2# A #IE)), etc., providing
guidance to employees in maintaining a safe working
environment, and we have assigned responsibility for
maintaining safe work spaces to each department. We
have established the Safety Management Committee
consisting of representatives from management and
employees. The Safety Management Committee ensures
that all responsible departments conduct safety training,
report accidents and implement accident prevention
procedures. The Group also has fire prevention facilities
and conducts fire drills on a regular basis. Production
employees receive regular training on equipment
operation and occupational safety equipment. We
have also adopted accident handling policies, in order
to minimize losses and increase our response time in
accident handling.

6.3.3 ETIRENEZE

FEE-—MeEEREINREELZSE - &
NRETRHEZZ2HNTIERE - BRMMX
IREMRE AKEBRET(FEAR
HEMBERERTAE)  (FEARKNEL
2EEXR) (hEARKMEDERE) FX
RMARE -

REBEEHHABET - ERETABBRRK
E RBETERABEISMNER —S kY
2RB - BMbmE TRETHZ2EI -

IR S TIEPMERIBER - RIPER
BTREES &ETEEW &Ik - PE
KBEBIT KRR E THETERE B -

BMEBERERRER T 2R M%ﬁ
Bz hEsEsERlERaEEYE -

LHR ﬁﬁ1ﬁ7<ﬁ£$§§ﬁﬂ>
(REHEEREHE) (LE2EWEER
E) AZEHBHE)SI0RBELZEEEX
- RERLTENTIERE RS TIRMHIES
WKBERGER L2 TIERFINEE TRYE

EEBFY - RMEK UL E2EEEZES K8
REEERBEINRERENK - L2EEZE
ERRSEENIETLE2EI - |ESW
MM ITERTERRF - KEBIRERHAE

MENP TE BRI T RS - AEB T2 F i
XEBBRERERBELZ2RENEI - K
MIMERIMEREEBER - RANREHRD
BARESERMEEQEEFRHRERR -
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Visual safety Board
ARIEZ2ER
We implemented the visual safety management, and installed board with safety knowledge, which covers the safety
production and occupational health management system, fire escape chart, notice on risk of position safety, safety
label, labor protection equipment etc.
EMR2ERERL RUNRLERBERZEERBERREENE BB ER  MuzZRREN  R2ER
CBRAMFREATS o

Declaration and evaluation of employee safety mechanism project
ST ZEHHIEE R REE
During the Reporting Period, we evaluated the current situation of occupational hazards, passed the declaration of
non-occupational hazard project and established a three-level safety standardization and double prevention
mechanism for special equipment.

WEHA WF?;EHH&%FEEWK%FIﬁﬂTﬁﬂa‘kiﬁiﬁE B BY T =RL 2R RSEREERDEE -

- T — —_—

has banmsnaa
____________ TR LY FTT T St

Bbidddaani b = — S,
—_— FERR

e i -

Safety education and practice
Z2HBHEBEER

We adhered to the unit of one shift or group, and conducted work safety education before operation daily; the Group
also conducted special safety training regularly to enhance the safety awareness of employees. The Group was
equipped with a number of miniature fire stations, and the factories were required to carry out drills on the emergency
plan according to the actual situation to continuously improve the ability of handling on-site emergency.
RMBHAHEREN - SERRMAEEAR2HE  KECTHHRZZ2EREI) BABIL2EH - F5EKE
ZIAMEDED Y - 2RIBRBEERE /Rxﬂ%‘éﬁ* EITER - TERARSESERER

Reducing the safety risk of employees based on the technical transformation of hardware equipment

ERNEERBNEMNEE - BESIZ2EAR

During the Reporting Period, we also carried out a number of modifications for hardware equipment, including but not

limited to automatic modification, to reduce safety risks resulting from touching by dangerous parts or covering by

people/objects. The coverage rate of essential safety of the equipment reached 100%.

BEHR - ROOET T ZEENEFRENIGE - BRETRN 8B EER P ERILER - ADEESRNZT
Ils%fr o RIGHAE Z R BETEL100%

& | We added grating, if someone/object blocked
. the grating against the light, the operating
.| button the on equipment was out of mode, thus
the touch of dangerous parts will be reduced
L ERAM - BB AMREEMET R B
fERERETEE - BRI -

The hydraulic press was reconstructed
automat\cal\y and the feeding in the rear
does not need manual feeding, so as to
achieve automatic conveying by the machine.
BECBCERER - %A LRTREARE
| BER - ERESEDRR
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not suffer any
major work-related injuries or fatalities caused by work.
We have complied with all relevant laws, regulations and
administrative regulations in all major aspects of health
and work safety, and have not received penalties from
Chinese regulatory authorities.

6.3.4 Employment Care

The Group is committed to create a harmonious, warm
and united working environment for employees, and
cares for every employee from various aspects, including
basic necessities of life. We not only consider employee’s
benefit, but also hope to convey our caring for employees
to their families. During the Reporting Period, the Group
sets up the worker helping special fund for staff care
activities, including family support.

IRIR - HBKREIBHRS

BERER - AEERELERTEBEME
EMERERTERIETER - HAERE
HTEFZENMBERNTHGEST T AEHR

@ ERERITBRE AV EZ D P EE
B I FIREE 2

ETRE

KEBYAONRAETLE Lfﬂ%‘ DS @m
MIESE ®HEIMNK B -F 7%

HEAF  BES—ET- qﬁz{FVN /u%
BT  hAHZERMEUETHNEEEEGM

IR A - ERA - AEBERIBTER
HEAS  ARREEFREANETHAEE
@J o

Acquirement of direct drinking water
equipment:

REEHUKRE

The Group appropriated approximately
RMB250,000 for purchasing direct drinking
water equipment which was installed at the
production site, to provide the staff with
healthier drinking water with higher quality.
FEBRANARE2E T EEERSH
BIZKREHKRE  OETRHERS
ERENERAK

Improvement on the environment of
production site:
EESRENE

The Group appropriated approximately
RMB2,400,000 for purchasing factory fan
ventilators, cold air conditioning systems
and environmental protection facilities at the
production site, to provide the staff with
clean air, comfortable temperature and
healthy environment.
FREBRANARM2408 T EEESH
ERBERBIARIL K EARIBIREE
AEIRUEBFRNER  EHFENERESR
BREMNRE o

Employee healthcare programs

BETREMEIER

Diversified staff activities
SHRABTER

We renovated our staff dormitories to provide staff with air-conditioners, heating, internet and TV accesses free of
charge. In order to facilitate the daily life of employees, we provided basketball court, badminton field, washing
machine, bath room, automatic express cabinet and charging device for electric vehicles. Our staff activity room was
equipped with various entertainment facilities, including table tennis facilities, treadmills, karaoke facilities and chess
&cards facilities. To offer our staff with a work-life balance, we carry out diversified monthly theme activities for enrich-
ing spare time.

ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%lﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁz% AEMRAEANER  £EE8E  BF -
5 BIREKE OAE

REBDHRBENESYSAERES - B TEDERBIIIRRE - BIHE - RROK - #
H‘Erw?éymﬂ’lﬁkx it ATEBEIBHNFETFRELE  AARRZRLCNETEALY 8

RABBTHELE - BAREERGNPE
REREBE -
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6.4 Win-win: Actively Practicing Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to public welfare undertakings,
promoting the harmonious development of society. It has
carried out a number of public welfare activities in the
fields of charitable donation, environmental protection
and voluntary services, and actively exerted its influence
to provide women and children in the community with
needed help.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we believe that we
can promote the harmonious development of society by
actively fulfilling the responsibility of improving people’s
livelihood. Our management encourages employees to
improve society through community involvement. The
management and employees of the Group are eager to
help and support the local community and their fellow
citizens through their own actions. The Group insists on
fulfilling its corporate social responsibility. We cooperate
with government, media, hospitals, charities and other
organizations to actively participate in public welfare
activities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated HK$1
million to charitable organizations for the development
of social charities and won the Award of Excellence from
The Community Chest.

The
COMMUNITY

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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APPENDIX: THE CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ek EEBIARE  HERER/REE
GUIDANCE OF ESG REPORT OF HKEX SIRAZES
Disclosure
Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Requirement Disclosure Section
TEEE  EH - -REERBRANESR REEX REEH

A.  Environment
A BE
ASPECT A1:
EMISSIONS
BmEA1: B

ASPECT A2: USE OF

RESOURCES
EEA2: §RER

General disclosure

Information on

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.
—REE
BRERNE
(a) BR: Rk
(b) BFHETAREATENEREERAPINERH -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BREER PRER R R -

AlA
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tons) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)
BiEwEE RERBENE TS R(ER)BE (N EEEE
A1.2 fir - BERMEE) -
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)
BRENRSR MEEEEREMES (VA

i E) R (NER)BE (MASEE

A13 B BIERIGHE) o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)
BMRENEE MELEEREMEE CUEHE) (B ZE(WINEES
A14 B BIERIGHE) o
KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
BRERURS HUREHHENREERAERR o
A15
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BRENRSR HURRRERESERNNSE  HEEESNERRMEN
Al6 Re

General disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and other
raw materials.

—RBE
BRERER(AERR  KREMRIE) O -
KPI A2.1 Direct and / or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.

electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g.

per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREEE RENESMERRREEER(NE - Rod) ERE(UT
A2.1 BTREE) REE(MABES BN - §BLGHE)

ZTREWN - WARDENHT AERETERMOELSH

General disclosure 4. Focus: Supremacy of
Environment Protection

Green Operation

—RBE 4. FIRREELREEE

General disclosure 4.2
—RBE 42

Environment Management
RIEER

General disclosure 4.2.2 Exhaust Gas Emissions

—BEE 422 BEREN

4.2.3 Treatment of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste

General disclosure

—RRE 423 BEREEEEMRE
4.2.3 Treatment of hazardous and

nonhazardous waste

General disclosure

—HE 423 BERBEEEYEE

General disclosure 4.2 Environment Management

— R 42 WEER
4.2.3 Treatment of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste

423 BERBEREREE

General disclosure

—REE

General disclosure 4.1 Save Resources

—REE 41 HHER

General disclosure 4.1.2 Management of Energy

st 412 RERERE
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IRERE - BH - —REERBRERER

ASPECT A3: THE
ENVIRONMENT
AND NATURAL
RESOURCES I.
EEA3: RERAA
&R

B. SOCIAL
B.#E

KPIA2.2

BREWER
A2.2
KPI A2.3

BRERER 1
A23
KPI A2.4

BSRENER
A2.4
KPIA25

RS AMIEIR
A25

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility) .
BRKERTE (WABESEN - BERMHE) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

il BRI R R B AT ERR o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

PSKEUE AR LA EARE - AR R B R PR

BRR-
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tons)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
Sk mAA AR HNES (AN E)

%o

General disclosure
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

—REE

REFTAERERARERENEATZNHE -

KPI'A3.1

BRENER RREBEDHRARANERNEAYERERNERERY

A31

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

20178 -

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

ERREIER
ASPECT B1:
EMPLOYMENT
BEB1: EfE

76

General disclosure
Information on:

(@) the polic

ies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination and other benefits.

—RBE

FRFMLERE  BRERET TS B8 TSR

Lt - R

DA EL A58 MR A0 -

(@) BE:R

(b) ETHETABERVENREEERADINEH -

KPIB1.1

MRENEE
B1.1

KPIB1.2

RRENER
B1.2

Total number of employees by gender, type of employment,
age group and region.

RIth - BREER - FRANRGREADNES R -
Employee turnover by gender, age group and region.
RIEH - FiRARIRBEESNEBRKLE -

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

RUNER) BEERMME

Disclosure
Requirement

RRER
General disclosure
—RE
General disclosure
—BEE

General disclosure

—RRE
General disclosure

—RBE

General disclosure

—RBE

General disclosure

—RBEE

General disclosure

—RBE

Suggested disclosures

Suggested disclosures

Disclosure Section

HEED

4.1.1 Management of Water
Resource

411 KEREE

4.1 Save Resources

41 EHHER

4.1.1 Management of Water
Resource

411 KERER
4.1.3 Management of Packaging

Material
413 BEMEER

4.2 Environment Management

42 IRRER

S5

4.2 Environment Management

42 BEER

i

6.3.1 Employment Overview

631 ERER

6.3.1 Employment Overview

6.3.1 ERER
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

TRER - BH - —REERBEREARER

ASPECT B2: HEALTH
AND SAFETY
EmB2: RERZZ

ASPECT B3:
DEVELOPMENT AND
TRAINING

[EmB3: BRI

ASPECT B4 LABOUR
STANDARDS
EEB4: HTER

General disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—BREE

BRREZ2 TR

(@ HE R

(b) BFHETAREAZENEHEERAPINEH -

BERREEBREBELRZ

KPI B2.1 Work-related fatalities.
BRENEE RIIFERMETHABRLE -
B2.1
KPI B2.2 Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries.
BRENER RIBBRATIERS
B2.2
KPIB2.3 Describe the occupational health and safety measures adopted

and the relevant enforcement and monitoring methods.
BRERER §
B2.3

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.
—REE
BERIVEE BT TR B OME R NNE - 5
KPIB3.1

%% -

senior management, middle management, etc.).

BRANESR REDNREREN(NRAEEE  +REEES) DN

B3.1
KPIB3.2

EERs A
Average number of hours completed by each employee by
gender and type of employee
BRENRS RIUSIREERNES  BEEER
B3.2

EUT S

General disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RBE

BEMILETRAEG54TH

(a) BE: Rk

(b) BTHETABEAZENEBLERRPINER -

RPN BERREL 2 - AT RERE -

Percentage of trainees by gender and type of employee (e.g.

RiR - HE

Disclosure
Requirement

REER

General disclosure

R

Suggested disclosures
EARE

Suggested disclosures

BERE
Suggested disclosures

BERE
General disclosure

—REE
Suggested disclosures
BERE
Suggested disclosures

General disclosure

—RBE

KRE;

a¥hds

Disclosure Section

REEH

6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees

6.3.3 EIREMEZE

6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees
6.3.3 EIRENZZE

N/A
Tam

6.3.3 Health and Safety of

Employees
6.3.3 EIRENZZ

6.3.2 Staff Training and
Development
6.3.2 BTEHIE%E
6.3.2 Staff Training and
Development
6.3.2 BIEIHERE
6.3.2 Staff Training and

Development
6.3.2 ETHIARE

6.3.1 Employment Overview

6.3.1 EREDR
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IRERE - BH - —REERBRERER

Operating practice
2E1EH)

KPI B4.1

BREWER
B4.1
KPIB4.2

BRENER
B4.2

Describe measures to review recruitment practices to avoid
child Labor and forced Labor.
R BREMNEEAREETREHST -

Describe the steps taken to eliminate violations when they are
discovered.

RUESRERBEASERARBAMRR SR -

ASPECT B5: SUPPLY General disclosure
CHAIN MANAGEMENT Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

[EmBS: {EEER

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility
[BEB6: ERE

—REE

ERREENRE L SRREE -

KPIB5.1

BREWER
B5.1
KPIB5.2

BRAMER 1
B5.2

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
RS HHEEEE o

Describe the practices in relation to the employment of

suppliers, the number of suppliers to whom the practices are

enforced, and the methods of enforcement and monitoring
of the practices.

Hi e e B ERAED] -
M&ﬁ@fﬂ%ﬁﬁ&wgﬁi

EHTEREDNEERHE -

General disclosure

Information on:
(a)
(b)

impact o

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

n the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters and remedies of the products and services
provided.

—RBE

BEMREEMBENEEERZ2

(a) BX: R
(o) BFHE
KPI B6.1

BsENER
B6.1
KPI B6.2

s AMIER
B6.2
KPI B6.3

BARERUER H
B6.3

TABERYENRBERRBOINER -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped that must be
recalled for safety and health reasons.

BEACEREREYTEL 2 BRFEMMADRNE DL -

Number of complaints about products and services received
and approach to solve them.

REMRERRRBORFHRA AEETE -

Describe practices relating to the maintenance and protection
of intellectua\ property rights.

i EEE L REASEEEENED -

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

CRE  BERALBEEUARENEN

Disclosure
Requirement

RRER
Suggested disclosures
Suggested disclosures

ERENE

General disclosure

— MR
Suggested disclosures
BERE

Suggested disclosures

General disclosure

—RBE

Suggested disclosures
BERE

Suggested disclosures
Suggested disclosures

BHEBE

Disclosure Section

REEH
6.3.1 Employment Overview
6.3.1 ERFHR

6.3.1 Employment Overview

6.3.1 EFEER

6.2.2 Promote the Fulfillment
of Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities
Continuously

6.22 FHEHDHEBLER(ET

6.2.1 Win-win Partnership
Established with Suppliers

6.21 BUAEABMMERRE
IS

6.2.1 Win-win Partnership
Established with Suppliers

621 BUA
BI%
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3.2 Integrity: Quality-oriented

32 HfE:-BEARK

3.2.4 Quick Response to Quality
Issues
324 BERRERE

6.1.2 Procedures for Managing
Customer Complaints
6.1.2 BFREEMIE

5.4 Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights
54 HMHERRE
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

TRER - BH - —REERBEREARER

ASPECT B7: ANTI-
CORRUPTION
EEBT: RES

Community

HE

Aspect BS:
Community
Investment
EEB8: HEBRE

KPI B6.4
procedures.
BREMER HnERThERERRYER -
B6.4
KPI B6.5

Describe the quality verification process and product recovery

Describe consumer data protection and privacy policies, and

their enforcement and monitoring methods.

BRENEE MURBEEHRERALRER BRI RERE -

B6.5

General disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
—REE
BEVIER  BR  BEEREREN
(@) BE Rk
(b) ETHETARE
KPIB7.1

FENRBERRBOINER -
The number of corruption cases brought and concluded

against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the results of the proceedings.

BEEMER NEY
B7.1 BRARAER -
KPI B7.2

RANHEITARARBRIEY O EENESHRARFNE

Describe preventive measures and reporting procedures, as

well as related enforcement and monitoring methods.

BRMENIEE RARSEERRRER  ARERRTRERE -

B7.2

General disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

st

BEMHE2ERBREEM T ERENRRAERZHEEBHENEN

THEK R X B

TR o
KPI B8.1 Focus on areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
issues, labor needs, health, culture and sports)
MREEE SIEEEE(NHE  BHEEE 4
B8.1 B)e
KPI B8.2 Resources (such as money or time) used in areas of focus

BRENER EEIERMYAER(MEEREH

B8.2

)o

IRIR ~ HEKRE

Disclosure
Requirement

RRER
Suggested disclosures
Suggested disclosures

General disclosure

—RBE

Suggested disclosures

Suggested disclosures

General disclosure

—RBE

Suggested disclosures
Suggested disclosures

a¥hds

Disclosure Section

REEH

32

32

Integrity: Quality-oriented

e HERK

6.1.3 Protection of Customer

Privacy

6.1.3 RFEARE

3.1

3.1

31

3.1

3.1

31

6.4

6.4

6.4

6.4

Integrity: Honesty

Win-win: Actively Practicing
Social Responsibility

Win-win: Actively Practicing
Social Responsibility
HE BEETHEEE

Win-win: Actively Practicing
Social Responsibility

6.4 35  BRETHEERAL
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its registered office address is Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and the
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research
and development, manufacture and sale of automotive interior
decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using financial
key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business as well as environmental
policies and performance, as required by Schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong),
is shown in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 and in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 38
to 79 of this annual report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
COMPANY

Description of possible risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in note 24 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest and
five largest customers for the year ended 31 December 2019
represented approximately 37.6% (31 December 2018: 42.2%)
and 87.9% (31 December 2018: 89.0%), respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue from sales operations.

The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s largest
and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December
2019 represented approximately 13.4% (31 December 2018:
9.6%) and 39.4%, respectively (31 December 2018: 34.1%).
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34.1%) °



So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders who are
interested in more than 5% of the issued share capital of our
Company has any interests in the five largest customers or the
five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development
in the long term, continuously create value for its employees
and customers, and foster good relationships with its suppliers.
The Group understands that employees are its valuable assets,
and the realization and enhancement of employees’ values will
facilitate the achievement of the Group’s overall goals. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided generous
social security benefits to its employees to motivate them
while heightening their sense of belonging. The Group also
understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to the overall development of
the Group. The Group places emphasis on supplier selection
and encourages fair and open competition to foster long-term
relationships with quality suppliers on the basis of mutual trust.
To maintain the competitiveness of its brand and products, the
Group abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness
and commits itself to consistently provide quality products to
establish a reliable service environment for its customers. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no significant
and material dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/
or customers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.6 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by
the Shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 12 June 2020. The Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or about 18 August 2020 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 24 June 2020.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to building an
environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close attention
to conserving natural resources. We strive to minimize our
environmental impact by saving electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
and note 17 to the financial statements in this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note
28 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

REBRE
BEEEMARBRMNEE2019F12A318ILEE
KEARS B EAL E@mAL0.678 (1L ([ R EIRR A ) -
B R EIAY B/BEA RN 2020F6 A12H 81T 2 B
ERFEFRE FHEEE - B2 ARBAREER
20204F8 A 18 B k7% A BRI & A1 74202046 H24 H
ZHNAR B R A IR ER LT ©

BEEAAERRNELRAERETARENE
BE

[N
RRABBAREANE S EBERNAEEHEHRE
Bif5E23 -

REBRRERR

AEBBEGERRAFENL - HERAMIRE
BABRNRREE - HFIEBEOREMKRE
BYERB AN AR REME - BHREERE

HRE -

BFHEBEERESR

HE2019F12HA31HILFE - BAREFTAE -
AEFEWERERERFTETEIME AEBEERE X
BEBEATENBREENER -

RITRE R H A AR
ERF BN ANER BEE T wm M | —& R
FIHRI B IRAMFET -

REHEREMH
WE MR B FBRNAF R TERARMME28 o



PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB213.2million of which RMB10.8
million has been proposed as a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 23 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy. The Company's dividend
policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the
Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future development. When considering the
dividend payment, the Board shall take into account the factors
including but not limited to the Company’s operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and
future development requirements , shareholders’ interests and
other factors that the Board considers relevant.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, neither our Company, nor its subsidiary have
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company as of the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules at any time up to
the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profit of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office
or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made
a donation of HK$1 million to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Bierui

Mr. Zhao Shijie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian

Mr. Hou Jianli and Mr. Zhao Shijie shall retire from office by
rotation in accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and
considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 24 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing from 15 January 2019
for an initial term of three years unless terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing to the
other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 15 January 2019 unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.
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None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1 and
16.2 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered
into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2 and
15.3 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or an
entity connected with him/her or Controlling Shareholder of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
under review.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company
and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 8 and 9 to
the financial statements in this annual report. The emoluments
of the Directors is determined by reference to the relevant
Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload and the time
devoted to our Group.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete with that of our Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company are set out in the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive of our
Company in our Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which, were required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions in
which any of them was taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein or which were required to be notified to our Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(a) Interest in our Company
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(a) RELFHER

Number of Shares Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding

HEERR HEHE RGEHAB (KHizE1) BREDE

Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

‘R E fo i - s EE R (f2)

Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

BREt BofBiEes - RIEHERER (Fi2)

Notes: B3

1. The letter “L” denotes our Directors’ long position (as 1. FEILIERMEBSNZERONETE (B

defined under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued
share capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially
and legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and
Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr.
Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

RESRHEEHIEXVEL) °

2. BEEERBRZTHEM - H&C Group
Holding Limited )& ZB 2 B1TAR A5 Bl B &
FERRLZLERRAEREG60% %40% °
BIEEF RBAERG] - FmAEERRLTHHE
R B H&C Group Holding Limited Fri &Y
MRIZE RO HEB R -
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(b) Interests in our associated corporations (b) RBBEEMER
Name of Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Director corporation Nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding
BEEng LB ER EEME RO EE (M) BERD L
Mr. Hou H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)
&xRE H&C Group Holding Limited ~ B##A A : BBz (HE2)
Ms. Chen H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)
MLt H&C Group Holding Limited ~ B#ZHA A : BB (F2)
Notes: BT
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under 1. FHRILIERZEROHOITE (EERBEHRK

Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued
share capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially
and legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and
Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr.
Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of our Company
has any interests or short positions in our shares, underlying
shares or debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions in which any of them was
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or corporations
who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

Directors’ Report
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EFBHS

FERRRROIEBERDFEFNERR
029}

RAFHRBEH - REBEZHFRABKOIIEXVEBE2
REIDERMA R RIRE RRIEZ H RS D
FE336IFABIFNERLRMATCE - TIALIOEER
A7 A B R A7 S AR RE AR {0 7R A B 2 50K 2 A
T

Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding
RERER ERME A8 (1) BRESL
H&C Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%

E=EAA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
&EAE controlled corporation (Note 2)

ISR - RIEHEE R (Ai22)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
FR 2zt controlled corporation (Note 2)

IS « RIEHEEER (A22)
Notes: BiRE
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. FEILIFERZFBRONTE (ERAEHRHE

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held
by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
the directors were not aware of any other person or corporation
having an interest or short position in shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

TRBIZEXVER) -

2. BEREABRLZTHEMS - H&C Group Holding
Limited 82 Z B BT A D Bl &%k & R L
B RAZEHEF60% K40% - RIEFHRKHE
IﬂﬁlJ f%%i&ﬁ%ﬁiﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬁ’%&c Group
Holding Limited Fr#FaAERI £k B B (5 B A o

B EXRBEESN  RAFRAS - EEHTNBE

MEMATSOEEMRARR R SRR H %A

*E?F 85 KBS (R PIZE XV 2BFE2 K FE 30 #AR A
T%&E@r&@ﬁ% 85 NS (R DIZE 336 %A BT
B msRe -

ANNUAL REPORT 43 2019 89



90

Directors’ Report

=Dl

5]

BikE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 or the
period following 31 December 2019 up to the date of this
annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and none of the Directors and chief
executive, or their spouse and children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government authorities
for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and operates
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in
note 6 to the financial statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019, which did not constitute
connected transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are set out in note 26 of the financial statements in this annual
report.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation from
each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou Jianli, Ms. Chen
Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect of the compliance with
the terms of the non-compete undertaking (the “Non-compete
Undertaking”), entered into between the Covenantors and the
Company as set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings
From Our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Each
of the Covenantors has confirmed and declared that he/she/
it had strictly complied with the Non-compete Undertaking
without any breach thereof. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors had reviewed the matters relating to the enforcement
of the Non-compete Undertaking and consider that the terms
of the Non-compete Undertaking have been complied with
by each of the Covenantors for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

ESWEROHEEENER

RATREEFMEARNREZ2019412H831H
IEFE A AREES R L A AX s - BUFESR#
Uit B AN 2 ) B AT ) L i 02k B 9 IR 1) ok 1 0 7 i 2
% MEZE2019F12A31BIEFE - 8% 1FE
KB B 185 IA T B F X B E A ST E (R
AR BIEHRER o

RKER TS
AEBERASESERNPEIES 2 EF Ei K
FREFFIE A E BHEFR KBRS - WREEFE
sREEATEER A BRD R ERIET S EBIEIER
ZRERIBRFIEATEERE - AR FRIKGE
B RF IR BN A R 75 R MY 56 -

B AR5
HZE2019F12A31A EFE - AEEHEEB H R
S (TR ETRNEIIASE T 2 EEESS)
2 IBHR AT IR SRR MIFE26 o

THRBRE

NN B H&C Group Holding Limited - &2
A - BBl Z T ([2EA DS ERETHERE
BrlEERRROBEE — BRIMERRR 2 T3
FAG | — S FTE A AR B R] M AR R
FE(THFEE DK BELOEEER - SHHEA
BRI EH R - E—HERISET T RFEE -
WHEEREREMER - 2EBUIFRTESEE
BEBTHEFARRTEINEE  UTRAESHH
AREBZE2019F12A31B I FEE BT I HEEA
FEEER o



AUDITORS
The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

KPMG will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xi‘an, the PRC, 27 March 2020

Directors’ Report

=l

=)

8BS

B BED
BZE2019F12A31RILFE - AAREREES
& SR ST R AN A R BAD o

EHHS A EBISRELTAEREENERE
BRBFXAGEEERE - AAFKREERREF
REREAZR  BREESHSHMEBAA/ER
BIAZERAD -

KEEFE
PEXRSERMGRERAT
T

&EF

R % 202063 H27H

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2019 91



92

Independent Auditor’s Report
1B 2GRS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 196,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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201912 A31HMRE M BAANE - BEZH L
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

RREGEE

RE FRERERMANEEAE - RASHAH
REMBHRRNBEITRAERNETR - GELEHE
ERMEFERGAVTRRL L AZ RRETTR
B - AT SHELEREHEBNER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Loss allowance for trade receivables

BZBRRBRERER

FRESTSEE)

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)(i)

and 2(j).
B[4 & BT #RZ AT 147024(a) R 1at2(q)() #2() # € 5B % -

The Key Audit Matter

BREBEEE

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a significant
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted to
RMB164,505,000, representing approximately 31.48%
of the Group’s total assets at that date, against which
loss allowance of RMB 3,001,000 was recorded.
2019512 A31H - EXENE ZEUGIERBER/AR
#164,505,0007C  {EEEERZABEEREEELD
31.48% - xS EEEE AR E3,001,0007T °

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from heavy
truck and passenger vehicle manufacturers.
BEEENESRBFTIATERGER RELRARERE
7o

Management measures loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss for
trade receivables which is based on ageing of the
receivables and expected loss rate.

B BRI E 5 1R WO IR B0 R i 0 TR B B 18 4R A
FHOEREEFRASEABEERER -

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because determining the level of
loss allowance is inherently subjective which requires
significant management judgement.

B E 5 RKFIEBIEEEET RRRETFHE
RETEBRERKERNE FRIEN  FEELERN
B HI e -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

E TSI AR

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for
trade receivables included the following:

SR E 5K TR R LB ARNBIHEF OE T

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and estimate of credit loss
allowances;

RN AT A E IR EREEES - ERRRNEEEEE
BNt AR AR EIERE - B MEERIE

assessing whether items were correctly categorised
in the trade receivables ageing report by comparing a
sample of individual items with the underlying goods
delivery notes, sales invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation;
BRAKEAEROERNEEEYRMNE - HEERMHE
AR SCIEEITH R - IR R RABHEE 5 R IIRFUA
FRiRIRE P IEHD R

assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates for trade receivables by
examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on latest financial information of major
customers, current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and
BRREEEERAZKILRABNER  FEERE
HEHRWFIABEERGANEEN  SFAFAEL
BRABHONERIL  WRBFEZPHNSFMBEMT
HREEEARRESEEE AR - REFINLHEMR T
RIREMEEER A0

Inspecting relevant underlying documentation
in respect of significant payments made by the
customers after the end of the reporting period.

RBEMRE - REABEPEANRAOBEXIE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

DN EA ST

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

LR A B IR EZ M 4 R AT 532(q) BB AT B

The Key Audit Matter

BERETEE

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and exterior
decorative products is recognised when products are
delivered at the customers’ premises, the customers
take possession of and accept the products, which is
taken to be the point in time when the Group transfers
control over the products to the customers.
BEEVREPSHRN  BEREEREMERR - BIK
BREESEER/SYERNEHEEETZEPHE—@E
W% - SHE TERIMIE R WA T ERAR ©

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because revenue is a key performance
indicator of the Group which increases the risk that the
timing of revenue recognition may be manipulated to
meet financial expectations or targets.

BB BAERSHAERETEE  ARBRARE
SE—TANRRRIREER - EINA R BE IR A ZE R
B FE Ak B AR AR -

FRESTSEEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EITERMAREIR

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of recognition
of revenue included the following:
HEEHEW AR HRENEEFBRATRE

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls in relation to
revenue recognition;

o BEMRKETLE IR B W AR A BRI A 2B R
it BisMEERIL

® inspecting key customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to goods acceptance and
assessing the Group’s revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o mBEHEEBEEFNAL - UEREEYRAA B IEK
Mgt - WIRER TS ERNREFEEEB KA

R

e comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the financial
year end date with underlying documentation, which
included goods acceptance notes, to assess whether
the revenue had been recognised in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts and in the appropriate
financial periods;

o HREAERE  WERMBFEAERAAZESHEE
WARZ BN XIE (BIEEYENE) - UFHERAZ
BERRHE S HIRRN & @Y BUEAR R

* inspecting underlying documentation for manual
journal entries relating to revenue which were recorded
during the year and which met other specific risk-
based criteria; and

o IRBEERNEFUAER NS EMEERBRIFEF
Teato BBt &
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FRESTSEE)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

W AT SRR
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).
DR A B EIRE N FAR AT 2(q) B9 B 5TBUR
The Key Audit Matter

HARETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BT S E AR

e obtaining external confirmation of, on a sample basis,
transaction amounts for the year and debtor balances
as at the financial year end directly with customers.

o REBEAEE BEERAZFERFERFISEMNEEY
BFERE HREWFIARTERAZ L

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

EENGEUBBRARNER

EXAARBEREHEARESRHNERTS
WEEANRBBARGEINORBEREREELEE
NFRRHGEMHRE  WEEBESRRVEN
WEBESIE - RN R A A M B mRE T ER
HREF kB SR T 5| BN B A SR AR R

EREGRIBHREE  EEAHENHEEERE
AL YHEERBA TRERSELEEH
MR URERRELE RS ER  BIFES
EEREREBFRNELLE  HREEMEREN
BHO%E-

ERZEQMMEZERITRENEML  EEEE
R TS R ERRAR ©

JiE]

BB ET RS M B RRAENER

BAWER  EHSRANMBTREABREBES AR
REGF R MEMMERNHBRRAIBSEEZ
& WHABREMERMZBERS - AHEE
AR TMERSEBRBRE @ Rt MRS RIEEME
B e AT ERARENATAEAEMALE L
SAESEEMELT ©

BEEELRKENRE  ETERIRREEE
FPEREITRERT - AR - EXERRAFAERZ
BEFEIR o SHERFRAL AT LA KRS EERR M 51 B - IR
BEFARNA BB E AR A EREMHRER
ERERRESR S VB RERPIELNEERE @ BIF
B8 Y EE SRR AT AR AE BN ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BB ET RN BREAENELE S
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEARBIZEMBENETBERABABALRX

=+

independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai. S

KPMG EEHSTTRERM
Certified Public Accountants B AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BEBPIR

10 Chater Road EFTIE105%

Central, Hong Kong KFARESE

27 March 2020 202063 A27H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S\ O L
gﬁl’\Cl S«

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in Reminbi (“RMB”)) (AN ¥ ([ A ) 51R)

Note 2019 2018
(Note)
Bfat (B%E)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBTT

Revenue WA 4 297,907 263,820

Cost of sales SHE AR (196,719) (173,915)

Gross profit EF 4(b) 101,188 89,905

Other income/(loss) Hi A (E518) 5 6,056 (596)

Selling expenses HEER (9,266) (7,278)

Administrative expenses TE R (40,337) (41,598)

Profit from operations ReEHRR 57,641 40,433

Finance costs BTG AR 6(a) (5,724) (7,577)

Profit before taxation BRBL AT R 6 51,917 32,856

Income tax FTiS®i 7(a) (7,095) (4,840)
Profit attributable to equity AFIERRRELFERE

shareholders of the Company for F
the year 44,822 28,016
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXREE(ARED) 10 2.25 1.87

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out

in Note 23(c).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HRelEnRHbhZBIGEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
Expressed in RMB (LA B ¥317)

2019 2018
(Note)

(B&E)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREFIT
Profit for the year FRRF 44,822 28,016

Other comprehensive income for the year (after FRHEAMEEUA

tax): (HBRBIEE)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AlaefEie EFHEEIE
profit or loss: mHIER ¢
— Exchange differences on translation into — BMEAREEZIE
presentation currency of the Group KR M B =R (127) 664
Total comprehensive income attributable to ARERBRREMFEAZ
equity shareholders of the Company for the [EEU N
year 44,695 28,680

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using ~ Ht3T : REE N 201951 A1 B IRARKB B EE X fE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, FBIBR B IS TR RSB 1657 « BRI TA - 8
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c). BRIREET - BHF2(C)

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial ~ F109E 196 & 7 stk NI FEHER M —Z D o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ml'ﬁ

S IFIRRE

At 31 December 2019 72019412 831H
Expressed in RMB (LA FE#EZITR)

Note 2019 2018
(Note)
Bfat (HMF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E =N 11 128,983 114,501
Lease prepayments HETERFIA — 9,486
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEVE BWERREZ
property, plant and equipment TEfI5RIE 15(a) 22,962 9,322
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIAE & 22(b) 1,880 758
S 153825 134,067
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 13 60,814 27,252
Trade and bills receivables =YL& IE&FEHQmﬁ@ 14 235,944 132,965
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA e B At e U TR 15(b) 12,021 11,324
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFERS 16 59,948 33,385
368,727 204,926
Current liabilities REEE
Bank and other loans RITREAMER 17 73,691 37,449
Trade and bills payables B SR RIBERENEE 18 168,406 136,867
Accrued expenses and other payables  fE5HFISE K H e R0E 19 36,409 27,576
Amounts due to the controlling VH? AR AR R SRIE
shareholders — 1,405
Lease liabilities HEAE 20 1,007 —
Current taxation BNHARH IR 21(a) 3,595 2,318
e ARy . 205,615
Netcurrent assets/(liabilities)  #"EBRE(AfOF® 85619 ___......(689)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 239,444 133,378

Mt : REEMN20195F1 A1 BIRAKEENEE X E

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial

statements.

FA B B s i s A RSB 165%
o RIftEE2(c) °

BRAREET
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tRe M IR E

At 31 December 2019 720194 12831H
Expressed in RMB (LA B ¥317)

Note 2019 2018
(Note)
it (FF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Bank and other loans IRITRHEMER 17 4,395 15,359
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 1,983 —
Deferred income FRIEUA 22 2,347 2,572
. 8725 17,931
NET ASSETS EEFE 230,719 115,447
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 23
Share capital [N 17,522 13,216
Reserves 1 213,197 102,231
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 230,719 115,447

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using & : AREBER2019F1 A1 BERALE B EBE X E
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, BRI E 2RI 1658 - BIFULTTE - LR

comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c). BRAREEY - RHIFE2(C) °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  EE & 202043 A27 A #it f I =43 -

27 March 2020.

Hou Jianli Zhao Shijie
&=ER iR

Chairman Executive Director
T HiTEF

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial ~ F109E 196 & 7 stk NI FEHER M —Z D o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SiExsgnE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
Expressed in RMB (LA FE#EZITR)

Attrioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

RoARRRERL
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium feserve feserve feserve profits Total
o RAEE AR figid Eifie il it
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB100 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO00
NREFT NRETT ARETT NRETT NRETT NRETT NREFT
Noe2db)  (Moe23dl)  Moe2Xdil)  (Noe23iglil) (oo 24l
) N < ) R s VR < ) 2 1)
Balance at 1 January 2019 201981415 13216 51482 (17,500 1423 1921 52,146 115447
Changes in equity for the year BEN9E12A3 AL EE 2 E
ended 31 December 2019: #48:
Proft for the year EREH - - - - - 44822 14622
Other comprehensive ncome for heyear ~—— EREHAEYA - - - - (127) - (127)
Total comprehensive income for the year EW%@EU&)\ = - - - 12— Mg 446%
Issuance of shares by nifal public ofieing. ~~ EiBENABRERARM(H
(Note 23 2 4306 57152 - - - - 91458
Dividends approved and paid nrespectof the 3 F—EEH TR A#RS
previous year (Note 23c)) (FEE231c)) - (10.220) - - - - (10.220)
Inerim dividends declared and paid BERTE AR ERa
(Note 23(c)) %) - (10,661) - - - - (10,861)
Appropriaton fo reserve AEEE - - - 5,066 - (5,066) -
L T . S . )
Balance at 31 December 2019 H2019E12R31R 1752 17,703 (17,500 19298 17% 91,902 230,719

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial
statements.

Bt - REERR2019F1 A1 BERALETRE TR E
PRI 81 M i & 2E RSB 658  RIFULTTE - LB
ERAREESY - RHfEE2(c) °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
Expressed in RMB (A R 5175)

Attrioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

FOTRRRRES
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium fesere feserve feserve profits Total
o RirkE B iy EXEH (R 3t

RMBOCO RUBOO RMBOO RMBOO RUBIO0D RMBO0O RMBOCO
MNRETL ARETR ARETR NRETT NERETT NREFT NRETTL
(Noie23b)  (Note23(cl)  (Note23)i)  (Note3(ci)  (Note 23(d)(v)
% ) 7 ) 1 s 72 ) )]

Balance at 1 January 2018 H018E1A1R - - (17500) 11,108 1267 41,068 3923

Changes in equity for the yearended 31~ EZ2018E 12531 AL EE 2

December 2018; #88:
Proft for the year ERER - - - - - 2016 8016
Other comprehensive income for heyear ~ EMELZENA - - - - 64 - 664
Total comprehensive income fo the year EW%EHM = - - - a0 28680
Issuance of shares LUE] - 64648 - - - - 64648
Capialisaton ssue Enlaf 13216 (13.216) - - - - -
Dividends declared in espect of he previous 3 F—ERERARE (M3t

year (Note 23(c)) 2(0)) - - - - - (13804) (13.804)
Appropriaton o reserve AEERR - - - 314 - (3124) -

13216 51432 - 314 - (16,928) 50844

Balance at 31 December 2018 018128315 13216 51432 (17,500 1423 1921 52,146 115447

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial ~ F109E 196 & 7 stk NI FEHER M —Z D o
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
Expressed in RMB (LA FE#EZITR)

Note 2019 2018
(Note)
Bfat (HMF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREF T
Operating activities ReEE
Profit before taxation BRAE A& A 51,917 32,856
Adjustments for: BATSEEDAE
Depreciation and amortisation Pree RSy 6(c) 13,733 12,804
Net gain on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE - BiE & REK
and equipment R 5 (73) —
Finance costs B TSR AR 6(a) 5,724 7,577
Interest income FLEMA 5 (248) (239)
Amortisation of deferred income AL PN: 55! 22 (225) (225)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEMm), R (33,562) 2,120
Increase in trade and bills receivables ‘& 5 EUEIE K EREZE
18840 (102,979) (5,410)
Increase in prepayments and other TR SRIE B H R R
receivables 0 (8,571) (8,190)
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR HIER 1T IE R 0 (9,702) (9,030)
Increase in trade and bills payables BHRNRERENER
0 31,539 16,006
(Decrease)/increase in accrued Euf%ﬁiﬁﬁ{‘@ﬁ?ﬁm
expenses and other payables A, (2,822) 4,951
Cash (used in)/generated from
operations “weE(frA),/ FERe (55,269) 58,220
Income tax paid BREEH 21(a) (6,940) (5,892)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE (FTA) /i8R
operating activities R (62,209) 52,328
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using M3 : REE RN 201961 A1 BB B EE X fE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial

statements.

BB oS
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

Expressed in RMB (LA B ¥317)

Note 2019 2018
(Note)
Htat (M%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Investing activities RETEE
Payments for purchase of property, EEME - BB MEEN L
plant and equipment and land use THIFEREZ R
right (31,298) (34,054)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEZF
plant and equipment BRA 230 —
Interest received BUHE 248 239
Net cash used in investing activities REFEHFAARES T (30,820) (33,815)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans IRITREAME RIS KIA 16(b) 147,813 130,000
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMEN 16(b) (122,535) (170,280)
Proceeds from bills discounting ERARIRFTS A 14,701 —
Proceeds from issuance of shares AR B TFTS5RIE — 64,648
Proceeds from issuance shares by initial iﬁiﬂé/'ﬂ’&?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
public offering, net of share issuance Fr {3 5k 38 (FOBR AR 10 21T 5
expenses ) 23(b)(i) 99,332 —
Payments for acquisition of equity
interest of Xi'an Tianrui WHE P8 % RIm AR 2 NP5k = (68,025)
Net (decrease)/increase in the amounts ~ FEUIEAR AR R FR B R (38
due to the controlling shareholders N5 16(b) (1,346) 30,591
Dividend paid BARRE 16(b) (22,505) (12,180)
Interest paid BERFE 16(b) (5,573) (7,577)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEBFAE(FFTA)RE
financing activities HE 109,887 (32,823)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BHE&RBRESZEYWHEM GR
cash equivalents D)REE 16,858 (14,310)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year FHIEERESEEY 16(a) 13,385 27,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes HNEERSFHFTE 3 —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year FERESREASEEY 16(a) 30,246 13,385

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 196 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time. The shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 January 2019. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
automotive interior and exterior decorative components
and parts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

1

ARIER

PEIREAEAEIEER AR ([ ARF DR
20174 27 BIRBLETEHEET « fFmsIA
Hip R EHERES QA RIA(1961F%
Bl= &R E KB ERSHS MK A
ERRBRRT - XATRMHHR2019F1 A
15REEBBERZAERAT ([BRAT])
FHRET - RAARIRENB AR (FHE[A
SEDEFERBAERNIMEMT I HFRIER

EpN-

(a) BHEEH
1 S5 B 75 SR R AR 3 P 7 R PR B 7 R
HER (BRI SRE LR DRR - 3%
sEeEERerElREse((EEg
FHEREES ) BHRATE BREME
BREA SRS R - BURR & AT 2R ([ B
SRR ) KRB KREB A SHER &Y
WEATE o ILEMHRERNG ST
BHEMEEN EMAR D RERRE
& - AEBATRAMNERSFTEER
NI o

RERERE RS AME TR &
RAEFTBIR M 5 s 2R - ZFREAR
REBHNAS M ERER KA HIZ
B8R - BREAZENR] MEETH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

BERESHBER @)

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

2

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2 EBEAEHEE®)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Except for IFRS 16, Leases as disclosed below,
none of the developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form
of a lease. It introduces a single accounting model
for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and
leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from IAS 17
substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from
1 January 2019. The Group has elected to use
the modified retrospective approach, with the
cumulative effect of initial application (if any)
recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under IAS 17.

(c)

SETBCREE (5
BRUATRENRRI BHREERF16
SRAESN - BEEEEAEE RN
LY EMEFHMAIBEHRENEER
BIBARREEERTE - AEBWAREK
WA E BT T HAR M R E AV FTRT
AR RRE o

B BREEAFE165 - HE
BIFR B TS s ERIFE 16 MK ER S
SHERIE 17 E AR RE - B
M HRERBEZEEREBRIN  EF
—BLZHELEEHE  wBRHZR
EeRBE159  KLEHE—ERR
BREBZEEREFR2TRFE LR
HEZZEEAR ZRIAE » BRFEEA
SIANB—gtRIERN - ZRAZIOK
BAARERREAREENEE
BE - HHEARI2EASIUTHEE
(MEHEE ) RMEEEEERI - HAE
BETRERE S ABER S ER S

B G REERFE165ESIAT HE
fEMEMEEREEK - SEEIHR
KB BEERMIEEEL TRNPE
MR BBRENRSRENTE -

REFDN2019F1A1BEE RER
BB BT 7SR5 2RI 1657 - AEEE
BEERACESITTEYRE  BEXREAN
RETHE(INE ) ERALE2019F14
1HESBYERNARE - LRERT
FE - WEEREBREBR SRS
175REHR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

BERESHBER @)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

(a) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of
a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered
into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under IAS 17 continue
to be accounted for as leases under IFRS 16
and contracts previously assessed as non-
lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

112  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl K58 pghi IR A R
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(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2 EBEAEHEE®)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by IAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. As far as the Group is
concerned, these newly capitalised leases
are primarily in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in Note 11(b).

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1
January 2019), the Group determined the
length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases
previously classified as operating leases
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the relevant
incremental borrowing rates at 1 January
2019.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of IFRS 16 in respect of
the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within 12
months from the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term
ends on or before 31 December 2019;
and
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EpN--E e {C)
EITECREH(8)
(b) FREANESHEERBEZTE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

()

(ii)

when measuring the lease liabilities at
the date of initial application of IFRS 16,
the Group applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for
a similar class of underlying asset in a
similar economic environment).

The right-of-use assets in relation to
leases previously classified as operating
leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised
for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the statement of
financial position at 31 December 2018.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in “property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 ~ EAEFHBR(E)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) ETFBXR2E @)
(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b) EEANETEERBEZER
(Continued)
The following table summarises the T 2% B BR R B B B S SR
impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16 on EHEHIEA 6%¥T$% B4R
the Group’s consolidated statement of EMBARRERNTE
financial position:
Capitalisation
and
Carrying  reclassification Carrying
amount at of operating amount at
31 December lease 1 January
2018 contracts 2019
20184 LeHg 20194
125317 BEEZLL 1514
HEREE RESE WEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Line items in the consolidated RAMBRARAZH
statement of financial position REBSBREE
impacted by the adoption of RISE165E 8 HE
IFRS 16: B:
Property, plant and equipment Y% BEKR 114,501 9,486 123,987
Lease prepayments MERMTE 9,486 (9,486) —
(c) Impact on the financial result and cash (c) HAEFYBHBERBEELREN

flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. This results in a positive impact on the
reported profit from operations in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if IAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

&
20191 A1 R SR E AR
BERMERER  A5EEAR
AAAEERRAEEERES
TR F B A A RS
EEENE  MARELATEE
FHERNREREERRLE
HEBETEAMESRY - 8%
REANERBRE ST R E 175
Fim ERELE  HEAER

AEBRANSMLLHEFE
EEE%%°
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(c)

Impact on the financial result and cash
flows of the Group (Continued)

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital element
and interest element. These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under IAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case
for operating leases under IAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of IFRS 16 therefore results in a change in
presentation of cash flows within the cash flow
statement.

The following tables may give an indication
of the estimated impact of adoption of IFRS
16 on the Group’s financial result for the year
ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting the
amounts reported under IFRS 16 in these
consolidated financial statements to compute
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that
would have been recognised under IAS 17
if this superseded standard had continued
to apply to 2019 instead of IFRS 16, and by
comparing these hypothetical amounts for
2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding
amounts which were prepared under IAS 17.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EXE:EHE®)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) ETFBXR2E @)
(c) Impact on the financial result and cash (c) HEIEZEHHBEERELRER
flows of the Group (Continued) HEm)
2019 2018
Deduct:
Estimated
Add back: amounts  Hypothetical  Compared to
IFRS 16 related to amounts amounts
Amounts  depreciation operating for 2019 reported for
reported and interest leases as if as if under 2018 under
under IFRS 16 expense  under IAS 17 IAS 17 1AS 17
W

NE: EEREREST EERERET H018FRE
REEREER REEREBER ZUETEAS RUFTEHE ERSHENE
HRAFI6HE SF6RARN LOCERER  HN2019FR 17TRZHENEE

ReE FERNSMX  BEHEE ReH .y
(A) (B) (€)  (D=A+B-C)
RMB’000 RMB*000 RMB’000 RMEB*000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AREFR AR®TR

Financial result for the year BZ2019512731A

ended 31 December 2019 I FE S RAEPRE
impacted by the adoption of K& &R F16%
IFRS 16: FEENIREE :
Profit from operations F- v 57,641 373 (439) 57,575 40,433
Finance costs BBRA (5,724) 151 — (5,573) (7.577)
Profit before taxation BRBATRR 51917 524 (439) 52,002 32,856
Profit for the year FRET 44,822 524 (439) 44,907 28,016
As there are no cash outflow in relation to %ii2019$12ﬂ31 HIEFE - £
above operating lease for the year ended 31 MgEHERR ML - FALEK
December 2019, the adoption of IFRS 16 does AR RSB E 16T
not have impact on the consolidated cash flow HIREREeREREEATE -
statement.
(d) Subsidiaries (d) MEBAE
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. B AT EAREFITHINEEE - A&
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or BASHEZELATEME 2O E
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement - BB IERESERIENVE
with the entity and has the ability to affect those ZEORES - BIREEE %‘JEAE‘EL“Q -
returns through its power over the entity. When S ARERELEAZENE  Be
assessing whether the Group has power, only BERASEREMALTHENE D E#
substantive rights (held by the Group and other Ff o

parties) are considered.
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2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative equity interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interests
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interests retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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2 EBEAEHEE®)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)).

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest;

— buildings situated on leasehold properties;
and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
plant and equipment (see Note 2(f)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

(e)

AT - Wi M sk 7R B THIRA SR
R E LR EEBEER AR (R HE2(g)
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2 EAEHHBE®

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) Y% - - WERRMEE
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of ME - BB MREEE ITER NI
items of property, plant and equipment, less their AFERTH  EHREGAFRSREER
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight (WE)E - LNESEMBBEKARTE
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
Estimated useful lives
EEAERES
Plant and buildings WE REF 10 - 40 years
10240F
Machinery and equipment WEREE 5-10 years
5Z106
Moulds BA 4 -5years
4Z5F
Motor vehicles and other equipment RENEN T 5-10 years
5Z10F
Right-of-use assets: BREARE -
—  Land-use-right leased for own use — TfEERMITibHRE Over the unexpired term of lease
RAEBRNEESRR
—  Plant and buildings — BERETF 5 years
5%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and 2 - B MR EBIE A NEBHEE T
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the RIRATAFH - %A B R ASE
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the BERFIT TR - SE RS
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both FE - BENAEAFHRRRER
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, (B )HEGFHEITEZ - THBEEST
if any, are reviewed annually. No depreciation is T B A RYERUE MR - FRt AR
provided in respect of construction in process until TEMITE -
it is completed and ready for its intended use.
Leased assets (f) HEEE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

®

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

(Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(e) and

2(g)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases as
finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases which
did not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
were classified as operating leases.

Where the Group acquired the use
of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments,
of such assets were recognised as
property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, were recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it was
likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in Note 2(e). Impairment losses
were accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in Note
2(g). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments were charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

®

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative
basis was more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(q).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the exemption described in
Note 2(f)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECL on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other receivables)
and contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for trade
and other receivables and contract assets
are discounted using the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof, where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (/4 5 & i+ 852 5|

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— failure to make payments on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
market, economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(q)(ii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

2 EBEAEHEE®)
(9) EEBBEREERE®R)

(1)

FEHMTAREEENZE
BB (1E)

EHEEFENSHEOBES
FatE  URBERTEEER
BB VA ERR AR IR E) - 78
HEEBEESENTNESNE
SRR ARERSKEE - A%
ERtFrE £ Rt T ERRE K
gEE - TBABEHEREYS
E T AMBRAEELH AT -

FIR KA Byt EEZE

RARMFE2(q) (i) #E R E A B
ADERE BB EMREAER
8 EeREERREERMER
BRON - FEUER T - FBUWAE
RE BE R A (A BRE
RERERER)FE -

RERESEH - AEEFEESR
BERGHBEERE E%4%
SHZEREEMLIRERDR
BERTHNZEN—BXZHE
o BeREESRIERDR
EERIE

ANNUAL REPORT 43 2019 129



Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2 EBEAEHEE®)
(9) EEBBEREERE®R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

—  prepayments for acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment; and

— investment in a subsidiary in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Inventories and other contract costs

(1)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or suppliers to be consumed
in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (/4 5 & i+ 852 5|

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(h)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventories (see
Note 2(h)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
capitalised when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected
to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in
the future; and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour,
direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract. Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventories are expensed as incurred.

BN B HESIR)
2 EAREFHEE®
(h) FEREMEHRAEE)
(i)  EMEAIEA
HEMAEHRANERESHEFNE
YNEEXNASBITEHEFNE

KRR - B BRI B AF BT
B (RHEE2(h)(0) ) MEBEEA -

ERANMNEERASAREE
BEREFHEHMELMZFK
AR RESE DAL EES
FERA) - Bl EHERS -
11 B3 7S B2 45 170 2R SR ¥R 75 HATR] PO e
REmBRE - RIERSAHRE
ERAGREEREIEELER - B
PXATERAS W E - BIFAORE
AR ELER X 8E -

fis B A B3R 5 & 495k AT R A3 5
MBSO EEER  BIETA
PR A SEIEE R  EEKR
FHi R B & AR IREE SRS
FER  BFEEEIRE - EHIRA
BRI AIRAERRNTEREGNE
BN AT REEES

I EEMR - KA E - TR
TEmE P REH K A R ERARE

BRI A OMmEEMEAMEAR o

WEBIERGTEEEERNEITE
RIRE A AN E AR T8 o



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(h)

(M)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying
amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have
not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in Note 2(q).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i) and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see Note 2(j)).

2 EBEAEHEE®)

(h)

(M

BERHEMEHRE @)

(i) EMEAE %)
BEEE AR A B AR AR R
AT BB KR EEIB AR - REE
BEATBERTER BN
BEMREHESRRA () AEETEH
PRI B E L 2 BRI Mok
R 75 W B A9 AR 1B A TR 82 2 BEUR (i)
BB ZE R M RS E AR
R M ARER BT HWERKARZ
SR o

BIFEANAKRANEIHENE
2 R R Ut B FERR AT 5 18
SR - SRS BOR
FIIRHIFE2(q) °

BRNEERGNARE

RIBA LFTEFI N SRR B R AR
ERMREZA > ANEERNEEER
Ween i ERER (R MEE2(q)) - BHEE
THIRIBEHTE2(Q)(1) P B R Bt B H
EEEBR T A - AR E AR
REFBER D RARE TR
#2() °

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2019 135



136

Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

BERESHBER @)

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M)

1)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 2(q)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see Note 2(j)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(i)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 2(g)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U}

(m)

()

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost, using an effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(t)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i)~ Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

2 EBEAEHEE®)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided that they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied

by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of automotive interior and exterior

decorative components and parts

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises, the
customers take possession of and accept
the products, which is taken to be the point
in time when the Group transfers control over
the products to the customers. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods promised
under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(ii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(g)(i)).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as other income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income and
consequently recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U

(s)

®

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group’s reporting currency, at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs (see Note 2(t)), where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(g)(ii)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the year in which it
is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2 EBEAEHEE®)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

(u) Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEXEiEE®)

(u) Related parties (Continued) (u) FEAEERS (&)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third (iv) —REERE=FEEN
entity and the other entity is an associate ERETEMS —EBAZ
of the third entity; FE=HEBNBE L A

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ZEBDRAREELAM
plan for the benefit of employees of HAREEBEBBNEEN
either the Group or an entity related to BB @A R LARIKER
the Group; FlEtEl

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (i) ZEEB@)MMATEALE
by a person identified in (a); Bk HEIEFIFEEE

(viij a person identified in (a) (i) has (i) (Q)()FTREMALHZE
significant influence over the entity or BARBBERXE NN RZ
is a member of the key management BERB(HZEBIRAN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of FEEEEKE
the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group (Vi) ZEREKBZEREL+T —
of which it is a part, provides key HomEEETEMKE
management personnel services to the RARBAMAEEFIREEH
Group or to the Group’s parent. BRRREEIZEEEASR

AR 7S o

Close members of the family of a person are BERIATHARRIEN R EEE 2

those family members who may be expected ETRSE - BHAIZEZAL

to influence, or be influenced by, that WEZATHENREKE -

individual in their dealings with the entity.
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2 EBEAEHEE®)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products,
the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a) Impairment losses for long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a non-current asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of non-current
assets as described in Note 2(g)(ii). These assets
are tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected future cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that
is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
the level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the recoverable amount of the assets
and could result in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future years.
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BE B BURKFEMEINREE MR
ERM -
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

()

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of
the property, plant and equipment regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense
to be recorded during any reporting period. The
determination of the useful lives and residual
values, if any, are based on historical experience
with similar assets after taking into account the
anticipated changes on how such assets are to be
deployed in the future. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

3  SErHERMEF@E

(b)

()

BEZRURENEERRER

B 2 RMFENERERHENARE
HIERRNRE - AEERELZER
RSP A B R TR M E B EE
EETRBABE - ERAKEBRENE
2 AT R ERE AR B E
et - RERBR RGO B AR T
HERENEATE  BHBRFLE
SNRIEBE A RE VB E -

e

Wx -~ BE RREBIINEERMERTAE
REMRFABARSREE(WA)RR
BAORITE - AEETEMRAYE - B
B Rt bt alE A F R RS EE
(WA) - AHEERMERIER S B A
BHTERX SR o AlERFI LR
BENE) KB Kz EEERKINA
RENRRESRRIBATERUEE
HEHERMEL o WMEREREEFTHE
REH  RAEHRNTERSFELHE

B, o
=
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WA K7 &R &

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts. Further details regarding
the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note

(@)

A

AEE T2 EHRINEMT AR
ERHE - BEASREEZEBAE—
FEHBRHIEEA(D) KEE -

4(b).
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BEFrEEMBEERFPAEHZRAS DI
customers by major products is as follows: N
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Revenue from contracts with EERMEREZERZES
customers within the scope of IFRS & ERNEE %4
15 W2
Disaggregated by major products: BXEEmMDHE -
— Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative — HESARERME
components and parts s 254,732 238,896
— Sales of passenger vehicles’ — HEFRAFERME
decorative components and parts [ 43,175 24,924
297,907 263,820

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and
by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes 4(b)(i)
and 4(b)(iii) respectively.

The Group’s customers with which transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are set

out below:
Customer A Z2EA
Customer B ZFEB

RIWAERR M TS D HER
P2 A K2 WA D RIT M EEA(D)(1) K
4(b)(iii) # 57 ©

AEEEZ X FHBERNEEKRA10%
MEPEIMT :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

112,140 111,347
107,113 98,556

Details of concentration of credit risk rising from the
Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

EFET EERBRFB RN T
24(a) °
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(b)

(i)

Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and sale
of decorative components and parts to be
installed in heavy trucks.

Passenger vehicles’ decorative components
and parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and sale
of decorative components and parts to be
installed in passenger vehicles.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

4 WARDHBREE)

(b)

R E

REBREMDRERHER - [EM
AEBRSITHERENIERNEH
UDBEEREMEFREZ DA K
SECEWATRERIZ2HD A0 - 8
[EARZEDE - LAKR TR 28D

-

— BRREXMHTIHRE  ZOBE

EERRLENEURENEHT
e AEREE -

— RBEEHTEHE  ZOREE

BREZENTRABENESHTIM
EVBEE - AERIHE o

(i) PE¥E BERAE
A DR EE MAED R Z B D
BRER AEERSTRELRE
BATELEZERA 2RO ML
e

WARRE2BZEDBEEN
HERREDHEENEER
X DREAEZ|ROE - 2HH
BB AERIGTHE - B Z=20194F
N2018F 12 A31HIEREE » I
RS EMEE - — R 5
F—EASMBREN B (BIEH
REERKEMTA®) WETE -
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

WARDEBHRE (8)
(b) DEHE )

Segment results, assets and liabilities () PHEE BTEREE®
(Continued)
The Group’s other operating expenses, REEHEMLERST (IEAM
including other loss/income, selling and BiE (A -« HERX - 1T
administration expenses and finance costs, AR BERAR)AREERE
and assets and liabilities are not measured BEHTAMBRIAES - Bt - &
under individual segments. Accordingly, wEEBEOMEEREBENE
neither information on segment assets and B MREREBREARSE - FIE
liabilities nor information concerning capital WARFBHRAZHER - 5TE
expenditure, interest income and interest 275l -
expenses is presented.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts HZE2019F X 2018F12A31H
with customers by the timing of revenue EEFE  RRABRRERSEY
recognition, as well as information PEITEHNZWARR S EEIR
regarding the Group’s reportable segments EetHa o fEEMmAEE xS
as provided to the Group’s most senior THEERERE - ABASEET
executive management for the purposes EWMDFEREIILT ©
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.
2019
Heavy  Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative  decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ERFE FRAEH
EHEEH4 EhE 4 @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%Tr ARETR
Revenue recognised at a point in X 2R R
time from external customers BINDE P Z WA 254,732 43,175 297,907
Reportable segment gross profit ] 2HH BEF 92,687 8,501 101,188

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4  WARZEHE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZBHFHE®
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities () PHEE BEREE®
(Continued)
2018
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components  components
and parts and parts Total
ERRE NSRS
AT BT E M st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Revenue recognised at a point in TR — BRI ERERR
time from external customers BINIPRP 2 WA 238,896 24,924 263,820
Reportable segment gross profit BEEGEIES 81,860 8,045 89,905
(i)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (i) TEH7HE=mZHE
or loss
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTF T
(Note)
(FisE)
Total reportable segment gross profit AI2WmHEER R 101,188 89,905
Other income/(loss) HAaU A (E518) 6,056 (596)
Selling expenses HEMX (9,266) (7,278)
Administrative expenses THRAX (40,337) (41,598)
Finance costs B TE R AR (5,724) (7,577)
Consolidated profit before taxation RAEBRTANEF 51,917 32,856

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

BisE - NEBER2019F1 A1 B IRAKERT
BIAE IR TER BRI SRS ERE
165% o RIBUL % - LA RIKRLS
Bl o BHiFE2(C) °
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(iii) Geographic information

Notes to the Financial Statements

(i) 1 EH
AEBNBAEERBS R H EH5H

The Group’s revenue is substantially
generated from the sales of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components
and parts in the PRC. The Group’s business
is substantially conducted in the PRC.
Accordingly, no segment analysis based on
geographical locations of the customers and

assets is provided.

OTHER INCOME/(LOSS)

ETERINERMHT I - A&
Bz BT EMNHE - #ult
I EEHRIRTP REEMN M
EETND DT o

5 HtikA(E8)

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREFTT
Government grants (including amortisation R B (B FEMT 52270 iR
of deferred income in Note 22) T 2 RO BE S ) 3,421 1,225
Net gain on sales of scrap materials SHERBER 2 W F 58 637 665
Operating lease income KETAEWA 11 31
Interest income F B A 248 239
Net gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE¥ - BEMREZ
equipment W F5E 73 —
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) bE H eS8 FRE 59 (2,835)
Compensation received from a constructor W BI3EZEREEER 1,200 —
Others Hith 407 79
6,056 (596)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

6

BRTE AR R
BRIATE N IR (FEA) AT B IBRE
i

(a) Finance costs (a) BFFEERA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
(Note)
(BE)
Interests on bank and other loans RITREMERF S 5,573 7,577
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREFE 151 —
5,724 7,577

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB Nil).

MisT : AEER2019F1 A1 BRALETERE
BRIE MBI EERIE 165 - RIBU
A R ERAREES - RHfFE2(c) -

HZE2019F12A31HILFE - BIEERBRAK
WA (2018F : ARBEZIT) o

(b) Staff costs* (b) BIRA*

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IENMKEMET 37,077 26,271

Contributions to defined contribution ATEHFEEIKRFT B
retirement plan 3,617 3,505
40,694 29,776

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong)
participate in the defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government
authority, whereby the subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 16% of
the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of the
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the average
salaries level in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong),
from the above-mentioned retirement plan at their
normal retirement age.

AEBERFE(TRETE)KINHEAF
& B 2 0 i S B AR PTE IR A SUE R
RIRRMETE - Bl ZEMBRRARE
BEARFHEH)16% R EIELHK - ZEM
BRARMEEBHEEIHELERAFREERE
FHLARAKA BT E(TRERE)FH
¥FENRE-FEB DL EARKER
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6

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6  BRBIAIER (@)
(b) Staff costs’ (Continued) (b) BIRRA'(H@)
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident REERBEEERHERESFTEEN AHE
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong REDTBRBERIERAZEERLAHER
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance Bestal((wESsE]) - BB HE
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of TERABTEEBEHFURAGE] - IRIFRE
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF TFE - BEXRHEBSAEKEBBBAK
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan AZ5% FEHEIHR - FAEBKAZ LR
administered by an independent trustee. Under the A A8HE30,0007T © ETEI 2 R ENRSE o
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.
The Group has no further material obligation for Br Bl EERAN - REBWES M EMRIKE
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the FEEMEBEBAREE -
above contributions.
(c) Otheritems (c) HfhiEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R AREEF T
(Note)*
(B3E) *
Amortisation* i — 206
Depreciation charge# (Note 11) WESH (1)
— owned property, plant and — BEYE  BERRE
equipment* &> 13,154 12,598
— right-of-use assets* — FREEE" 579 —
13,733 12,804
Impairment losses on trade receivables ‘2 5 F&E W k18R 8 518 (Bt
(Note 24(a)) $504(a)) 2,544 (321)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &
— in connection with the initial listing — BEARREIROERE
of the Company’s shares mEH — 3,000
— audit service — FEBETRE 1,800 1,300
Research and development costs 2SR AR 15,287 10,552
Cost of inventories” (Note 13(b)) FEA (FizE13(b)) 196,719 173,915
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BRBIAER ()

(c) Other items (Continued) (c) HAbEE®W)

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified * REFEERLISEE WA B R ERBERM
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening B EERIE165% L FHER2019F1 A1H
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use ERVI AR - AR B & (R e IR IR
assets relating to leases which were previously classified RE ERIEIT RS AKEHE)FAN
as operating leases under IAS 17. The depreciated FRAEEE - UEeREEHAEENFIEFRD
carrying amount of the land-use-rights which were T S A BRI E R R AE A
previously included in lease prepayments is also identified BE - R2019F1 A1 B YIS EREREE
as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right- EE  NEBIERAEABEREREEE
of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee WE  MARRENBREREHNIZER
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use EEBRACEHEETEENEERAT -
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental RIES A% - LEERKREES) - M
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight- 2(c)
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

#  Cost of inventories includes RMB35,044,000 (2018: #  TFERABEAMEIRAN - ITEREHF
RMB25,805,000) relating to staff costs, and depreciation ) AR #35,044,00070( 20184 : AREE
and amortisation expenses, which amount is also included 25,805,0007T) * BHASEINGA EX ST
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above WEEaBeREIM6(b) 2 ZE SR
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses. FX o

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZREBRERANAEHR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) HFEBZRAVFHIERS
or loss represents:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTIT
Current taxation (Note 21(a)): ENHAFE 18 (i RE21(a)) :
Provision for the year FRRHE 8,217 6,804
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): ERERIE (FEE21(b)) -
— Origination and reversal of — TR EENEERED
temporary differences (1,122) (1,964)
7,095 4,840
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7 REBHERANAEHRE)

7

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b)

BEARRGTE 2 BEBERXESS
B Z R

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT AREFTT

Profit before taxation FRA A& A 51,917 32,856
Expected tax on profit before taxation, @A A 8 A E R G

calculated at the rates applicable to 2 BT E 2 BREA]

profits in the jurisdictions concerned st A2 TEERR A (Bt 5%

(Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (i) ~ (i) % (iil) 13,732 8,488
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 1Tz 2 BB £ 195 837
Tax effect on preferential tax rate (Note BRI K~ BB 2 (M

(iv) 5 (iv)) (5,116) (3,303)
Tax effect on bonus deduction of IR AR 2 INET N2

research and develop-ment costs IR 2 M5k (v))

(Note (v)) (1,687) (1,182)
Others Hith (29) —
Actual tax expense EEBIER S 7,095 4,840

Notes:

BT -

(i)

(i)

(i)

The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
are not subject to any income tax pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: 16.5%). These companies
did not have assessable profits which are subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMBNIil).

The subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong) is subject to PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate at 25% for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: 25%).

(i)

(iii)

ARRRAEENRBRELE S LE R
BB EMKIZ B ARBAREBEEER
FEMBEREER RR OISR TS -

HE2019F12A31B I EE - ARAI K
AEBREBETMA L ZH B R RER
16.5% 2 HEHMMEBFBF (20184 :
16.5%) c BiE2019F12A31HILFE * %
SN AR EE £ BEME BN SR ERR
(20185 ARBEZTT) ©

HE2019F12A31 A L FE - REBERF
H(TRIEEB)KILAIMEB A RIER25% 2
BRGNP B 27185 (20184 : 25%) °
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(Continued)

(iv)  The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and New
Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) which entitles the
qualified companies to a preferential income tax
rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of the recognition
criteria. Xian Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co.,
Ltd. (“Xian Tianrui”), a subsidiary of the Group, is
qualified as a HNTE and the qualification is valid for
three years from 2019 to 2021.

(v)  According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax
purpose, i.e. an additional 75% (2018: 75%) of
such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

7 REBHERANAEHRE)

(b) BEABRFHEZEBRHEMES
B HRR ¢ ()

(iv) (PRIDEMBRE)AFLERD
[EFRmtE (SRt E
Z WFEBEERCENZIEERAN
B E5% @ EAFAERIZE - K
EE— KB RRELT RSB R
HAERAR([ALZXE DFEaSHR
T ER - BABERE2019F%E
2021 F BHI=FHM -

v) RIBEPEEBERUGET @ AEHEK
Al BIEFTS R B M 2 marE0
B2 SR MEEINE% (20184 -
75% ) AR AE R HE RS o

8 EEME
RIFFB R BEDIFEI83(1) R R AR (B E
EENaGERRPIEHEENESHMM

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about L
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2019
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
28
EZHe RENEF BMEERAL  RIGTEER @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT ARET T ARBT T ARBT
Executive directors HTEE
Mr Hou Jianli RENEE 180 - % 28 232
Ms Chen Bigrui BRI T 180 - 13 - 193
Mr Zhao Shijie il e 180 - 34 43 257
Independent non-executive BUHTES
directors
Mr Zhu Honggiang FSAL: 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu EREI A 80 - - - 80
Mr Shin Yick Fabian PR 80 - - - 80
780 - 1l n 922
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EEME®)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Salaries, Retirement
Directors’  allowances and scheme
fees  benefits in-kind contributions Total
5o 28
EESuk REMER e &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFTT ANRETTT ANREFTT ARETTT
Executive directors 78S
Mr Hou Jianli REFIEE = 142 32 174
Ms Chen Bierui BRAlGR L = 128 = 128
Mr Zhao Shijie LA = 162 49 211
Independent non-executive BUFRITES
directors
Mr Zhu Honggiang RIREE - — - —
Mr Zhou Genshu FRE L = = — —
Mr Shin Yick Fabian rHEE - — = =
— 432 81 513
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS BEeHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, RE ATHHRIE=4(20184F : =

three (2018: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other two (2018: two) individuals are as
follows:

Salaries and other emoluments HeRHMMES
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFEIR R

HEF  EMESFBRBENMES - REHR
FCERHERR - HERMI A (20184 - lIH) ALH)

FENEEm T

2018

RMB'000
ARETT

497
62

559

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 BEEFHMALE
(Continued)
The emoluments of the individuals who are not directors AEBRAEZRaHFATHIEIEETHALH
and who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of FN AT EEA -
the Group are within the following band:
2019 2018
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) =15 1,000,000/ 7T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 SRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BREXEF
The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 BE2019F12 A1 HILFEBREAR
December 2019 is calculated based on the profit @ﬂfﬁk$’&ﬁj%@H%*EEHQ?E@&T}E
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company *W\E%MB{Q:OOOE( 2918¢ AR
of RMB44,822,000 (2018: RMB28,016,000) and #28,016,0007T) & B 31T E AR A
the weighted average of 1,995,890,411 (2018: W71 801,995,890,41 1% (20184
1,500,000,000) ordinary shares. 1,500,000,0008% )5t E 1S °
The calculation of the weighted average number of BRI FOT
ordinary shares are as follows:
2019 2018
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1A1RETLBR 1,500,000,000 100
Issuance of shares by initial public FBBERARBEEETR
offering (Note 23(b)(i)) 3 (MF3E23(b)(1)) 495,890,411 —
Effect of capitalisation issue BRI E — 1,499,999,900
Weighted average number of ordinary 128318 @R 019
shares at 31 December 2 1,995,890,411  1,500,000,000
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ERBHEF
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding HZE2019F K2018F12H831H IFFE
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and B i EBEEERRD o
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

11 YE - BERSKRE

11

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount () BREEYHE
Motor
Land-use- Machinery vehicles
Plantand  right leased and and other  Construction
buildings ~ for own use equipment Moulds equipment in progress Total
RfEEAMT AER
HERET WERE  EERRE BE Hink EEIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTT ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARET:
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1A 50,963 — 26,687 28,236 4,400 1,944 112,230
Additions RE 4,188 — 10,738 20,736 1,056 7,686 44,404
Transfer in/(out) B)/(81) 3,115 — - - - (3,115) —
At 31 December 2018 120185124310 58,266 — 37,425 48972 5,456 6,515 156,634
Accumulated depreciation: REHE:
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A18 (6,002) - (8.462) (125533) (2538) - (29,535)
Charge for the year FREH (1,345) — (3,057) (7,651) (545) — (12,598)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 126318 (7.347) - (11519) (20,184) (3.083) — (42,133)
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2018 120185128318 50,919 25,906 28,788 2,378 6,515 114,501
Cost: R
At 31 December 2018 120185128318 58,266 — 37,425 48,972 5,456 6,515 156,634
Impact on initial application of IFRS & R EREIR B HHE
16 (Note) EE16RMTE
(FirzE) — 9,486 — — — — 9,486
At1 January 2019 R201951 A1R 58266 9,486 37425 48972 5456 6515 166,120
Additions e 2838 - 5875 5263 2259 2651 18,886
Transfer inf(out) g1 /(#1) 6,753 — — — — (6,753) -
Disposals HE - - (479) - (93) — (572)
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 67,857 9,486 42821 54235 7622 2413 184,434
Accumulated depreciation: ZHHE:
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 18 (7.347) - (11,519) (20,184) (3.083) - (42,133)
Charge for the year FRTH (1,963) (206) (3,791) (7,018) (755) — (13,733)
Written back on disposals HERER — 376 — 39 — 415
At 31 December 2019 120195124318 N (797,37153)7 o (20@)7 o g174l973%)7 o (2720?L 77777 (737,779?)7 77777777 - 7(5757,47571)7
Carrying amount: B
At 31 December 2019 120195124318 58,547 9,280 27,887 27,033 3,823 2,413 128,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

M BERRE®

11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under I1AS
17. See Note 2(c).

(@)

FREEYR®)

M ARBEEEREERTEWESRER
B0 % B %5 A o 5 ) 58 1 6 5% I 9 B AR
20191 A1 BBV AL &R - DARERR
S E (LR RIEER &5 RIS
17D BAKETHE) BRNE AR
AE - RKfEE2(c)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FEHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use ZEBEEERRE D 2 FREEERA
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: FEDTIT

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

2019%12H31H 201951 A1H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT ARETT

Land-use-right leased for own use MEE AR Li(FE AR 9,280 9,486

Plant and buildings [ 2,838 —

12,118 9,486
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y- - BERRE®

opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at
1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FERAEEE®
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HNERERNAERBNRSIAR S
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: AR
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
(Note)
(FfHEE)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by & iREIE 2 5E 711815 By b FE
class of underlying asset: BEMESD
Land-use-right leased for own use MER B i fE AR 206 206
Plant and buildings BEREF 373 —
579 206
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) MEAEF B (HF6(a)) 151 —
Expense relating to short-term leases and BRI ERN2019F12A31H
other leases with remaining lease term SR Em 2 fE A E R
ending on or before 31 December 2019 kiEivisle il 1 —
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, ERIXBEESEME (TEEEE
excluding short-term leases of low-value BEENRHMEE) BN
assets 53 30 —
Total minimum lease payments for leases FRRRRR e ERETR
previously classified as operating leases N 7%”“%@ ZTE S
under 1AS 17 1&%ﬁfﬁm = 32
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the Bsr AN B B B A S TR W B
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the RS B TS 3RS R 165

#2019¢1H1EE@E§%}]§%§% - DARE
REHE (HERBEBEE SR
%17%“* BEEAHE)BBNER
HEEE - R2019F1 A1B Y ER

FRAREER - 7&%!1&7‘%&@/\/5
EREAREENE - M ARIELAH
BEERSHPRNREREERREE
EETELNHESHY - RERA

a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

& HEERAREET - RHfFE2(C)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets FR FHAEEENAEAEARKE
were RMB2,838,000. This amount primarily related 2,838,0007T ° & FEF BEB BRI

to the capitalised lease payments payable under ERFENZEEANRENZARS -
new tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are
set out in Note 20.

EURESaENMBEL TS B
2EHIFE20 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

12

RHNERARANKRE
UTERRBEEBYEARERE BEX
BENMBRRFE - BRIEREHA - IR
BRI BRI ST A -

Percentage of

ownership interest

FERHaD

or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.
Place and date of
establishment/ Particulars of The Group’s
incorporation/ registered/issued effective
operation and paid-up capital interest
Name of subsidiaries BMRY/B2  2B/BEAR rEE
HWRARER AR A BRERFE BRER
Baoji Qinrui Automotive The PRC RMB20,000,000 100%
Interiors Co., Ltd. 24 July 2019 AR 20,000,000
(BRRRAEAMEAR &
AR 20197 H24H
Xian Tianrui Automotive The PRC RMB100,000,000 100%
Interiors Co., Ltd. 22 May 2009 AR%100,000,0007T
(AR AENSHER  TE
NI 20095220
Ryford Holding Limited **  The BVI United States Dollars 100%
5May 2017 (“USD") 100, 100
RBRIHS shares of USD 1 each
20175558 ETLI00RERAEIET
ol
Tianrui International Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%

Holdings Limited ** 13 June 2017 1,0008 84
FrERERERRAR " BE
2017%6A13A

The English translation of the name is for identification
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese. This
entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in
the PRC.

> These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the PRC.

Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
A WEZAR  Principal activities
) BE IEEH

— 100%  Manufacture and sale of
automotive interior and
exterior decorative
components and parts

BRI B RER
#HE

— 100%  Manufacture and sale of
automotive interior and
exterior decorative
components and parts

BRI B RER
#HE
100% —  Investment holding

RERR

— 100%  Investment holding

AR

TRE AR EXGEEMHES
ZERRTEEMRIMNEBERE -

o ZERARETERINEMRINERA
7o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

13 INVENTORIES 13 ®E&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HFEMBRARTNFEEBREUATE
position comprise: |
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Raw materials and consumables RAE K SRR 19,821 11,879
Work in progress E&m 9,869 2,313
Finished goods X 31,124 13,060
60,814 27,252
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) EHRARAIVAGEBRRNEFE
as an expense and included in the consolidated SEAWWT -
statement of profit or loss is as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFENEREE 196,719 173,915
14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 14 EBSEWFEREKREZE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%128318 2018412H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B S REMEIE (IR EERE) 161,504 78,094
Bills receivables M EE 74,440 54,871

235,944 132,965
All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss allowance FTE 8 5 FEWGRIE R B E &R (R RIREE
for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to be recovered (B ) TEFT R —FRIKE -

within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice
date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

14 EZRWFEREBEREE )

(@)

SRR 7 T

RmEMRERER A (B ARER
BH(HERF)) RNBERRENES
FEWCRIA K R IE AR I AT 20T

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFIT

Less than 3 months 3MEA AR 121,147 82,176
3 to 6 months 3 A=61EA 33,520 34,721
6 to 12 months A EEEEN 79,667 16,068
more than 1 year 1A E 1,610 —
235,944 132,965

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 24(a).

Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of settlement
of goods sold. These notes entitle the Group to
receive the full face values from the issuing banks
upon the maturities of these notes, which generally
range from 3 to 6 months from the dates of
issuance.

(b)

ERAEBEERRNE SRKGIEAER
W EEELENEERBRIE—TFS
ThE A KIRE24(a) °

AEEBHEFTPRIEHRITAESR
EREERMN—BEENE - ZEFR
R T RS BAEN AN % S RIE D B
WEIFARRITH 2 EE  ZERE—
iR EFRE A HIEG SHISE A =6EA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had discounted
certain of the bank acceptance notes and endorsed
certain of the bank acceptance notes to its
suppliers and other creditors for settlement of the
Group’s trade and other payables on a full recourse
basis. Upon the above discounting or endorsement,
the Group has derecognised the bills receivables in
their entirety. These derecognised bank acceptance
notes have maturity dates of less than six months
from the end of the reporting period. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of these notes and has discharged its
obligation of the payables to its suppliers and other
creditors. The Group assessed that the discounted
and endorsed bank acceptance notes were issued
by highly-rated issuing banks, the credit risks
were relatively insignificant and the Group was not
exposed to the relative interest risk. At 31 December
2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to loss and
undiscounted cash outflow should the issuing banks
fail to settle the bills on maturity dates amounted to
RMB55,626,000 (2018: RMB117,273,000).

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant
and equipment

The amount at 31 December 2019 represents
prepayments for the Group’s contracted
procurement of moulds and machinery.

14 EZRWFEREBEREE @)

(b)

HESRMEE W)
R2019F12A31H » REBBEHE TR
TAEHESEEITTER - WHEMER
NEAMEEASEE TRITARIES
N BREREELEAEEANE S
T FRIE R B A FE FRIE o A EFTit
IR EER  AEEE 2R IEFER
FEINEE - ZFE WA ERERAIRT TR
HIEEMEEIE 8 mE BREBT T 2N
BA - ARFEEZERE  ~AEEBER
ZEZBRNFARNBRIE SRR R
B3R - WEEITH R ER R A EREA
R RET - REBEFEL - BARKE
BERITERAIEEHRRTRMMAERIT
BT EERRBREEHBIERASEL R
HEERAERE A EE R - 7H2019F12 A 31
B WAZRITRE A RGELEES
B BIRERNZEABAIERURRS
R A ERE A AR #55,626,00070
(20184 : AR¥117,273,0007T) °

15 FANFEREMERKE

(a)

BEWE  BERRBHANRE

MR2019F 12 A31 H R AE BT
VAKBEEEARBEEMNTENFRIE -
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15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b) Prepayments and other receivables

(b) FENRERHAEYRE

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

15 FEANFEREMMERFIEE)

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREFTT
Advances to staff BN 696 493
Others Hib 1,013 622
Financial assets measured at R ETEN S REE
_amortisedcost 1,700 1115
Prepayments for purchase of raw BRI RM B TER IR
materials 8,479 2,494
Prepayments for costs incurred in RATRRMER ETRES
connection with the initial listing of D% N:oFEENE=C
the Company’s shares — 7,715
Value-added tax to be deducted FHEASER 1,833 —
10,312 10,209
12,021 11,324

All of the above prepayments and other receivables
as at 31 December 2019 are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one

year.

#HZE2019F12A318 - L prBFER
FRIB R E A FEURGRIBTERT I — F AT IR
O - ERIEAT SR TR -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 HLTRFERSURHMBEESRELER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash at bank and on hand comprise: () RITRFERSERE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 30,246 13,385
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) PR HIRI TR (1) 29,702 20,000
Cash at bank and on hand in the T MBARRRARTT
consolidated statement of financial LTS
position 59,948 33,385
Less: restricted bank deposits (Note (i)) i - ZR&IRITER
(5T (1)) (29,702) (20,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFaREMERNRE
consolidated cash flow statement MR & ES 30,246 13,385
The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding Hong ANEBEN R (BB N ) 48 A 1) 275 LA
Kong) conducted its business in RMB. RMB is not AEERER - AREYWIER AR RS
a freely convertible currency and the remittance W, RS TE Y A (BN B
of funds out of the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is B i e D SN FR 4] o
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.
Note: MIBE -
i ; : i [ RS BRRITEREERIEREE
(i) At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits (0) #&,_
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance BIZAT 2 RITACLEROBEAR
bills issued by the Group.
(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) BMETHELENEENREBENHER

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
assets and liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing
activities.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR

TRHAMAEERETHEEELE
BONEE  BRREIIFRCES - §
BEAEAEDHRRBARKRS
//|L§Hﬂ§’\$$lﬁ’]§?é _:E//\LE%%EP
BRARELDMERENENRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising
from financing activities (Continued)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

16 RITRFEASURHMRSREESR
(#&)

(b) BRMEFDELENEEREBENHER@

Liabilities
B
Included Amounts
in accrued due to the
Bankand  expenses and Interest controlling
other loans  other payables payable  shareholders Total
#17R Ei %R EHER
EtER  HfEAFE EfFE REFE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARBTT
(Note 17) (Note 20)
(Px17) k)
Mtlaneny2019  ROEIAIR bog8 oA T 146 el
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEBEFEEE
Proceeds from bark and other loans TR AMEFHETE 147,813 - - - 147813
Repaymentof bank and other loans ~ EEBTREMET (122535) - - - (122535)
Proceeds from bills discounting ZEES - 14701 — - 14,701
Net increase in the amounts due to ERERRREEMTE
the controlling shareholders — — — (1,346) (1,346)
Interest paid EfiFIE - - (5,573) - (5573)
Dividends paid Bfife - (22.505) - - (22505)
o changes fom fencingcesh fows_ BETIGRERGEE A e | sre) s 108
Other changes: g
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) A (HiF6(a) - - 5573 - 5573
Dividends declared during the year B TRENEE (H5523(c))

(Note 23(c)) - 20,881 — - 20,881
Fxchange adjustments B2 - - — (59) (59)
Tloterchenges ] Asie® U LI ST N

At 31 December 2019 20195128318 78,086 14,701 — — 92,787
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 RITRFRASURHMRSREER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (%)
(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) RMETBEENEEREGENHIERE
from financing activities (Continued)
Liabilities
B
Included Amounts
in accrued due to the
Bankand  expenses and Interest controlling
other loans  other payables payable  shareholders Total
#TR EAXR EAER
HpER  HbEARER EfHE RRHE it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETI  ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Note 17) (Note 20)
(Px17) (Wz20)
Atlanny201s  ROEIAIR B 670 .. oo e 18102
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEBEFEEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans 1T REMET S8 130,000 - - - 130,000
Repaymentof bankand other loans ~ EEHITREMER (170280) - - - (170280)
Payments for acquisition of Xi'an BB THERRARY
Tiantui HES - (6,786) - (61,239) (68,025)
Net increase in the amounts due to
the controling shareholders ERERER AL - - - 30591 30591
Interest paid EfFIE — - (7577) - (7577)
Dividends paid Bfike - (12,180) - - (12,180)
Toi changes fom fncing cosh fows - BAS.ERERDEE vozn) _ (ewe) @S (08 1T
Other changes: Hitgg:
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) AR (3H6(e) - - 7577 - 7577
Dividends declared during the year
(Note 23(c)) ERERARE (H523(c) - 13,804 - - 13,804
Exchange adjustments B - 3% - 489 525
Talobercnges RxheE T o wo_.am
At 31 December 2018 H2018%128318 52,808 1624 — 1,405 55,837
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 8318 L F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b S & 785Z 5} + H9AA R #SIT)

16 RITRFEASURHMRSREESR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (&)
Total cash outflow for leases (c) EBEBEERSRLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within operating cash flows REERSREN
— Lease rentals paid relating to —BEEHREMMEEBRE
short-term leases and leases of ENEFEMNENE
low-value-assets =gk M 32

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 17 SHITREMER

(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) TEEEHBETREMERESE
comprise:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBFIT
Bank loans: RITER
— Secured by trade and bills —HAEEE FERGIE
receivables of the Group N W B
(Note 17(d)) (MIEE17(d)) 37,444 11,073
— Secured by property, plant and —BAAREEDME - BER
equipment of the Group B (FEE17(d))
(Note 17(d)) 23,500 3,500
60,944 14,573
Other loans: HAMER
— Secured by trade and bills —BAREEE KGR
receivables of the Group Tt
(Note 17(d)) (FzE17(d)) 6,000 21,950
66,944 36,523
Add: current portion of long-term bank  #il : RERIRTT R B E R
and other loans (Note 17(b)) BIBNERER 5 (FF3E17(b)) 6,747 926
73,691 37,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 RITREMBERE)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) FEBRHBRITREMERESE:
comprise:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R AREEF T
Bank loans: RITEN -
— Secured by property, plant and — BAREEYE - BER
equipment and land use right of SRR P R
the Group and guaranteed by the ER R RIEARAR R I
controlling shareholders (Note R (FF3E17(d))
17(d)) — 15,000
Other loans: HiER
— Secured by property, plant and — BAREEYE - HER
equipment of the Group and ERABIE IR R AR AR
guaranteed by the controlling BER(HFE17(d)
shareholders (Note 17(d)) — 1,285
— Secured by property, plant and — BAREEYE - BE
equipment of the Group (Note Bt idCiEss
17(d)) 17(d)) 11,142 _
11,142 16,285
Less: current portion of long-term bank & : KEI$RIT R A M E
and other loans (Note 17(a)) FIBNERZR 2 (FFEE17(a)) (6,747) (926)
4,395 15,359
(c) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans are (c) FEEEEERBRTREMERN
repayable as follows: T
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREF T
Within 1 year or on demand 1F AR ERK 6,747 926
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZER2FRN 4,395 15,359
11,142 16,285
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17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
secured by the following assets of the Group:

17 SBTREMER®E)

(d) FRENETRITIRHMUERBEFEE
BT EEFERR

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBFIT

Carrying value of secured assets: EREENREE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 76,615 57,060
Lease prepayments MEEHIEA — 9,486
Trade and bills receivables Z SN HIERENERE 46,718 41,241
123,333 107,787

The loan contracts secured by personal guarantees
from the controlling shareholders have been
terminated in 2019.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
subject to the fulfiiment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of
the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2019, none of the
covenants relating to the bank and other loans had
been breached (2018: None).

18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

(e) PEBRERFREHMEARBRNEREGRE
A2019F & |k o

(f) AEBBETRITREMERSEENE
SHEBERNEELHEPBEIT LR
o AR EEREE - AIZEERK
RIRERERE - AEETHEREE
TRZELHENERL  BAXAEE RS
BeRBEE 2 #E—PFBEHNME
24(b) » 1?2019 128318 » IEEKR
BT RAMERA (20184 -
) o

18 BZENFEREMNRE

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARET T

Trade payables B S ENRIA 109,003 96,867
Bills payables FERT R 59,403 40,000
168,406 136,867

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

B 5 B SR R A BB T A —
BHSEEREE -
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18 EZENFERENZEE @)
RBEMRENBEZERHNZE FENKER

18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is as ERNEERNERER AT -

follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Less than 3 months 3ME A AR 95,105 54,432
3 to 6 months 3@ A =6f@A 57,476 70,476
6 to 12 months 618 A =121E A 14,727 10,001
Over 1 year SV 1,098 1,958
168,406 136,867
19 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 B REMENSRE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Payables for staff related costs BT HBEKAERNIA 3,534 1,642
Payables for acquisitions of property, plant BEWME - BEL&ERE
and equipment 08 7,564 11,140
Payables for other taxes HAFIB RS FRIE 4,607 2,917
Payables for costs incurred in connection with  ZRA B () &)X i FrE
the initial listing of the Company’s shares HER A B FRIE — 7,783
Dividends payable to the controlling FEATIERAR AR AR B (B =
shareholders (Note 23(c)) 23(c)) — 1,624
Payable in relation to the bills discounting SRANREN IR 14,701 —
Others HAt 6,003 2,470
36,409 27,576

All of the accrued expenses and other payables are
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable
on demand.

BEIEEREER -

P FE TR S B Bt FE A 5K

BIEAR—FA
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20 LEASE LIABILITIES 20 HE&SME
The following table shows the remaining contractual AEBHEEEERARSEARKBARER
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the AR A R A 30 25 B PR B 75 3 o5 22 I S8 1657
current and previous reporting periods to IFRS 16: HHMFRISEORHBENT

At 31 December 2019
A2019%F12A31H
Present value

of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BEHAENR BEHESK
RE HBiE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®TR

Within 1year N O 1035
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F1ZBR2F R 989 1,098
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F & BHEFR 994 1,162
e, Y 2,260
2,990 3,295
Less: total future interest expenses W AR B ABEE (305)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBFRE 2,990
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified MiEE : ANERE B RS RTE A & R IE A EIR Bt

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating
to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. See Note 2(c).

B s LR FE 165 A BEN2019F1 /18
BV AEER  ARER BB E (AL RER
REEREITRIBAKEEE) EEN
ERREE - RMFE2(c) -
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 RESHBMRRRNFAES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements of current taxation in the (a) RNEEMBRRROGDBBESERT
consolidated statement of financial position are mE
set out below:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

At the beginning of the year REH] 2,318 1,406
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FABEMTE@) 8,217 6,804
Income tax paid 2RISR (6,940) (5,892)
At the end of the year RER 3,595 2,318
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 REFREUBARRROAEH ()

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) EZEHEBEEE (BF)BIAWT :
The components of deferred tax assets and RERTA I BRRRAREROIELT
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement MIREE KB EAKE D REEHINT :
of financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
8B g
Withholding
Government tax for
grants and retained
subsequent  Credit loss Impact of profits to be
amortisation allowance Accruals IFRS 16 Sub-total  distributed Net
BB RS
BRER ERIZ16% BARNRE
Hiele GEFSHR &R e Nt OBRZENH et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETr  ARETR AREFT  ARETR
At 1January 2018 20185 1A1A 677 17 — — 794 (2,000) (1,206)
(Charged)/credited to the (BRABRERIR) /
consolidated statement of AR BRE
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (MzE7(a)) (34) ) — — (36) 2,000 1,964
At31December2018and 1 H2018F12831A K
January 2019 20191418 643 115 — — 758 — 758
(Charged)/credited to the (BRABARNR) /5
consolidated statement of NFgBak
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (H7E7(a)) (101) 636 456 131 1122 — 1,122
At 31 December 2019 20194124314 542 751 456 131 1,880 — 1,880

(c)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Except for deferred tax liabilities recognised in Note
21(b), taxable temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of Xian Tianrui amounted
to RMB108,151,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB52,429,000), where deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would be
payable on the distributions of these profits, have
not been recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of Xian Tianrui and it has been
determined that it is probable that such profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

()

MABRAELEHRESE

BRI sE21(b) P ERMELEHIEE &
SN - FA20194F 12 31 H B fa e K Im MY
KoaEFEHNERHEREZES
AR#108,151,0007T( 20184 : AR
#552,429,0007T) © HAZARZE &7
IR BRBINF A BRELETIEA
EERER  RASAQEHEFIEZX
R BB R BEEBEZSRANAIR
RIRRATRETRE DR ©
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22 DEFERRED INCOME 22 EFEWA

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
At the beginning of the year REH] 2,572 2,797

Credited to the consolidated statement of FTASRAREER
profit or loss (225) (225)
At the end of the year RER 2,347 2,572

Deferred income represents government grants received
in connection with the construction of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. The grants are being
amortised over the useful lives of the related assets.
Amortisation of deferred income is included in “other
income/ (loss)” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

180  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD BT /S A AR A 7
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23 EBX - FERRE

Movements in components of equity (a) HEZIINEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBGEERS B MFVEERLE
balances of each component of the Group’s BEETRRE N RSB ERA
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes of the Company’s individual RRARSERTDNEVNEFREAMNE
components of equity between the beginning and BT
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium  Exchange reserve losses Total
e hhaE ErGE By figs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTL AREFTR AREFR
(Noe23(p)  (Nole23(d)i)  (Note 23(c)(v)
(P3E23()) (FF3E23(a))) (BzE23(iv))
At1 January 2018 R2018F151R — - - - -
Changes in equity for the year ended 31 H2018F12831 ALLEE
December 2018: g9
Profit for the year EREH - - - 13,804 13,804
Other comprehensive income for the year EREHZENA - — 2816 - 2816
Total comprehensive income ERZEBRA - — 2816 13,804 16,620
Issuance of shares Bt - 64,648 - - 64,648
Capitalisation issue BRET 13,216 (13216) - - -
Dividends declared inrespectof the previous ~ F#EE kAR (Fis
year (Note 23(c)) 23(c)) - - - (13,604) (13.804)
13216 51432 - (13,804) 50844
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R2018F12A31 B R2019%
1B1A 13,216 51,432 2,816 - 67,464
Changes in equity for the year ended 31 HZ2019512831 AL ER
December 2019: Bigs:
Loss for the year EREE - - - (3.069) (3,069)
Qther comprehensive income for the year FREHZANA - - 3339 - 33%9
Tdcompreensieinoome e e . AN ooy A
Issuance of shares by initial public offering ERENDREERIRL
(Note 23(6)(i) (Hz523(0)() 4306 87,152 - - 91,458
Dividends approved and paid in respectof the  HEEHET % e a (K
previous year (Note 23(c)) £23(c)) - (10,220) - - (10.220)
Interim dividends declared and paid (Note EREGHEER
23(c) 23(0)) - (10,861) - - (10661)
4,306 66,271 - - 70,577
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019E12831A 17,522 117,703 6,155 (3,069) 138,311
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 23 &7 -~ ERRE (@)

(b) Share capital (b) B
2019 2018
No. of shares No. of shares
Rp#E b OES
'000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
i BETT T BETT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEENBTHTER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2019 2018
No. of Shares RMB’000 No. of Shares RMB'000
Rip%E ARETR D OEE ARETTL
Ordinary shares, issued and fully ~ BETRERHLER:
paid:
At 1 January m1A1R 1,500,000,000 13,216 100 —
Issuance of shares by initial public ~ FAEXAHEERTRG
offering (Note 23(b)(i)) (BzE23(b)(i)) 500,000,000 4,306 — —
Capitalisation issue BAMEEST - — 1499,999,900 13,216
At 31 December W2A31H 2,000,000,000 1752 1500000000 13216
(i)  Issuance of shares by initial public offering () ZBBEEXLAHAREZRITREG

182

On 15 January 2019, 500,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a
price of HK$0.25 each upon the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of
HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,306,000), representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds, net of share
issuance expenses of RMB7,874,000, of
approximately HK$101,198,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB87,152,000) were credited
to the share premium account.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

R2019F1 81508 » ANAQFRLD
REE R T EMIR ETRIESR
0.25% 7T 2 (B1%#17500,000,000
M EFATEEO.01 B TR E @A -
BE NG EEDSRIE
5,000,000 L (FAER AR
4,306,0007T ) 5T AZN A B A IR
R o R CIBRIR D EITRIS
AR#E7 874,0007THIFT 8 FIEL
101,198,000 T (HERHAR
#87,152,0007T ) 5t A BR 5 = B iR
}5 °
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 23 &7 -~ ERRE (@)

(c) Dividends (c) BE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAENELEERRRIKE
of the Company attributable to the year
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Interim dividend declared and R A2 B R MRS

paid after the interim period FHARR B B E@AR0.6

of HK$0.6 cents per ordinary EAL(20184F - IR

share (2018: HK$Nil cents per AIRZE)

ordinary share) 10,661 —
Final dividend proposed after the AR HAR E R HIR

end of the re-porting period BERERAR0.67EL

of HK$0.006 per ordinary (20184 : AR LB

share (2018: HK$0.6 cents per 0.67841)

ordinary share) 10,825 10,220

21,486 10,220

The final dividend proposed after the end of R EEIREEZORARER
the reporting period has not been recognised MEMRERERRBE -
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) REAHEILSS T BB
of the Company attributable to the previous RE-—BBEEZENELLAGRE
financial year, approved and paid/payable HREERE
during the year

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Final dividend in respect of PE LD S 1, e
the previous financial year, #)_E— BB E R R RR
approved and paid/payable 2
during the year 10,220 13,804
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(d)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Law (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands as amended,
consolidated or supplemented from time to
time.

Other reserve

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xian Tianrui.

In 2017, Xian Tianrui reduced its paid-
up in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital
was used to set-off the amounts due from the
controlling shareholders.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed
on 14 November 2017, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group and
accordingly, the paid-in capital of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group was eliminated
against the consideration of RMB67,500,000
when preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer
10% of its net profit each year to the statutory
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distributions to equity
holders. This reserve can be utilised in setting
off accumulated losses or increase capital of
the subsidiary and is non-distributable other
than in liquidation.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

23 EBEX - #ERRBRE®)
(d) REHNEERERN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BRGEE
BEERZERAIETEE
B RAREAMFASES AR
EEER]RE -

Rt

20171 A1 B E A A 1R AR
SE—RTEKBAR(BEZ
i) B HAA o

20174 » LRI EHAR R
B AR®100,000,000TTRE A
R #50,000,0007T ° %M A HY
DR R YGE AR AR SR EUE ©

BIEMN2017E11 B14B TS
B ARBKNAAEBBERET
FRBIZERAT Al - A&
ERFENBARNEHERE
FERBFREMIERRFEEMNSR
B AR #67,500,0007THfi$H

REEMRE
REBBPBIERRER A%
B BIRC S K B B A R A B 4R
[AEE R B AL R E9 10% -
HERREDEMEARNS0% °
A% B R AR FERT A A
DIKATEH o &R AR HE
B QR RETEEIIEE AR
BBIMAI DK ©
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
companies comprising the Group into the
Group’s presentation currency. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 2(r).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

23 EBX - BERERE®

(d)

(e)

RENEERB NG

(iv) EBZREE
fEH FEEBEERNEERANER
ZRENPBRRBEKANEE
EREREEZMEINEEZSE -
ZREERENE20) ez g5t
BERRIE -

EREE
AEEEREARZ T 2B NRREARE
BRESIRIBFHE QSRR - M
BRBRERE R - WENEMH A
BE AR R R EBRARBIAREEAR
DN

AEETHEHREHNREREEAR
B AEERSBRLEBBER T AR
Bz B EEEKERRRNENKRS
KBS Rz 2z BEGFE - WERR
BN H BEARGEF R -

NL/A

AR B REAEMA B R A BE SRS

S EARIRTE

AEEEREXBERETERER R
BES  FERREBRR -

ZN SE e E R il PsN SE )i 2
il 3% B ) B 5 R IR IR R I B D)
ol o
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD fhBIXERSE R AR AR

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is
limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit standings, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2019, 42.9% (2018:
46.4%) of the total trade and bills receivables, was
due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 87.6%
(2018: 86.2%) of the total trade and bills receivables
was due from the Group’s five largest debtors,
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

(a)

P AN REESIT)
24 BREREEREMIEANAE

FERR

EERBRESF A TETENEEME
BAKEAZBERNER - A%E
MEERREERAE S REMBIR
R ARBAZNKRERE LRSS
EBMARBRRENEERBRAR - R

AEHFH REERERERNRITR
SREE - REME - ARERASEE
RBREIE -

AEBTREHGEASERRERER
EVEAE A HELR

ESENRFR

AEEEBRNEERREZZERTPH
ERBERAREE  MIERFPELMEDN
1% Bt - EXEREERBREER

AEBEEREREFNEKRBREE
4 o R2019FE12A318 - BHEWH

TN FEUR IR 4858 2 42.9% ( 20184
46.4% ) [287.6% (20184 : 86.2%)%
R A RERAR B &N ER AR A KER
AZGRIA °

AEBUEREEBB —ESRNME

EEgETENEERE - ZFFHA%
FREFBEAN B MFRZ iR IR

B RIEE N - UREREIRFPHER
BRI R F Bt EIRIES
BARER - EZEKFTENEZ A%
30FE90H A EHY o AREE—MAYE
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BEBEERETEMIARAEG)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =ERE@®
The Group measures loss allowances for trade REBZESENIFEATEHNEHEE
receivables and contract assets at an amount EBiEz e EE SR INGIENREHNE
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a EBBERE  BlReEERBEER
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss FEGE - ARAEERE R EEEEL
experience does not indicate significantly different BWEBTLNTRAED TFEEBEERLK
loss patterns for different customer segments, the MEABREEZR  FitEREBEEaHE
loss allowance based on past due status is not HEtEEABEERE—FTROAEF
further distinguished between the Group’s different TEHEFEHEE -
customer bases.
The following table provides information about the TRIEHABAREER20194 22018
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade F12A3THEBNEERRIKE ZE
receivables at 31 December 2019 and 2018: WHIEN B EEEB &R -
2019
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEER HMIREE EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
Ageing analysis of trade g 5 BRI IR
receivables: T
Less than 3 months 3fE A AR 0.5% 113,505 (568)
3 to 6 months 3Z6{EA 3.00% 33,247 (997)
6 to 12 months 6&E 128 A 5.00% 17,176 (859)
Over 1 year 15 A 100.00% 577 (577)
Total st 164,505 (3,001)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

PHREREEREMTAQAEGE)

(a) EERKE@E)

2018
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BHEBREE  BKEE  EREE
%  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETET

Ageing analysis of trade g 5 REWRERRD

receivables: e
Less than 3 months SME AR 0.5% 75,997 (380)
3 to 6 months 3Z6EA 3.00% 2,534 (76)
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 5.00% 20 (1)
Over 1 year 16 F 100.00% — —
Total HEt 78,551 (457)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past recent years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year are as follows:

BHEBEERXDENBELFNERER
REATESE - ZENXREABARB
U SR I S B R A B AOR ~ B AT
o HL 7R 55 (B 4 PR WK IR TR B A B e AR 7
AR BEEZHHER -

YA B S R SR R B 4
SBHERWT :

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRE  ARETFT

Balance at 1 January W1 A1B &% 457 778
Impairment losses during the year FRBEEE (HiFE6(c))

(Note 6(c)) 2,544 (321)
Balance at 31 December MN12 A31 B &R 3,001 457
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using

24

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

EREERESMIEARE®S)

(b)

REE S E
AEBNBREEHERRBESE K
KB TEERFNER - RN EE G
RAMHRERHE - URIEE 2SR
BRERANAERERE  WheH
SHIRERRBESHFR

TRINFAEENITESRABRR
FHROFERE QBB AR - THRE
BERIOARMBRB SR E (BT OF
KAENMBNR - Sl AT SFTE
AR E RO E A X E) R A%

/A R T B EEE -

2019
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
TRRMRR SR
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 year but
1yearor  lessthan less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years Total amount
1R BBIFE BB2EE
RER HR2E DREE @t IREE
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETLE ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:x
Bank and other loans FITREMER 75,972 4,660 = 80,632 78,086
Lease liabilities (Note) REABN) 1,035 1,098 1,162 3,295 2,990
Trade and bills payables measured at ~ REER A ENE ZERH
amortised cost ERENEE 168,406 = = 168,406 168,406
Accrued expenses and other payables SR SR E BRI )
measured at amortised cost HiERFE 36,409 — — 36,409 36,409
281,822 5,758 1,162 288,742 285,891

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2019 189



190

Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 128318 |t F[E
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 B i+8ZE ) » YTAN B EZR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 HKERBREERESMIAEAAREBE®R
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBBESEMR®
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the Mzt NERBEEERLETBREE R ER
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the BIRR B s s 5 2RI S 165% W B R
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise 20191 A1 B HR 945 6% - DATERR
lease liabilities relating to leases which were MAE (EAARERE S ERE
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17T REERE)EENERE
17. Lease liabilities include amounts recognised at BE - HEAEREMEREREER
the date of transition to IFRS 16 in respect of leases BEHEAIEITE O AKEHE 2
previously classified as operating leases under EREZBRIM SR ELERE 169 E
IAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases entered AR ERB AT A 3HE
into during the year. Under this approach, the EMEE - BEBEMITE  ERERT
comparative information is not restated. See Note FE5 - BHFE2(C) ©
2(c).
2018
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ATHRERAL TN
More than
Within -~ 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
1ERg  HEBIFE
REX DR @it REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR AREFT ARETR
Bank and other loans FITRAMER 39,121 15,949 55,070 52,808
Trade and bills payables measured at amortised ~ IRE S A 8 M8 S BN FUE Rk
cost DES 136,867 — 136,867 136,867
Accrued expenses and other payables measured i SR s E MBI R H b
at amortised cost 508 27576 — 27576 27576
203,564 15,949 219513 217,251
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=REMRS

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl XIS B A AR AR
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BEBEERETEMIARAEG)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIEREpzE)
The following table details the interest rate profile TRINEAREN REARNREEF]
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the RBEFIE
reporting period:
2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
ERAIE £ (iR x|
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARET T N S
Fixed rate borrowings BT EE
— Lease liabilities (Note) —REEB() 8.10% 2,990 - -
— Bank loans — BTER 5%-7.8% 60,944 4.35%8.1% 29573
— Other loans —EER 1.76%-9.27% 17,142 6.1%-7.6% 23,235
Total borrowings [EEBE 81,076 52,808
Fixed rate borrowings as a BEFEEEEEESN
percentage of total borrowings ~ AAL 100% 100%
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the MizE : ANEED(FAKIEETB A S X FE A BERE

(d)

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through receivables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily RMB. At the end of the
reporting period, the related risk of the Group is not
material.

(d)

s R F 165 W BHN20195F1 518
RV AA R - ARERETEE (R REE
REEAFENTRD B REEEE) BN
ERREE - RIBWTTE - LBREBTTE
5l > REfEE2(c) °

B ER

AEBEFESE 2 E% @R T ERE SN
B(ANEZ 5B/ 2 X 2R A
S EW)INEZ B S REFERRS
MR o SIBULTERRC BB T B /AR
% - RBEMR - ANEREERERERIL
TEKX -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BiXEREERESMIAEAAE®E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (e) AREFE
Fair values of financial instruments carried at other TNMEARBEIERENERTAARE

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial NS EIRR AN S SR AN P BR V2 R T
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are EMBRME(E R E N 20194 2018412
not materially different from their fair values at 31 A3THMARBEIEERER -

December 2019 and 2018.

25 COMMITMENTS 25 RiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December A2019F12A31 HELARE M HR M R IBE
2019 not provided for in the consolidated financial HARERFEREEWT :
statements were as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Commitments in respect of purchase of ERBEDE  BEEE
property, plant and equipment B A
— Contracted for — 254 39,108 33,950
26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EXBHBERS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these BRAGEMBHREEME D MIRENEH
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into N REERERNFILA TR SRS ©

below related party transactions during the year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBEASTHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEFFEEBEAEFMEEENED
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s TEENRE G E8FE) RE
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the & T &= EHES I\
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is Fr#EE8) T
as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETTT

Short-term employee benefits REEE R 1,246 1,026
Post-employment benefits RIKIRIET 166 172

1,412 1,198
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FEaREN 8 TAA 15 ABR (M5
Note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EXBHLIXZ (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with equity shareholders of the (b) EEXARERBRRREWMBARNRIS

Company and their affiliates

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Loans repaid to a related party mIEERE T (BEE R — 10,000
Interest expenses B = 407
Net (decrease)/increase in amounts FERHERR AR SR R IE R D

due to the controlling shareholders EhFEE (1,405) 31,080
Payments for the acquisition of EAE TR AT KInH

Xian Tianrui pursuant to the BN

Reorganisation — 61,239
Guarantees and/or pledge of assets REREEREHROERRE

provided at the end of the reporting S RE ER

period — 36,285

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c) FHREXZzLMRAIZEAM

connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2019 falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

HZE2019F 12 A31 B I FE Fit R
AR SEIA LR E14AZRTR
THER SEBFERERINTEE

oo
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27 RREBEZBERRE

POSITION
Note 2019 2018
(Note)
(FF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T ARBTT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary ] RHBRRIZEE 2 67,456 67,456
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JEW —REIN B AR Z5KIE 67,700 —
Dividend receivable from a eI —FEM B AR 2 RS
subsidiary — 1,624
Prepayments and other receivables &1 518 K E {th j& Uk 718 467 876
Cash at bank and on hand BITRFERS 2,688 8
e 70855 2,508
Current liabilities REBAR
Dividend payable FERTAR B — 1,624
Amount due to the controlling FE AT 15 e B SR SR IE
shareholders — 876
e N 2,500
Netcurentassets  ___ ="®&EESF® 7085 .8
NET ASSETS EEFHE 138,311 67,464
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#HE 23
Share capital [N 17,522 13,216
Reserves B 120,789 54,248
TOTAL EQUITY e 138,311 67,464
Note: The Company has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January Misk : REER2019F1 A1 HIRALISETBIE
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under BRFE AR MBS 2R ZE 16597 o BRI
this approach, comparative information is not restated. FE - HRERIARLES - RIFE2(C)

See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of FEZEMN2020F3H27 B L& T -

directors on 27 March 2020.

Hou Jianli Zhao Shijie
RER g e

Chairman Executive Director
*iE HITEE
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28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF
THE REPORTING PERIOD
(a) Proposed final dividend
On 27 March 2020, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.006 per ordinary
share. Further details are disclosed in Note 23(c)(i).

(b) Impact from the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia
Outbreak (the “NCP Outbreak”)
The Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia Outbreak (the
“NCP Qutbreak”) since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s
operating environment and may impact the Group’s
operations and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact
from the NCP Outbreak on the Group and has
commenced to put in place various contingency
measures. The directors of the Group confirm
that these contingency measures include but not
limited to gradual resumption of production and
delivery of goods to customers since the middle of
February 2020 in accordance with the arrangement
of government authorities while maintaining
strict disease monitoring and control and safety
production measures, negotiating with customers on
delivery schedule, and continuously monitoring the
operations of our customers. The Group will keep
the contingency measures under review as the NCP
Outbreak situation evolves.

As far as the Group’s business is concerned, the
NCP Outbreak may cause decrease of sales volume
of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts in the short-run, but the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s
business will come back to normal situation along
with the business resumption of the customers. In
addition, the NCP Outbreak may also impact the
repayment abilities of certain customers, which in
turn may result in additional impairment losses on
trade receivables in future periods. These possible
impacts have not been reflected in these financial
statements, and the actual impacts may differ from
estimates adopted in these financial statements as
the NCP Outbreak situation continues to evolve and
when further information may become available.

29 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January
2019. Under the transition method chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes
in accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2(c).

28

29

WERRIFAREER

(a) EBRHERE
R20209E3 270 @ AARIEEE#HX
RS B A E A L BAR0.6581(L - E—F
BT EE23(c)(i) IR EE -

(b) FEBRBEZMAZERE(NCPERE )
BRzwE
B 2020 F V)R 3 B W AR B b R R
BNCPREIFBDIAR  AEBZEE
RECARFBEIBEERSE - AR
ERERE 2 EH M o

AEE-BTYHEINCPRBYHEAE
B8  WERIM—FRIIEHERE
AEBEERR  ZFREERERE
TBRF © 8202052 A H A B IR IR IR
FFERAFIN LR S IREEEL E
FPRINEY) - RE RIS BIRH R
Mz 2 A ERE YRR ERERER
FHT#HA - WHRHEEREPHEE -
AEBEBRBENCPREIBEHERTEE
BHEHERE

MAEBEEKMS - NCPREIGAIEE
ERMANEBUIERIMITE A HE
T EREEEEARBETFER
EIRIE - NEEZEBIIRELER © 1t
S NCPRIGHAIGE G EAREEE
TERPMEREES - EMAIBEEBURR
HAFR FE M AR R EE AR RSN BB 18 © 35
LERJREM P ERENZEUBRERPR
B - 3 B BEE NCP & 1515 5 & T 3%
RIAKLAIREESEZEAE - BREE
Al RE R EM I RER P RANMEET B
TR

b g F

REBR20194E1 A1 A &K E BB 8 75 R
ERIFE165E - RIBFTRENBE L
BERKREEY - BESTHRREFSNE—
HEEERMFE2(c) IREE -
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30 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company at 31 December 2019
to be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is incorporated
in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of the
Company at 31 December 2019 to be Mr Hou Jianli and
Ms Chen Bierui. H&C Group Holding Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and a
new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

BUR B 75 s 5 2R Al e S SR RO R 2 (B RT

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

30

31

BEERBRRERS

ARAREERA - R2019F12A31AARA]
W EEZEG RN EEE XS T IH
H&C Group Holding Limited » 72019412
A31B AR RIS 77 BRI % 4 KR
BI$% %+  H&C Group Holding Limited I
BREIMTGERRHEATER -

B ZE2019F 12831 HILFEC EMHE M
REMBMEETAR » FTERRAREN T

EZ -

HEARKBRETIZAS  HESHENE
ESCHEMZBERAN - —BHTEHR SR

28| - ERBISIREEAFE175H - REAK
(B Z=2019F 12831 LFEMALER - A
HAREZI B REPERN) - EEETHIA 8L
HAEEERAE -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RSB BB

LR aEX

1 January 2020
20201 A18

1 January 2020

BRI S R RIF 0% - BIRR TSRS RIF 395 M ER @51 £ RS 75

ZIER]  FERENE

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a business

B G EtERIE3R 2 18F] - XBHTEE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of material
B aTERIE 15 R 2t ERESR 2 85] - EANTE

|IFRS 17, Insurance contracts
BB SRS 2RISR - (R A 4T

Amendments to |IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BRMBRE RN 1R ER] - HRESEBRG LI,

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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